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The franchise is for Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations offering tanning products, services, and
accessories and certain spa-related products and services (each, a “Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Location”
or “Location”).

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Location ranges from $648,453 to
$1,131,247. This total includes approximately $36,378 to $39,681 that must be paid to us or our affiliate
for a newly constructed Location. If you sign a Development Agreement, you will also pay a development
fee equal to 100% of the initial franchise fee for the first Location and $5,000 for each additional
Location to be developed under a Development Agreement. The portion of the development fee allocable
to each Location (the development fee credit) will be credited against the initial franchise fee due for that
Location.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and
Development Agreement and other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all
accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in
connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified
the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Palm Beach Tan Franchising,
Inc., Franchise Department at 6321 Campus Circle Drive E., Irving, Texas 75063 or 972-966-5300.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and
this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.
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Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “4 Consumer's Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other
sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Date of Issuance: April 23, 2025, as amended July 31, 2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to
find more information:

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or Attachment
F.

How much will I need to invest? [[tems 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor's direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the Item 21 or Attachment C includes financial
financial ability to provide statements. Review these statements carefully.
support to my business?

Is the franchise system stable, Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the

growing, or shrinking? number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the

Palm Beach Beauty & Tan franchise agreement describe whether the

business in my area? franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its

troubled legal history? management have been involved in material

litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What's it like to be a Palm Item 20 or Attachments F and G list current and
Beach Beauty & Tan former franchisees. You can contact them to
franchisee? ask about their experiences.

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you should

look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees
even if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to
change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require
you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your
franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a
limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive
than similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions.
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to
continue to operate your franchise business.

When vour franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your
landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the
agency information in Attachment H.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda.
See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About 7his Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and requires
you to resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, and/or litigation
only in Texas. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force
you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost
more to mediate or litigate with the franchisor in Texas than in your own
state.

Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages will be required if your
franchise agreement is terminated with cause. You will be required to pay
liquidated damages in the amount of $30,000 if the franchise agreement is
terminated within the first 12 months of operation.

Unregistered Trademark. The primary trademark that you will use in
your business is not federally-registered. If the Franchisor's ability to use
this trademark in your area is challenged, you may have to identify your
business and its products/services by a different name. This change can be
expensive and may reduce brand recognition of the products and services
you offer.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State
Specific Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be

highlighted.
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ADDENDUM TO PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

The State of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in
franchise documents. If any of the following provisions are in these franchise
documents, the provisions are void and cannot be enforced against you:

(a) a prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) a requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver,
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This
shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any
and all claims.

(c) a provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the
expiration of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the
franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such
failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no
event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) a provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the
time of expiration, of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and
furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory,
supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the
franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the
term of the franchise is less than 5 years; and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise
or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another
trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in
the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive
at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) a provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances.
This section does not require a renewal provision.

(f) a provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.
This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of
arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

(g) a provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from
exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is
not limited to:
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(1) the failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(i1) the fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(ii1) the unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations.

(iv) the failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing
to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the
proposed transfer.

(h) a provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that
grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same
terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor
does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the
assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has
breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in
the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(i) a provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign,
or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

The fact that there is a notice of this franchise disclosure document on file with
the Attorney General does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement
by the Attorney General.

Address for notices to the Michigan Attorney General:

Department of the Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
Franchise Section
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 W. Ottawa Street
Lansing, MI 48909
517-373-7117
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ITEM 1

THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

The Franchisor and Any Parents, Predecessors and Affiliates

The Franchisor is Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc., referred to in this disclosure document as
“we,” “us” or “our.” We refer to the person interested in buying a franchise as “you” or “your.” If
you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity, certain terms of the
Franchise and Development Agreements will apply to your owners. These will be addressed in this
disclosure document where appropriate.

We were incorporated in Delaware on June 21, 2001. We maintain our principal place of
business at 6321 Campus Circle Drive E., Irving, Texas 75063. We do business under our corporate
name and the names “Palm Beach Beauty & Tan” and “Palm Beach Tan.” Our agents for service of
process in the franchise registration states where we are registered are listed in Attachment A.

We offer and sell franchises for the establishment and operation of Palm Beach Beauty & Tan
Locations offering tanning- and wellness-related products, services, and accessories and certain spa-
and beauty-related products and services under the “Palm Beach Beauty & Tan” mark (each, a “Palm
Beach Beauty & Tan Location” or “Location”).

Locations feature tanning beds and one or more sunless self-tanning booths that use a special
process to tan the skin through the application of self-tanning solutions to the skin surface, as well as
one or more infrared saunas to provide benefits for mental and physical well-being.

We have offered franchises for Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations since the date of this
disclosure document. Prior to then, and since July 26, 2001, we offered franchises for Palm Beach Tan
locations - which did not feature infrared saunas - under the “Palm Beach Tan” mark (the “Legacy
Brand”). We no longer offer new franchises under the Legacy Brand. However, as of the date of this
disclosure document, and as disclosed in Item 20, as of December 31, 2024, there were 397 franchised
locations and 253 company-owned locations operating under the Legacy Brand (collectively, the
“Legacy Locations”). We anticipate that by December 31, 2025, the Legacy Locations will convert to
Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations.

Except for the foregoing, we have never offered franchises in any other line of business. We
do not engage in any business other than the offer and sale of Palm Beach Beauty & Tan franchises.
We do not operate Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations or Legacy Locations, but our Parent does.

Our ultimate parent is Palm Beach Tan, Inc., a Texas corporation (“Parent”). Our Parent has
operated Legacy Locations since July 1990. Our Parent maintains the same principal place of business
as we do. Our Parent has never offered franchises in any line of business.

On November 17, 2008, an entity affiliated with us, PBT PT Acquisition Company, LLC (“PT
Acquisition”), acquired substantially all of the assets of Planet Tan Management I, LLC, which owned
a chain of 16 tanning salons based in Dallas, Texas which operate under the “Planet Tan” name
(“Planet Tan Locations”). Shortly after the closing of that transaction, PT Acquisition was merged into
our Parent, with our Parent being the surviving entity. Our Parent now owns and operates the Planet
Tan Locations, all of which are located in the Dallas/Ft. Worth, Texas metropolitan area. As of the
date of this disclosure document, 6 Planet Tan Locations have converted to Palm Beach Beauty & Tan
Locations, and the remaining 2 Planet Tan Locations will convert to Palm Beach Beauty & Tan
Locations in the near future. There are no franchised Planet Tan locations, and neither we nor our
Parent have current plans to offer franchises for Planet Tan locations.
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Many of the same corporate personnel responsible for the operation of the Palm Beach Beauty
& Tan brand are also involved in the operation of the Planet Tan brand. In addition, many of the
services and programs and much of the same equipment used by one brand may also be made available
to the other brand. However, we operate the Palm Beach Beauty & Tan System independent of the
Planet Tan brand, and any other brands that we or our Parent or other affiliates may own or manage.

Except as described in this Item 1, neither we nor any predecessor, parent or affiliate have
conducted any other business and have not offered franchises in any other line of business.

The Franchise

Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations use our business system (the “System”), the
distinguishing characteristics of which include distinctive exterior and interior design, decor, color
scheme, and furnishings; uniform standards, specifications, and procedures for operations; quality and
uniformity of services and products offered; procedures for inventory, management, and financial
controls; training and assistance; and advertising and promotional programs, all of which we may
change, improve, and further develop. Locations operate under the trade name and service mark “Palm
Beach Beauty & Tan” and other trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos, emblems, and indicia
of origin that we designate for use by Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations (the “Marks”).

We offer qualified applicants a franchise agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”), which gives
you the right to establish and operate 1 Location at a specified site (the “Site””) within a non-exclusive
geographic area (the “Designated Area”). Our current form of Franchise Agreement is attached to this
disclosure document as Attachment D.

If you operate an independent tanning business (and you are not an existing Palm Beach
Beauty & Tan developer/franchisee) and elect to become a Palm Beach Beauty & Tan developer
and/or franchisee and convert all of your independent tanning salon locations to Locations
(“Conversion Locations”), we may (but are not required to) agree to modify certain terms of our
standard franchise agreement, including the amount of the initial franchise fee and may agree to
reimburse you in connection with certain costs you may incur in converting your tanning salon to a
Location. Whether we will negotiate, and the terms that we may negotiate, will depend on the
characteristics of the particular transaction.

If you are an existing Palm Beach Beauty & Tan developer/franchisee purchasing an
independent tanning salon location and converting it to a Location (“Acquisition Location”), you will
sign the Acquisition Addendum attached to the Franchise Agreement. The Acquisition Addendum
includes, as Exhibit 1, a list of requirements for converting the Acquisition Location to a Location.

We also offer qualified applicants the right to enter into a Development Agreement (the
“Development Agreement”) to develop multiple Locations within a specifically described geographic
area (the “Territory”). Our current form of Development Agreement is attached to this disclosure
document as Attachment E. The size of the Territory will vary depending on local market conditions
and the number of Locations to be developed. The Territory will be determined before you sign the
Development Agreement and will be described in Attachment D to the Development Agreement. (See
Item 12) You must develop the number of Locations contemplated by the Development Agreement in
the Territory according to a development schedule and must enter into a separate Franchise Agreement
for each Location established. We are not required to offer or enter into a Development Agreement
with franchisees that develop more than 1 Location.

The Franchise Agreement for the first Location developed under the Development Agreement
will be in the form of Attachment D to this disclosure document and must be signed within 90 days
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after the Development Agreement is signed. For each additional Location developed under the
Development Agreement, you must sign the form of Franchise Agreement that we are then offering to
new franchisees, except that the initial franchise fees will be as provided in the Development
Agreement, and the royalty and advertising expenditure percentages will be the same as those in the
Franchise Agreement at Attachment D to this disclosure document.

Persons we designate as your “Controlling Principals” also must sign the Franchise and
Development Agreements. If you are an individual and are married, your spouse will be a Controlling
Principal. If you are a business entity, your Controlling Principals include those of your direct and
indirect owners, officers, and directors whom we designate as your Controlling Principals. Generally,
we designate your principal equity owners and executive officers as Controlling Principals. Your
Controlling Principals agree to be individually bound by certain obligations and covenants in the
Franchise and Development Agreements and, unless we otherwise agree, must personally guarantee
your performance under those agreements.

The terms of Franchise and Development Agreements we have previously offered may differ
from the terms of the Franchise and Development offered by this disclosure document. In addition, we
have negotiated, and may in the future negotiate, various terms of our Development and Franchise
Agreements, including fees over which we have control, based on the number of Locations to be
developed and other relevant factors.

Competition

Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations are designed to appeal to men and women primarily in
the 18 to 54 year age group, with income ranging from the lower middle to the upper levels. Locations
are located primarily in high-visibility, high-traffic “A” retail centers. The market for tanning and
beauty services is well established and highly competitive. There is active competition among
established tanning and beauty service providers. You should expect to compete with many providers
offering tanning and beauty services and products.

Industry-Specific Regulation

The tanning industry is regulated at the federal, state, and local levels. The Food and Drug
Administration regulates various aspects of the tanning industry, including the content and placement
of labels on tanning equipment, implementation and adherence to exposure schedules, and
specifications for timers and bulbs. The Federal Trade Commission regulates the content of advertising
and other communications regarding the use of indoor tanning services. Many state and local
governments have implemented laws and regulations to regulate businesses that offer indoor tanning
services, including laws that establish a minimum age requirement for persons who use indoor tanning
services. Contact your state and local health and cosmetology agencies for information on applicable
laws in your state. Additionally, under the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010
(2010 Health Care Act”), which was signed into law by President Barack Obama on March 30, 2010,
tanning customers are assessed a 10% tax on all UV tanning services. You are responsible for
collecting and remitting the tax to the appropriate federal taxing authority.

PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
JULY 2025 -5-



ITEM 2

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Daniel Caskey: President, and Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Caskey was named as our President, and Chief Operating Officer in June, 2025. Mr.
Caskey also holds the position of Chief Executive Officer for TruLuc Holdings LLC since January
2011, and Chief Executive Officer for Bronze Body, LLC since October 2011, located in Cincinnati,
Ohio.

Eric Hall: Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance

Mr. Hall has served as Chief Financial Officer since January 2011 and Senior Vice President
of Finance since January 2017. From June 2009 until December 2010, he served as our Vice President
of Finance.

Roy Sneed: Vice President, Franchising

Mr. Sneed has served as Vice President, Franchising since July 2013. From January 1, 2008 to
June 2013, he served as Director of Franchising.

Ryan Christian: Director of Franchise Operations

Mr. Christian has served as Director of Franchise Operations since December 2013. From
March 2013 to December 2013, he served as Senior Franchise Business Consultant. He previously
served as a Franchise Business Consultant from October 2006 through February 2013.

Jason Spears: Senior Franchise Business Consultant

Mr. Spears has served as Senior Franchise Business Consultant since August 31, 2023. From
October 2011 to August 30, 2023, he served as Franchise Business Consultant .

Sam Balduf: Senior Franchise Business Consultant

Mr. Balduf has served as Senior Franchise Business Consultant since September 23, 2022.
From December 2013 to September 22, 2022, he served as Franchise Business Consultant.

Sarah Travis: Franchise Business Consultant

Ms. Travis has served as Franchise Business Consultant since June 1, 2021. She served as a
District Manager from July 2015 to May 2021 for Legacy Locations owned by our Parent.

Amber Kuipers: Franchise Business Consultant

Ms. Kuipers has served as Franchise Business Consultant since March 14, 2022. She served
as a District Manager from February 2016 to March 2022 for Legacy Locations owned by our Parent.

The individuals listed above are our directors and/or officers or employees of our Parent
whose management responsibilities include responsibility for the franchises offered by this disclosure
document. Unless otherwise noted, all are located in our offices in Irving, Texas.
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ITEM 3
LITIGATION

Sunless, Inc. v. Palm Beach Tan, Inc. and Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc. (United States
District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Case No. 1:22-cv-0090, filed January 17, 2022). Plaintiff,
the owner of the Mystic Tan® trademarks and manufacturer and distributor of, among other products,
Mystic Tan® booths and Mystic Tan® tanning solution, asserted claims against us under the U.S. Lanham
Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051 et seq., and Ohio Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Ohio Rev. Code Ann. §§ 4165.01
et seq., alleging false designation of origin, false advertising, and unfair competition. The plaintiff's claims
arise mainly from allegations that we falsely rebranded Mystic Tan® Kyss spray tanning booths without
authorization and falsely advertised with them under the name “Sunscape”.

We asserted counterclaims against Plaintiff for common-law fraud and for cancellation of
Plaintiff's U.S. Trademark Registrations for the MYSTIC TAN mark with tanning salon services based on
Plaintiff's non-use and abandonment of the MYSTIC TAN mark with tanning salon services. The Court
granted our motion to consolidate the foregoing lawsuit into a separate lawsuit, Sunless, Inc. v. Palm
Beach Tan, Inc., et al., Case No. 5:21-cv-0248-SO, filed January 29, 2021, in the U.S. District Court,
Northern District of Ohio, in which we were not named specifically. In September 2024 a confidential
settlement was reached between the Parties, resulting in all claims being dropped by both sides and the
case dismissed by the Court.

Other than these actions, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY
No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

Development Fee

When you sign the Development Agreement, you must pay us a development fee equal to
100% of the initial franchise fee for the first Location and $5,000 for each additional Location to be
developed under the Development Agreement. The allocable portion of the development fee is
credited against the initial franchise fee for each Franchise Agreement signed under a Development
Agreement at the time that payment of the initial franchise fee is due. You must pay the balance of the
initial franchise fee (if any) when you sign the Franchise Agreement. The development fee is
calculated the same for all franchisees entering into Development Agreements under this offering, but
the actual dollar amount paid will vary depending on the number of Locations you must develop. The
development fee is not refundable.

Initial Franchise Fee

You must pay us an initial franchise fee of $30,000, less any development fee credit (if any),
when you sign the Franchise Agreement. In 2024, in light of the foregoing the initial franchise fees
that we charged for standard franchises ranged from $5,000 to $22,000. We may negotiate the amount
of the initial franchise fee in our sole discretion. In determining whether an adjustment is warranted,
we consider such factors as the number of existing tanning salons that the franchisee owns or operates,
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the experience of the franchisee, whether we have previously dealt with the franchisee, the impact of
market forces in a given location, and other relevant circumstances.

Site Evaluation
We will provide on-site evaluation assistance for your first Location at no additional charge.
We are not obligated to provide this assistance for any subsequent Location. If we do, you may be

required to pay or reimburse our reasonable expenses, including our cost of travel, lodging, and meals.

Computer Hardware, Software and PC Configuration

You must purchase your computer hardware and software from us at a cost of approximately
$6,378 - $9,681, plus freight. This amount includes (i) a fee of $600 per Location to configure your
PC, which includes installation of the SunLync Software and (ii) a software license fee of $1,300 per
Location for the SunLync Software and a software license fee of $60 per system ($120 to $180 for 2 to
3 systems) for the Deskman security management software, both of which you must license from us.
The license fees for the SunLync Software and the Deskman software is passed through to the
developers of the SunLync Software and the Deskman software, respectively.

Database Conversion Fee

For an Acquisition Location, you must pay us a fee of $500 per database that we are required
to convert to our point-of-sale system.

The initial fees are not refundable. The amount of the initial fee may differ, but initial fees are
uniformly imposed on all franchisees and developers, as applicable.

ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee) Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty Fee )
1 - 12 months from 10th of the You must review and approve a
Opening Date — 4% of month for the Royalty Fee Notice provided by us
Gross Sales preceding no later than the 5" day of each
month month for the preceding month.

13 -24 months from
Opening Date — 5% of
Gross Sales

25 months from
Opening Date through
the end of the term — 6%
of Gross Sales

Unless you object in writing to the
amount stated in the Royalty Fee
Notice and we receive such
objection on or before the 7th day of
the month (or, if such day is not a
business day, then on the next
business day), you will be deemed to
have accepted and agreed to the
royalty fee amount stated in the
Royalty Fee Notice and we may
withdraw the royalty fee amount
from your designated bank account
by electronic funds transfer.
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Type of Fee) Amount Due Date Remarks
Local Advertising 3.5% of Gross Sales®® | Each calendar You must advertise in your
year Designated Area, participate in
certain marketing programs
(including any test marketing

programs we authorize) and submit
quarterly reports after the 2" and 4
quarters. In addition, you must
conduct a grand opening. We require
these expenditures, but they are not
paid to us.

Varies®

As determined

Cooperative See Note 4
Advertising by Cooperative
Advertising Fund 2% of Gross Sales @) 10th of the Fund contributions are paid to us by
month for the electronic funds transfer.
preceding
month
Overdraft/Service Our actual cost On demand If any check or draft (electronic or
Charges otherwise) is not honored by your
bank, you must reimburse us for any
service charges or other expenses we
incur as a result of such non-
payment.
Interest Lesser of 18% per On demand We may charge interest on all
annum or highest legal overdue amounts.
rate
Additional and At our option, a Before We have the right to charge for
Remedial Training reasonable fee plus additional additional and remedial training
costs training programs and for training
replacement and successor
personnel.

Opening Assistance

After your 1* Location,
we may require
reimbursement of our
expenses if you request
support

When invoiced

We provide on-site pre-opening and
opening assistance for your first
Location.
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Type of Fee)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

EFT Services

Our actual cost, plus
$0.25 per transaction

Deducted from
amounts subject
to EFT

You must use us to provide
electronic fund processing services

to debit the accounts of your
customers who have service
agreements and to credit your
account.

Music Service

Current price, subject to
adjustment by supplier —

As arranged

You must subscribe to a music
service that provides at least a single

approximately $43- channel music system and play the
$59.95 per month music at your Locations. Our
supplier bills you directly.
PBTV and Digital | fonh pitlocation "o | montn Jor the | You must subscribe io a media
Development preceding service program provided by our
month approved supplier. The amount is
paid to us by electronic transfer.
FAC Fund $25 per month per | 10" of the | You must contribute to the FAC
location month Fund. This amount is paid to us by
electronic funds transfer and is used
to help pay for the annual FAC
Kick-off Meeting held each January
for our franchise owners and
operators.
Customer Experience | $40.00 per month per | As arranged Currently, you must subscribe to a

Management Program

Location

“Customer Experience
Management” program provided by
our approved supplier. We collect
the monthly payment by electronic
funds transfer. We may, in the
future, change the format of our
quality assurance program.

Employee $29.50 per month per | As arranged Currently, you must subscribe to an
Recruitment and | Location “employee recruitment/applicant
Applicant  Tracking tracking” system provided by Career
System Plug.
Digital Support | $125 per month per | 10" of the | You must participate in our Digital
Program Location month Support Program and pay this fee for
participation. We collect the monthly
payment by electronic funds transfer.
Operational Audit | Approximately $75 per | As arranged You must hire and pay directly a
Program month per Location third-party contractor to evaluate the

operation of your Locations monthly
using a form and evaluation
procedure that we prescribe.
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Type of Fee) Amount Due Date Remarks
Sunlync and Software | $300 per month per | 10" of the | This amount is paid to us by
Support Fee Location month for the | electronic funds transfer. This
preceding amount may increase if our
month underlying costs have increased.

Transfer Fee $5,000 plus | When billed We do not charge a fee if the transfer
reimbursement of our is to a new entity owned by the
reasonable costs and original interest holders. (Also
expenses applies to Development Agreement.)

Securities  Offering | Reimbursement of our | When billed We have the right to review and

Fee reasonable costs and consent to any public or private
expenses offerings of interests in you. You

must reimburse us for our cost of
reviewing the way your offering
materials treat the subject of our
relationship. (Also applies to
Development Agreement.)

Renewal Fee Reimbursement of our | "hen billed You must give us at least 6 months
reasonable costs and and not more than 9 months notice
expenses to renew.

Inspection and | Cost of inspection and | When billed If you fail to correct deficiencies

Testing test, if applicable noted on inspection, we may do so

and bill you. We may require you to
pay for the cost of a test on samples
of your products and supplies if we
have not approved the supplier or if
the sample does not meet our
specifications, or if you wish to
substitute a required item or brand.

Audit Fee Cost of audit, if | When billed Payable only if an audit shows that
applicable you have understated any reported

amount by 3% or more.

Insurance Fee ) ] o
Actual cost plus 10% When billed Payable only if you do not maintain

the required insurance and we obtain
it for you.

Indemnification Costs Varies according to loss On demand You must indemnify us when certain

of your actions result in loss to us
and when we incur a loss based on
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Type of Fee) Amount Due Date Remarks
the wuse of our prototypical
architectural and design plans and
specifications. (Also applies to
Development Agreement.)
Enforcement Costs Will vary As incurred You must pay our costs of
enforcement if you do not comply
with the Franchise Agreement. (Also
applies to Development Agreement.)
Liquidated Damages If the Franchise | Within 5 days | Liquidated damages are only
Agreement is terminated | after required if your default results in
within the first 12 | termination of | termination of the Franchise
months of operation, | the Franchise | Agreement. Our right to receive
you must pay liquidated | Agreement due | liquidated damages does not limit
damages in the amount | to your default our ability to recover other monies
of $30,000. due under the Franchise Agreement
and to otherwise seek damages or
If the agreement is equitable relief for the harm caused
terminated after the first by the conduct which gave rise to the
12 months of operation, termination, as well as for any other
you must pay liquidated defaults by you under the Franchise
damages equal to (a) the Agreement.
average of the monthly
royalty fees and
Advertising Fund
contributions  required
for the 24 months
preceding  termination
(or if you have been
operating the Location
for less than 24 months,
the average for the
months you operated the
Location before
termination), (b)
multiplied by the lesser
of (1) 24 or (ii)) the
number of  months
remaining in the term of
the  agreement, or
$30,000, whichever is
greater.
Additional Our then-current | When you | Ifyou comply with the Development
Development development fee exercise your | Agreement, we will give you a right
right of first | of first refusal to develop additional
refusal Locations in the Territory during the

5-year period after the Development
Agreement expires.
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Notes:

1. All fees and expenses in this Item 6 are nonrefundable and, except as otherwise indicated
in the preceding chart, are imposed by, and are payable to us. We currently have no plans to increase
any payments we control. Payment terms for goods and services provided by third-party suppliers are
established by those suppliers. To our knowledge, none of the amounts paid to third parties are
refundable.

2. “Gross Sales” means the gross revenues from membership or other fees and from the sale
or rental of other products, accessories, and services, and all income of every other kind and nature
related to the Location, whether for cash or credit, but expressly excluding (a) receipts from the
operation of any public telephones or vending machines installed at the Location, except for any
amount representing your share of these revenues; (b) sums representing taxes you collect directly
from customers, based upon present or future laws of federal, state, or local governments, if you
actually transmit them to the appropriate taxing authority; (c) returns to shippers or manufacturers;
(d) proceeds from isolated sales of trade fixtures not constituting any part of your products and
services offered for resale or having any material effect upon the ongoing operation of your Location;
(e) refunds, adjustments, or credits paid or directly provided by your Location to customers; (f)
payments (including surcharges) you receive from your customers for NSF checks and rejected/denied
credit card charges, but Gross Sales may not be reduced by the amount of any penalties, charges, or
fees charged by banks or credit card companies for an NSF check or other denied credit; (g) all
proceeds received from the initial sale of gift cards; and (h) any other items which we may expressly
authorize in writing to be excluded from Gross Sales (however, we may revoke or withdraw such
permission at any time in writing in our discretion).

3. In addition, the redemption value of gift cards used in the Location for tanning services or
products is included in the definition of “Gross Sales”, regardless of where the gift card originated. If
the gift card originated in a different Location and is processed in our gift card system, you will
automatically be credited for the value.

4. Your total franchisor required advertising assessment for local advertising, the advertising
fund or an advertising cooperative, will not exceed 5.5% of Gross Sales.

5. In 2008 we established an advertising Cooperative. As of January 1, 2025, Legacy
Location franchisees in 2 markets (Portland, Oregon and Cleveland, Ohio) are participating in the
Cooperative. Franchisees in the Portland market have agreed to contribute 3.8% of Gross Sales to the
Cooperative and franchisees in the Cleveland market have agreed to contribute 3.5% of Gross Sales to
the Cooperative. We may require you to contribute a portion of your total advertising assessment to the
Cooperative if and when we implement the Cooperative in your market.

PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
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ITEM 7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Expenditure Amount Method of When Due To Whom
Payment Payment is to
be Made
Initial Franchise Fee (V' | $30,000 Lump sum | On signing Franchise | Us
Agreement
Leasehold $250,000 to As arranged | As arranged Contractor
Improvements @ $400,000
Prepaid Rent and $5,120 to Lump sum | At lease execution Landlord
Security Deposit @ $17,500
Furniture and Fixtures @ | $52,500 to As arranged | As arranged Suppliers
$76,500
Tanning and Related $179,650 to As arranged | As arranged Suppliers
Equipment © $438,550
Computer Hardware and | $6,378 to As arranged | As arranged Us
Software © $9,681
PBTV Mobile App $49.95 As arranged | As arranged Suppliers
Initial Inventory of $16,495 to As arranged | As arranged Suppliers
Lotions, Solutions, and $18,967
Supplies ®
Signage @ $6,700 to As arranged | As arranged Suppliers
$15,800
Professional Services ¥ | $15,000 to As arranged | As arranged Attorneys,
$20,000 Accountants,
Architects
Utility Deposits and $60 to As arranged | As arranged Suppliers
Permits ! $5,200

PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
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Type of Expenditure Amount Method of When Due To Whom
Payment Payment is to
be Made

Grand Opening 2 $10,000 As arranged | As arranged Suppliers

In-Location $3,000 to As arranged | As arranged Fulfillment

Merchandising Kit (¥ $5,000 House

Local Marketing Kit ™ | $3,000 to As arranged | As arranged Fulfillment
$4,000 House

Initial Training ! $2,500 to As arranged | Upon attending Hotels, Airlines,
$4,500 training Etc.

Pre-Opening Training'® | $2,000 to As arranged | As arranged Employees,
$4.000 Meet.lng Space

’ Provider, Etc.

Music System with $2,500 to As arranged | As arranged Supplier

Installation 7 $3,500

Security System $2,000 to As arranged | As arranged Suppliers

(includes CCTV system) | $3,000

(18)

Insurance 1 $1,500 to As arranged | As arranged Suppliers
$5,000

Additional Funds ®* $60,000

(three months)

TOTAL $648,453 to

$1,131,247

Notes:

* These estimates are for a newly constructed Location, anticipated to be approximately
2,200 to 2,600 square feet in size. If you are converting an existing tanning facility, you may incur costs
to bring the property into conformity with the System. Such costs necessarily vary based on the
physical condition of the property, fixtures, equipment, furnishings, furniture, signage, and similar
items already present on the property. Requirements to bring an existing location into conformity will
be outlined via a Store Conversion Audit Form. For Conversion Locations, we may agree to modify
certain terms of our standard franchise agreement, including the amount of the initial franchise fee, and
may agree to reimburse you in connection with certain costs you may incur in converting your tanning
salon to a Location (See Item 1).
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1. If your Location is opened under a Development Agreement, you must pay us a
development fee equal to 100% of the initial franchise fee for the first Location and $5,000 for each
additional Location to be developed under the Development Agreement. The allocable portion of the
development fee is credited against the initial franchise fee for each Franchise Agreement signed under
a Development Agreement at the time that payment of the initial franchise fee is due. You must pay
the balance of the initial franchise fee (if any) when you sign the Franchise Agreement. The
development fee is calculated the same for all franchisees entering into Development Agreements
under this offering, but the actual dollar amount paid will vary depending on the number of Locations
you must develop. The development fee is not refundable.

2. Locations typically are located in commercially zoned shopping centers. The estimates
provided are for finish-out at a newly constructed center. Costs associated with renovating space in an
existing shopping center could differ significantly. The minimum estimate assumes a finish-out
allowance from the landlord of $35 per square foot. The maximum estimate assumes no landlord
contribution towards finish-out and higher labor costs in unionized markets, such as Chicago, St.
Louis, and Detroit. Leasehold improvement costs will also be affected by local market conditions,
including labor costs. Depending on local zoning ordinances, the age of the shopping center, and other
factors, your leasehold improvement or other finish-out costs may require an additional $4,000 to
$7,000 to install emergency fire protection equipment (sprinklers, etc.). This cost is not reflected in the
above estimates.

3. Prepaid rent and security deposits assume that a minimum of one month's rent will be
required by the landlord and is based on annual rental of $16 per square foot. The maximum amount
assumes a 2-month rent requirement and is based on an annual rental of $35 per square foot.

4, Furniture and fixtures include the costs and installation of furniture, millwork, portable
walls, cabinetry, and shelving, other than the cost of tanning beds and related equipment and computer
systems.

5. The costs for tanning and related equipment are based on the following standard

configuration:

_Low __ High

PBT One /Silver: Ergoline Sundash 32/0 or 32/1,
Essence 48, Ultra Sun Q6, Ultra Sun E6 1 3
Gold: Ergoline Passion 40/3, 3 4
Omega Gold 4800, KBL K5
Ergoline Sunrise 480, KBL Space 2000 1 1
Platinum: Ergoline Affinity 700, 2 3
KBL Alpha Platinum
KBL Pure Energy 50, KBL Alpha 5600, KBL K7
Sunrise 6200/7200
Diamond: 1 2
, KBL Alpha 6800,

KBL Alpha 7000, KBL Alpha 7900
Ergoline Vitality 50/4 PLT3

PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
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Diamond Prism: 0 2
KBL 8000 Hybrid, P9 Extra Sun, P9S Extra Sun

P9S Hybrid Sun, K9S Extra Sun, K9S Hybrid Sun,

Ergoline Vitality 50/4 TLT3, KBL K11Air

Wellness: Clearlight Sanctuary 2 Sauna, LightStim
LED Bed; LightStim ProPanel, KBL Beauty Shaper,
Ergoline Revive Red-Light Plus/Basic 2 3

Sunless (Sunscape Booth or Spray Your Way Booth) 1 2

The "low" estimate is the recommended equipment mix for a smaller store (approximately 2,200
square feet), and the "high" estimate is the recommended equipment mix for a prototypical store that is
approximately 2,600 square feet. This also includes freight and installation of the equipment, timer
system and wiring costs.

6. The costs for computer hardware and software include 2 to 3 point-of-sale computer
systems with appropriate software and data transmission equipment. This estimate includes the license
fee for SunLync Software ($1,300 per Location), the license fee for Deskman security management
software ($60 per system) and the PC configuration fee ($600 per Location), but it does not include the
cost of freight plus additional travel and out-of-pocket expenses associated with the PC installation.

7. This amount represents the initial costs for the media service, which is required for all
Locations. You must pay shipping costs for the equipment related to the media service in addition to
the initial cost. All new stores (whether conversion, new, etc.) are required to purchase a firewall.

8. These amounts represent the estimated cost of an initial supply of tanning lotions and
related skin care products, and self-tanning solutions and supplies (e.g., towels, booties, barrier cream,
trash bins and dispensers) for approximately 450 tans.

9. The amounts represent the estimated costs of both outdoor and indoor signage, including
logo.

10. You may need professional services (attorneys, architects, accountants) in establishing
your Location. These amounts can vary widely, depending on the extent of the services required. This
amount includes the estimated fee for using our approved architect, idGroup. idGroup includes
permitting for your Location in their fee.

11. You may need to pay permit fees and utility deposits in establishing your Location. These
amounts can vary, depending on the municipality.

12. Grand Opening costs will vary, and you may choose to invest above the required $10,000.

13. The In-Location Merchandising Kit includes in-store graphics, signage, marketing
materials, banners, and window clings used in-store to promote the business.

14. The Local Marketing Kit includes materials like brochures, coupons, and posters used to
promote the business outside the Location.

15. These amounts represent the average costs of transportation, food, and lodging for 2
people to attend initial training in Irving, Texas.

PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
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16. We provide pre-opening training for your first Location. This training consists of 2 days of
on-site training and 3 days of classroom training, which may be offsite. These amounts represent an
estimate of the payroll necessary for 4 full-time employees, including the store manager, and 4 part-
time employees, and the rental of a space to accommodate the classroom training.

17. This amount represents the initial installation costs for the music system, which is required
for all Locations.

18. This amount represents an estimate for a security system for your Location. You must
install a security system at your Location with a panic button.

19. This amount represents an estimate of the down payment on your annual insurance
premiums. You must obtain the insurance coverage described in the Franchise Agreement. We must be
named as an additional insured on these policies, and we must receive proof of insurance within 30
days after you obtain the insurance. Your cost of insurance may vary depending on the insurer, the
physical site of the Location, the value of the equipment and improvements, and your claims history.

20. During the initial months of operation, you should expect to experience negative cash
flows. This is a natural and expected result due to the nature of the business and the need to build a
monthly membership base large enough that monthly EFT receipts from monthly members, when
combined with cash receipts from non-EFT and other tanning services and product sales, provide
positive cash flows from operations. These figures are estimates, and we cannot assure you that you
will not have additional expenses starting your Location. Your actual costs will depend on factors like
your management skills, experience, and business acumen; time of year you open; local economic
conditions; utility rates; the local market for the Location's services and products; the prevailing wage
rate and competition. You should calculate your estimated expenses for these items based on the
anticipated costs in your market and consider whether you will need additional cash reserves. We
relied on our Parent's experience to compile these estimates. You should review these figures carefully
with your business advisor.

All amounts included in the preceding chart are exclusive of sales tax. Except as specifically
stated, these amounts may be subject to increases based on changes in market conditions, the cost of
providing services, and future policy changes. Currently, we have no plans to increase payments that

we control. We do not offer financing for any part of your initial investment. To our knowledge, none
of the fees and expenses described above are refundable.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Required Purchases

You generally have no obligation to purchase or lease from us or from our affiliates any of the
products, services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, inventory, or real estate used in establishing or
operating the Location. However, there are some exceptions, as follows:

Computer Hardware, SunLync Software and PC Configuration

You must purchase your computer hardware and license the SunLync Software through us,
and must use us to install the SunLync Software and otherwise configure your PC.

PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
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EFT Services

You must use service agreements that allow you to electronically debit your customers'
accounts for the membership fee. You must use us to provide electronic fund processing services.

Digital Support Services

You must participate in the Digital Support Services program. You will pay a monthly fee for
your participation in this program directly to us, but Archer, Inc. (“Archer”), currently provides the
services under this program. The services include a range of digital marketing services, including
internet, e-mail, and social media marketing, and digital marketing tools that will allow you to, among
other things, identify specific customer groups by their purchasing and/or frequency patterns and to
email or mail them directly.

Customer Experience Management Program

To help measure customer satisfaction and for quality control purposes, we currently use, and
require you to participate in, a program provided by a third-party vendor. This program must be
implemented within 30 days after the opening of a new or Conversion Location. Currently, Medallia is
the only approved supplier for this service. This vendor captures customer feedback across web, social,
and mobile platforms. The information that is collected is reported to both you and us. We may modify
or terminate the program, change the vendor, or replace the program at any time.

Purchases According to Specifications and/or From Approved Suppliers

You must comply with our standards and specifications for all supplies, materials, fixtures,
furnishings, equipment, and other products used in or offered for sale at the Location. If we have
approved suppliers for any item, you must obtain the item from our approved suppliers. Approved
suppliers are those who demonstrate the ability to meet our then-current standards and specifications,
who possess adequate quality controls and the capacity to supply your needs promptly and reliably,
whom we have approved in writing and whom we have not later disapproved. We may, in our sole
discretion, change the number of approved suppliers at any time and may designate ourselves, an
affiliate, or a third party as the exclusive source for any particular item. We may profit from your
purchases from approved suppliers, and we and/or our affiliates may receive payments, fees,
commissions or reimbursements from approved suppliers in respect of your purchases. However,
neither we nor our affiliates are currently approved or designated suppliers of any item, except for the
computer hardware, SunLync Software license, PC configuration services, EFT services and Digital
Support Services, as discussed above.

Booths and Solutions

You must include one or more sunless self-tanning Spray Your Way booth(s) in the design of
your Location, which must be purchased from EulessAero Components, LLC. You must purchase all
sunless solutions through New Sunshine, except Versa Pro Booth solution, which must be purchased
through Sunless, Inc.

You must equip your Location with one or more Clearlight Sanctuary 2 Full Spectrum
Infrared Sauna(s), with red light therapy, chromotherapy, and halotherapy, which must be purchased
from Tanning Supplies Unlimited. You must also purchase a ProPanel anti-aging light, and, at your
option, a LightStim Professional red light LED bed, from LightStim.
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Lotions & Spa Products

You must purchase all lotions and spa products offered and sold to your customers only from
our approved suppliers. Currently, New Sunshine, Tanning Supplies Unlimited, LightStim, and
Exotropin are the only approved suppliers of the lotions and spa products. We have introduced private
label lotions. You are not currently required to purchase and offer for sale our private label lotions at
your Location, but we may require you to do so in the future.

PBTV

You must purchase from our approved supplier a PBTV Media Player, PBTV Remote and the
PBTV Software, and pay a monthly subscription fee for the content. Currently, the approved supplier
for the PBTV media system is Salonsense Media, LLC, and the only approved supplier for content is
Archer.

Music System
You must install and use in your Locations a commercial-free music service with a minimum

of one station. Currently, the only approved suppliers for the music is uMix and AME and for the
Music hardware is Southwest Microsystems or any speaker system that supplies hallways and lobby.

Site Selection and Construction

You must locate a site for the Location that you reasonably believe conforms to our site
selection criteria. You must also obtain from us the written confirmation that we do not object to the
site before you acquire it and written confirmation that we do not object to any contract of sale or lease
for the Location before you sign it. We may object to and not approve any lease unless you and the
landlord sign an addendum to the lease that provides substantially the same terms contained in Exhibit
1 to the Site Selection Addendum (“Site Addendum”) to the Franchise Agreement or Attachment E to
the Development Agreement. You must engage an architectural service provider approved by us in
connection with the construction or remodeling of your Location, and you must adapt our prototypical
architectural and design plans as needed for the construction or remodeling of your Location. We have
the right to review your plans and must notify you of our objections within 15 days after we receive
your plans. If we do not notify you of any objections within that time, you may use the plans. If we do
object within the 15-day time period, you may not use the plans. Any objections we make will also
include a reasonably detailed list of changes that you must make for the plans to be acceptable. We
will notify you within 15 days after we receive your revised plans if they are acceptable. If we do not
object to your revised plans within the 15-day period, you may use the revised plans.

Furniture and Fixtures

You must purchase the doors, sales counter, lobby furniture, vanity, towel cabinets, room
shelves with mirrors, lotion displays, manager's desk, restroom mirrors, vinyl flooring planks, and
room number plaques for your Location from our current preferred supplier, T & R Fixtures, LLC,
Kaemark, Intersign Corporation, and Mohawk Group .
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Signs

You must purchase all interior and exterior signage for your Location from our approved
supplier.

Advertising and Promotional Materials

All of your advertising and promotions must conform to our standards and requirements. We
must approve all advertising and promotional plans and materials before you use them if we have not
prepared them or previously approved them during the 12 months preceding the date of their proposed
use. You must submit any unapproved plans and materials to us, and we will approve or disapprove
them within 20 days after we receive them. You must not use the plans or materials until we have
approved them, and you must promptly discontinue using any advertising or promotional plans or
materials, whether or not we have previously approved them, if we notify you to do so. Currently, you
must purchase advertising services, media and advertising materials through our approved marketing
vendor. Currently, Archer is the approved advertising agency of record. To obtain a lower purchase
price, we order some of these materials in bulk quantity and prepay the cost. For each purchase you
make, you will reimburse us the amount we prepaid to the vendor.

Insurance

You must obtain and maintain insurance policies protecting you and us and various related
parties against any demand or claim with respect to personal injury, death, or property damage, or any
loss, liability, or expense related to or connected with the operation of the Location. These policies
must be written by a responsible insurance carrier or carriers rated “A-" or better by the A.M. Best
Company, Inc. and that are acceptable to us. At a minimum, you must carry (i) comprehensive general
liability insurance, including broad form contractual liability, broad form property damage, personal
injury, advertising injury, completed operations, products liability, and fire damage coverage in the
amount of $1,000,000, combined single limit, or any greater amounts as your lessor may require; (ii)
“All Risks” coverage (including glass coverage) for the full replacement cost of the Location and all
other property in which we may have an interest with no coinsurance clause for the premises; (iii) an
“umbrella” policy providing excess coverage with limits of not less than $2,000,000; (iv) workers'
compensation insurance in amounts required by applicable law or, if permissible under applicable law,
employer's liability insurance with minimum limits of $500,000/500,000/500,000; and (v) any other
insurance required by the landlord or by the state or locality in which your Location is situated. All of
the policies must name us, successors, and assigns as additional insureds. You must obtain the
insurance no later than the date that you sign the lease for the Location or 90 days before the Opening
Date, whichever is earlier, and you must provide us with proof of insurance within 30 days after you
obtain the insurance.

Operational Audits

You must hire a third party contractor and use our approved audit form to evaluate the
operation of your Locations monthly.

Supplier Approval Procedure

If we require that an item be purchased from an approved supplier, and you wish to purchase it
from a supplier we have not approved, you must submit a written request to us for approval. Similarly,
if we require you to use a particular item or brand of equipment, and you wish to substitute a different
item or brand, you must request our approval in writing. You must not purchase or lease the item until
and unless we have approved the item and/or the supplier in writing. We have the right to inspect the
supplier's facilities and to have samples from the supplier delivered to us or to an independent
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laboratory we designate for testing. We may require our expenses of such inspections to be
reimbursed, either by you or the proposed supplier. As a condition of our approval of a proposed
supplier, we may require that the supplier (i) agree to sell any product bearing the Marks only to Palm
Beach Beauty & Tan franchisees and (ii) otherwise comply with our reasonable requests. We may
reinspect the facilities and products of any approved supplier and may revoke our approval upon the
supplier's failure to continue to meet any of our then-current criteria. Nothing requires us to approve
any particular supplier, and we are not required to notify you of our approval or disapproval within any
specified period of time. Our specifications and criteria for supplier approval are generally issued
through written communications and are available to franchisees and approved suppliers.

Our President and COO, Daniel Caskey owns Prodigious Management LLC (via TruLuc
Holdings, LLC), which offers bookkeeping for two Palm Beach Tan, Inc. franchisees and various
external clients. The company was founded before Mr. Caskey joined Palm Beach Tan, Inc. Except as
disclosed, none of our officers owns an interest in any privately held suppliers, or a material interest in
any publicly held suppliers, of the Palm Beach Beauty & Tan franchise system. From time to time, our
officers may own non-material interests in publicly held companies that may be suppliers to our
franchise system.

Purchasing Arrangements

In our year ending December 31, 2024, our revenue (exclusive of pass-through costs paid to
third parties) from the sale of all products and services to our franchisees was approximately $525,793
or 3.1% of our total revenue of $16,950,488.

During our 2024 fiscal year, neither we nor our affiliates received any revenue or other
material consideration or any discounts, rebates or similar payments from designated suppliers because
of their transactions with our franchisees of Locations or Legacy Locations, but we reserve the right to
do so in the future. If we receive revenues or other material consideration from future supplier
arrangements, we may, at our discretion, retain these benefits (except as otherwise required by law),
return these funds to our franchisees pro rata, or contribute these funds to the Advertising Fund.
Contribution of any such rebates or credits to the Advertising Fund will not reduce your obligation to
make the contributions to the Advertising Fund provided for in the Franchise Agreement.

We may negotiate certain purchase arrangements (including price terms) with suppliers for the
purchase of certain items, such as construction materials, tanning equipment, tanning lotions, tanning
lamps, and other supplies, that are available to franchisees. In doing so, we seek to promote the overall
interests of the franchise System and our interests as the franchisor. There are currently no purchasing
or distribution cooperatives for the System.

We estimate that the purchases described above under the Franchise Agreement will
represent approximately 55% of all the purchases necessary to establish your Location and
approximately 75% of all the purchases necessary to operate your Location.

We do not provide material benefits to franchisees based upon their use of designated or
approved suppliers.
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ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise, development and other
agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these
agreements and in other Items of this disclosure document.

Key: FA =Franchise Agreement
SA = Site Addendum to Franchise Agreement
AA = Acquisition Addendum to Franchise Agreement
DA = Development Agreement

Disclosure
Obligation Section in Agreement Document Item
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease | SA Sections I. and IL; Items 8 and 11
AA Paragraph 2.; DA Section VL
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases FA Sections VII. and VIII. Items 5, 6, 7, 8, and
11
c. Site development and other pre- FA Section II.; SA Sections I. and Items 1,5, 8, and 11
opening requirements IL.; AA Paragraphs 1., 2., 3. and
Exhibit 1; DA Section III.
d. Initial and ongoing training FA Sections V. and VI. Items 6 and 11
e. Opening FA Sections II., VI., and VIIIL.; AA Items 7 and 11
Paragraph 1.; DA Section IlI.
f. Fees FA Sections IV. and VIIIL.; DA Items 5 and 6
Section II.
g. Compliance with standards and FA Sections II., I1I., VL., VII., VIIIL., Items 8, 11, 14, and
policies/Manuals 1X., X., XI., and XII; DA Sections 16
II1., VI, VIIL and X.
h. Trademarks and proprietary FA Sections IX. and X.; DA Items 11, 13, 14, and
information Section X.; Confidentiality 15
Agreement and Ancillary
Covenants Not to Compete.
i. Restrictions on products/services FA Section VII. Items 8 and 16
offered
j.  Warranty and customer service FA Section VII. Items 8 and 16
requirements
k. Territorial development and sales DA Sections I. and III. Item 12
quotas
1. Ongoing product/service purchases | FA Section VII. Items 6 and 8
m. Maintenance, appearance, and FA Sections II., VII., and XIV. Items 8 and 11
remodeling requirements
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Obligation

Section in Agreement

Disclosure
Document Item

n. Insurance

FA Section XII.

Items 6, 7, and 8

0. Advertising

FA Section VIII.

Items 6, 8, and 11

p. Indemnification

FA Sections II. and XV.; DA
Section XI.

Item 6

q. Owner's

participation/management/staffing

FA Section VI.; DA Section V.

Items 1, 11, and 15

r. Records and reports

FA Sections IV., VL., VII., and XI.;
DA Section VII.

Items 6 and 11

s. Inspections and audits

FA Sections II., VII., and XI.

Items 6, 8, and 11

t. Transfer

FA Section XIV.; DA Section IX.

Items 6 and 17

u. Renewal or extension of rights

FA Section III.; DA Section III.

Items 6 and 17

v. Post-termination obligations

FA Section XVIII.; DA Section
VIIIL

Items 6 and 17

XVIL

w. Noncompetition covenants FA Section X.; DA Section X_; Item 17
Confidentiality Agreement and
Ancillary Covenants Not to
Compete.

x. Dispute resolution FA Section XIX.; DA Section Item 17

ITEM 10

FINANCING

Neither we nor any agent or affiliate of ours offers direct financing to you, guarantees any
note, lease or obligation of yours. Under an agreement between us and ApplePie Capital, Inc.
(“APC”), qualified Palm Beach Beauty & Tan franchisees may be eligible to obtain financing from
APC and its network of lenders. There are no standard terms for any of the financing that may be
available. You are not required to pursue financing from APC or its network of lenders. Neither we
nor our affiliates are party to any of these financing arrangements, and neither we nor our affiliates
receive any consideration for placing financing with any lender.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING
Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Obligations. Before you open your Location, we will provide, or cause the following to
be provided, to you:

1. The site selection guidelines and assistance we deem advisable. (Site Addendum to Franchise
Agreement, Section I.; Development Agreement, Section V.A.)
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When you identify a proposed site, you must submit to us a complete real estate site package
containing the information that we require, including a description of the site, evidence that the site
satisfies our site selection criteria, a copy of the proposed lease or contract of sale, and any other
information we may require (including a Real Estate Release in substantially the form of Exhibit 2 to
the Site Addendum or Attachment F to the Development Agreement). We have 30 days after we
receive this information to review and confirm to you in writing whether or not we object to the
proposed site, lease or contract of sale. (Site Addendum to Franchise Agreement, Section IL.A.;
Development Agreement, Section VI.C.)

You must identify and secure a site for your Location that you reasonably believe conforms to
our site selection criteria in the Territory (if you sign a Development Agreement) or Designated Area
(if you do not sign a Development Agreement). You cannot place a Location at a site that we have
objected to in writing. (Site Addendum to Franchise Agreement, Section II.; Development Agreement,
Section VI.C.) Your failure to present an acceptable site may result in a default under the Franchise
and Development Agreements, in which case the Franchise and Development Agreements may be
terminated; your territorial rights may be terminated, reduced, or otherwise modified; or the number of
Locations that you may establish may be reduced.

In evaluating a proposed site, we consider demographic characteristics; traffic patterns;
parking; competition from other businesses in the area; and other relevant factors. Our confirmation
that we do not object to a site does not guarantee that a Location will be profitable or successful at that
site. You have 90 days from the date we approve the Site to acquire the Site. You must provide us with
a copy of the signed contract of sale or lease, as applicable, within 10 days after it is signed. (Site
Addendum to Franchise Agreement, Section I.; Development Agreement, Section VI.C.)

You must obtain all zoning classifications, clearances, and approvals relating to the site and all
required permits, licenses, and certifications. (Franchise Agreement, Section I1.A.)

2. For your first Location, we believe the on-site evaluation is necessary. We will not charge you for
this on-site evaluation. Although we are not obligated to do so, if we provide an on-site evaluation for
subsequent Locations, you may be required to pay or reimburse our expenses. (Development
Agreement, Section V.B.)

3. Access to a set of prototypical architectural and design plans and specifications for a Location.
(Franchise Agreement, Section V.A.; Acquisition Addendum, Paragraph 3.)

4. Access to a set of the Manuals, which are currently maintained and provided to franchisees only in
electronic or online format. (Development Agreement, Section V.D. and Franchise Agreement,
Section V.B.)

5. For a fee, any proprietary or other software programs we develop or acquire for use by Locations.
We have no obligation to develop, acquire, or designate such software programs. (Franchise
Agreement, Section V.C.)

6. A list of approved suppliers. (Franchise Agreement, Section V.H.)

7. An initial training program for your Operating Principal, General Manager, and Location
Manager. (Development Agreement, Section V.C.; Franchise Agreement, Section V.1.)
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8. Pre-opening training (currently, 5 days; 2 days onsite and 3 days offsite). For your first Location,
this is provided at no charge, although you must arrange for and pay the cost of meeting space and
your employees' salaries while receiving training. For subsequent Locations, you may be required to
pay or reimburse our expenses. (Franchise Agreement, Section V.J.)

Typical Length of Time Before You Open Your Store.

We estimate that it will be approximately 3 to 7 months from the time you sign the Franchise
Agreement to the time you begin operations. This time period may be shorter or longer, depending on
the modifications that must be made to the site to accommodate your Location. You must begin
business within 210 days after signing the Franchise Agreement, unless we give you a written
extension. (Franchise Agreement, Section I1.C.)

Post-Opening Obligations. During the operation of your Location, we will provide or cause the
following to be provided to you:

1. For a fee, any proprietary or other software programs we develop or acquire for use by Locations
as described above under our Pre-Opening Obligations. (Franchise Agreement, Section V.C.)

2. Periodically, inspections and evaluations of your operations. (Franchise Agreement, Section V.D.)

3. Administration of an advertising fund and any cooperatives we authorize, and provision of any
local advertising materials we develop. (Franchise Agreement, Section V.E.)

4. Advice and written materials containing techniques for operating Locations. (Franchise
Agreement, Section V.F.)

5. At our discretion and for a reasonable cost, System merchandise for resale and décor items.
(Franchise Agreement, Section V.G.)

6. Updated lists of approved suppliers as we deem appropriate. (Franchise Agreement, Section V.H.)

7. Additional and remedial training programs. Remedial training may be provided for a reasonable
fee and reimbursement of our expenses, subject to the availability of personnel. We may also charge a
fee for additional training and for training replacement and successor personnel. You must pay all
associated costs. (Franchise Agreement, Sections V.K. and VL.G.(1).)

8. For a fee, electronic fund transfer services for your service agreement customer accounts.
(Franchise Agreement, Section V.L.)

Advertising

You must spend at least 5.5% of your Location's Gross Sales on advertising, but you may
spend more than that amount. Initially, you must spend 3.5% of Gross Sales on local advertising and
contribute 2% of Gross Sales to the System advertising fund (“Fund”). We may reallocate the portion
of advertising expenditures directed to local advertising (individually or through a cooperative) and to
the Fund. (Franchise Agreement, Section VIII.A.) We and our affiliates will contribute to the Fund
generally on the same basis as you do for Locations that we or they operate. Not all franchisees are or
will be required to contribute, or contribute the same percentage of Gross Sales, to the Fund.

You must participate in certain local marketing programs (including any test marketing
programs we authorize), the cost of which may be included in your required 3.5% local advertising
expenditure. We may revise, substitute, or eliminate any of these programs at any time.
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You must report on your local advertising expenditures with reports submitted to us within 15
days following the end of each fiscal quarter. You cannot include expenditures for any of the
following to satisfy your local advertising expenditure requirement: (i) incentive programs for your
employees or agents; (ii) nonmedia promotional costs; (iii) charitable, political, or other contributions
or donations; (iv) in-store fixtures or equipment; or (v) grand opening expenses. (Franchise
Agreement, Section VIIL.B.)

We can designate any geographic area in which 2 or more company-owned or franchised
Locations are located by at least 2 different owners as a region for an advertising cooperative
(“Cooperative”). If we do, the Cooperative must be organized and governed as we determine, and we
may change, dissolve, or merge the Cooperative at our discretion. Any Cooperatives we authorize will
be for the exclusive purpose of administering advertising programs and developing promotional
materials for members in local advertising. If a Cooperative is established for an area that includes the
market area in which your Location is located, you automatically become a member of the
Cooperative, must sign the Cooperative's governing documents, and are obligated to participate in the
Cooperative by contributing the amounts required by its governing documents. However, you will not
be required to contribute more than the amount you would otherwise be required to spend on local
advertising, and your Cooperative contribution will be applied toward satisfaction of your local
advertising requirement. You must also submit to the Cooperative and to us all statements and reports
that we or the Cooperative may require. Cooperative contributions will be maintained and
administered under the Cooperative's governing documents, and the Cooperative will be operated
solely as a conduit for the collection and expenditure of advertising contributions. (Franchise
Agreement, Section VIII.C.) In 2008 we established an advertising Cooperative. As of January 1,
2025, franchisees of Legacy Locations in 2 markets (Portland, Oregon and Cleveland, Ohio) are
participating in the Cooperative. Franchisees in the Portland market have agreed to contribute 3.8% of
Gross Sales to the Cooperative and franchisees in the Cleveland market have agreed to contribute
3.5% of Gross Sales to the Cooperative. We may require you to contribute a portion of your total
advertising assessment to the Cooperative if and when we implement the Cooperative in your market.
We will not prepare financial statements for any Cooperative that has been formed or might be formed,
and, therefore, financial statements for any Cooperative will not be available for review.

We or someone we designate will administer the Fund. We may cause the Fund to be
incorporated or operated through a separate entity at such time as we deem appropriate, and such
successor entity will have all of the same rights and duties regarding the Fund as we have under the
Franchise Agreement. We will direct all advertising programs, including the creative concepts,
materials, and media used in the programs. We may use the Fund to satisfy the costs of maintaining,
administering, directing, preparing, and producing advertising and to conduct market research. This
includes the costs associated with developing, maintaining, and updating our Website, Mobile App and
digital and social media platforms; preparing, producing, and placing television, radio, magazine, and
content for digital media tactics; direct mail and outdoor billboard advertising; public relations
activities; and employing advertising agencies; and the costs of our personnel and other departmental
costs for advertising that we administer or prepare internally. We are not required to make
expenditures for you that are equivalent or proportionate to your Fund contribution or to ensure that
any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from the placement of advertising. Not all of our
franchisees are, or will be, required to contribute to the Fund and some franchisees may be required to
contribute different percentages of Gross Sales to the Fund than you. Except for a portion of the Fund
spent on Website development and maintenance (a portion of which may include soliciting the sale of
franchises using the Website), the Fund is not used to solicit the sale of franchises.
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We anticipate that Fund advertising will be conducted primarily through electronic or digital
media on a regional or national basis, and that the majority of our advertising will be developed by our
marketing vendor. We sponsor a Franchisee Advisory Council that meets periodically with us to
discuss and make recommendations concerning certain operational and marketing strategies. The
Advisory Council is not an advertising council and has no authority to impose changes or establish
policies on our behalf. The Advisory Council is currently made up of corporate representatives and
representatives of the franchisee body as elected by the franchisee body and that we appoint. We have
the right to change or dissolve the Advisory Council.

We will not use your Fund contributions to defray any of our operating expenses, except for
such reasonable salaries, administrative costs, travel expenses and overhead that we may incur in
administering or directing the Fund. We may spend on behalf of the Fund, in any fiscal year an amount
greater or less than the aggregate contribution of all Locations to the Fund in that year, and the Fund
may borrow from us or others to cover deficits or invest any surplus for future use. All interest earned
on monies contributed to the Fund will be used to pay advertising costs before other assets of the Fund
are expended. We will prepare an annual statement of the Fund's operations and will make it available
to you if you request it. We are not required to have the Fund statements audited. The Fund may also
be used to cover costs of supporting certain trade organizations and participating in trade organization
events.

Fund contributions that are not spent in the year in which they accrue are carried over to
succeeding years. We reserve the right to defer or reduce contributions and, upon 30 days' prior written
notice, to reduce or suspend contributions to and operations of the Fund for one or more periods of any
length and to terminate (and, if terminated, to reinstate) the Fund (and, if suspended, deferred or
reduced, to reinstate such contributions). We will not terminate the Fund, however, until all money in
the Fund has been spent for advertising or promotional purposes or returned to the contributors on the
basis of their respective contributions. (Franchise Agreement, Section VIIL.D.(6))

The following is a percentage breakdown of the use of the Fund for our 2024 fiscal year:

Production 4%
Media Placement 53%
Administration (Creative, Digital, Social) 36%
Tools and Software 7%
TOTAL 100%

If we establish and conduct any promotional campaigns on a national or regional basis you
must participate in such promotional campaigns upon such terms and conditions as we may establish,
and you must purchase reasonable point of sale advertising and other promotional materials as
required to participate in such campaigns.

All advertising and promotions that you place in any medium must be conducted
professionally, conform to our standards and requirements, and be preapproved by us before you place
them and be managed by our approved vendor(s), as described in Item 8. (Franchise Agreement,
Section VIII.G.). You may not advertise, promote, post, or list information relating to the Location on
the Internet (through the creation of, or participation in, a Website, social media profile or presence of
any kind or otherwise without the express written approval of the Company), unless we decide to
include information about your Location on our Website. You must comply with our social media
policy for franchisees, and we may change our policy over time.
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Computer and Electronic Cash Register Systems

You must purchase, use, and maintain, at your expense, a computer system that meets our
standards and specifications. (Franchise Agreement, Section VILF.) At a minimum, you must have
(1) 2 computers, each with equipment and capabilities meeting our standards and specifications for,
among other things, processing speed, Internet connectivity, memory, keyboard and monitor, and the
SunLync Software program (described below); (ii) a printer meeting our standards; (iii) a cash drawer;
(iv) a receipt printer; (v) electronic documents software for customer membership documents
(currently, Microsoft Word); (vi) firewall; (vii) router; (viii) electronic signature pad; (ix) EMV Chip
Card reader; and (x) copies of Deskman security management software, VNC Software, and SunLync
Software (described below). Your computer system must also include a broadband internet connection
allowing direct access and communication between our and your computer systems and other
computer hardware, all of which we will designate and approve. We will have the right to access and
use the information stored on your computer in any manner we deem appropriate. There is no
contractual limitation on our right to independently access the information on your computer system.
Upon a breach of the Franchise Agreement by you, we may suspend your access to information
regarding the Location's customers and all or any portion of the electronic cash register systems/point
of sale systems and any other computer systems used to operate the Location until such breach is cured
to our reasonable satisfaction. You must purchase the items described in this paragraph from us. We
estimate that the cost of the computer system and related items described in this paragraph will be
approximately $6,378 to $9,681. This amount includes (i) a fee of $600 per Location to configure
your PC, which includes installation of the SunLync Software and (ii) a software license fee of $1,300
per Location for the SunLync Software and a software license fee of $60 per system ($120 to $180 for
2 to 3 systems) for the Deskman security management software, both of which you must license from
us.

We will install VNC Software on your computer system at the time of configuration to allow us
to communicate with your PCs.

You will use the SunLync Software to provide point-of-sale support, inventory control,
membership monitoring, marketing, and tanning bed control. This software also tracks revenues and
hourly employee information. You will license the SunLync Software from us. The software license
agreement requires us to provide updates to the software at no additional charge and certain software
support and requires you to pay us a monthly computer support fee, which is currently $300 per month
per Location. To fulfill our support obligations, we provide a toll-free consultation line and limited
back-office support.

You must also have and maintain adequate hardware and software to access the Internet at the
bit speed we require. (Franchise Agreement, Section VII.G.)

You must install any other hardware or software for the operation of the Location that we may
require in the future, including any enhancements, additions, substitutions, modifications, and
upgrades, and if applicable, you may be required to obtain different and/or additional support services
in connection with such enhancements, additions, substitutions, modifications, and upgrades. There is
no contractual limitation on the frequency or cost of these obligations.

Except as described above, neither we, our affiliates, nor any third parties are required to
provide ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades, or updates to your computer system. Except as
described above, there are no optional or required maintenance/upgrade contracts for the point-of-sale
or computer system.
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Confidential Operations Manuals

After you sign the Franchise Agreement, we will provide you access to our Manuals, which
may be in partially or wholly online accessed through the systems described below. A copy of the
table of contents of the Manuals is attached as Attachment B. The Manuals consist of a total of 230
pages. We consider the contents of the Manuals to be proprietary, and you must treat them as
confidential. You may not make any copies of the Manuals.

Training

Your Operating Principal must successfully complete to our satisfaction our franchisee
orientation program before the execution of any Franchise Agreement. Before opening your first
Location, your Operating Principal or General Manager must successfully and satisfactorily complete
our initial franchisee training program. After executing each Franchise Agreement, but before the
Opening Date of each Location, your Location Manager must attend our management training
program. As soon as you establish a training store that we have certified, you will train all of your
Location Managers using a training program that we designate, and you will no longer be required to
send your Location Managers to our offices for training.

We conduct our franchisee orientation program, franchisee-training program and management
training program at our office in Irving, Texas, and/or another location that we designate. The
mandatory franchisee orientation program lasts 2 days, the mandatory franchisee training program
lasts 4 weeks, and the mandatory initial management training program lasts 25 shifts. In addition, we
will administer a pre-opening training program for your store-level employees for your first Location
opening. This program is 5 days (2 days onsite and 3 days offsite). Instructional materials include the
Operations Manual, Workbooks, videos, and classroom instruction.

Our training is administered and directed by Roy Sneed, whose experience is described in
Item 2 of this disclosure document. Each of our trainers has extensive training experience and several
years of experience with us. We also draw upon the relevant experience of our management
personnel, as well as other employees.

Our training programs are offered as needed during the year, depending on the number of
new franchisees entering the System, the number of other personnel needing training, and the
scheduled opening of new Locations. The subjects covered and other information relevant to our
training programs are described below:

TRAINING PROGRAM

Franchisee Orientation Program (V®

Hours of Hours of .
Subject Classroom On-The-Job Location
Training Training
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Site Selection Process 1 hour -- and/or other location we
designate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Maximizing Profitability 1 hour -- and/or other location we
designate
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Hours of Hours of .
Subject Classroom On-The-Job Location
Training Training
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Design/Construction Process 1.5 hours -- and/or other location we
designate
. . Our office in Irving, Texas,
](E?on§ tructlton Materials and 1 hour -- and/or other location we
quipmen designate
Recruiting/Employee Our office in Irvmg, Texas,
1 hour -- and/or other location we
Profiles .
designate
. Our office in Irving, Texas,
Lo(cl‘,elt;uon Tour, Sales Book, 1 hour . and/or other location we
and Programs designate
Administrative, Customer Olg/Ofﬁcﬁ 1nler1I.1g, Texas,
Service, Back Office 2 hours - and/or other location we
Systems, and POS Overview designate
Trainine. Devel ¢ and Our office in Irving, Texas,
raining, LUevelopment, an 45 minutes - and/or other location we
Tanning Certification desi
esignate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Key Vendors 45 minutes -- and/or other location we
designate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Palm Beach Tan Tools, . '8
. 45 minutes -- and/or other location we
Manuals, and Ordering .
designate
) . Our office in Irving, Texas,
Marketlng,.Grand Op cening, 2.5 hours - and/or other location we
and Operations Overview desi
esignate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Accounting Overview 1 hours -- and/or other location we
designate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Regulatory Issues 15 minutes -- and/or other location we
designate
How to Create a Selling Our office in Irving, Texas,
Environment (Utilizing 1 hour . and/or other location we
Goals, Bonuses, and designate
Commissions)
Total Hours 15.5 hours h
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Franchisee Training Program V®

Hours of Hours of
Subject Classroom On-The-Job Location
Training Training

Our office in Irving, Texas,
Operations Manual 1 hour -- and/or other location we

designate

s . Our office in Irving, Texas,
ﬁzg;Ung g? crations 8 hours ©® - and/or other location we
geme designate

Our office in Irving, Texas,
Reporting Tools 4 hours ©® -- and/or other location we

designate

Our office in Irving, Texas,
Back Office and . 4 hours © - and/or other location we
Administrative Functions .

designate

Our office in Irving, Texas,
Tanning Certification 4-8 hours W -- and/or other location we

designate
Customer Service/Proper Our office in Irvigg, Texas,
Equipment/Sanitization/ -- 35 hours @ an/or other location we
Cleaning Procedures esignate

Our office in Irving, Texas,
Palm Beach Tan Sales . 35 hours® | @nd/or other location we
Techniques and Marketing designate

Our office in Irving, Texas,
POS Computer Operations -- 20 hours® | and/or other location we

designate

Our office in Irving, Texas,
Location Administration, N 20 hours® and/or other location we
Personnel, and Management designate

Our office in Irving, Texas,
Equipment Operations -- 10 hours® and/ or other location we

designate
Total Hours 21-25 hours 120 hours -
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Initial Management Training Program

Hours of Hours of
Subject Classroom On-The-Job Location
Training Training
Customer Service/Proper Our office in Irving, Texas,
Equipment/Sanitization/ -- 67 hours © | and/or other location we
Cleaning Procedures designate
Palm Beach Tan Sales o Our office in IrV1gg, Texas,
. . -- 35 hours and/or other location we
Techniques and Marketing .
designate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
POS Computer Operations - 28 hours® | and/or other location we
designate
Location Administration, ©) Our office in IrV1r.1g, Texas,
-- 60 hours and/or other location we
Personnel, and Management .
designate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Equipment Operations -- 10 hours® | and/or other location we
designate
Our office in Irving, Texas,
Tanning Certification 4-8 hours® - and/or other location we
designate
Total Hours: ¥ 4-8 hours 200 hours --

5 Day Pre-Opening Training Program

Hours of Hours of
Subject Classroom On-The-Job Location
Training Training
Orientation 1 hours® A location we designate
Customer Service 2 hours® A location we designate
Tanning Memberships 2 hours® A location we designate
Equipment 1 hours® A location we designate
Tanning Certification 4-8 hours™® A location we designate
SunLync 1 hour® 5 hours® A location we designate
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Hours of Hours of
Subject Classroom On-The-Job Location
Training Training
Location Tour 1 hour® 5 hours® A location we designate
Product and Memberships 3 hours® 5 hours® A location we designate
Sunless Tanning 2 hours® 5 hours® A location we designate
Total Hours® 17-21 hours 20 hours -
Notes:

1. Our training programs are subject to change without notice to reflect updates in the
materials, methods, manuals, and changes in personnel. The subjects taught and the time
periods allocated for each subject may vary, based on the experience of the people being
trained. The materials used in training include our Manuals, workbooks, slides and
lectures.

2. To be attended by all back office personnel we designate.

3. To be attended by General Manager.

4. Dependent on state requirements.

5. Practiced in store and at our corporate headquarters for four weeks.

6. Practiced in store for 25 shifts.

7. Average shift of eight hours.

8. To be held at a local hotel or other appropriate meeting space.

9. To be practiced in the franchised Location before opening.

If your Operating Principal, General Manager, and Location Manager, as applicable, do not
satisfactorily complete the required training programs, you must cure the default within 90 days after
we notify you, or we may terminate your Development or Franchise Agreement. (Development
Agreement, Section VI.B.(1); Franchise Agreement, Section VI.G.(2))

Any replacement or successor Operating Principal, General Manager, or Location Manager
who you later designate must also satisfactorily complete our required training program. We have the
right to charge a reasonable fee for the initial training we provide to any replacement or successor
Operating Principal, General Manager, or Location Manager. (Development Agreement, Section
VILB.(1); Franchise Agreement, Section VI.G.(1))
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We may require your Operating Principal, General Manager, and Location Manager to attend
additional training programs. We have the right to charge a reasonable fee for additional training.
(Development Agreement, Section VI.B.(1); Franchise Agreement, Section VI.G.(1))

You are responsible for all expenses that you and your personnel incur for any training
program, whether initial or additional, including costs of travel, lodging, meals, and wages.
(Development Agreement, Section VI.B.(1); Franchise Agreement, Section VI.G.(1))

With our consent and subject to our certification procedures and standards, you must
implement a training program for all employees of the Locations developed under the Development
Agreement. (Development Agreement, Section VI.B.(2)) Our certification process includes the formal
rollout and implementation of our corporate training program for the franchise markets.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive or protected territory. You may face competition from other
franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that
we control.

Franchise Agreement

The Franchise Agreement gives you the right to operate a Location at the Site we approve.
You must select the site for your Location from within a geographic area that we call your Designated
Area and that is described in Attachment A to the Franchise Agreement. If you sign a Development
Agreement, the Designated Area will correspond to the Territory, as described in the Development
Agreement. The Designated Area is not exclusive or protected for any purpose except to the extent and
for the term provided in the Development Agreement, if applicable, and there are no restrictions on our
right to solicit or accept business from consumers inside the Designated Area without paying any
compensation to you.

You must operate the Location only at the Site identified in your Franchise Agreement. You
cannot relocate your Location without our prior written consent. If you lose possession of the Site
through no fault of your own, you may apply to us for our approval to relocate your Location to
another site within the Designated Area. If we consent, you must comply with our reasonable site
selection and construction procedures. Our consent to any relocation will be based on various factors,
including the proposed site's demographic characteristics, traffic patterns and parking, competition
from other businesses in the area, and other relevant factors. You may not solicit or accept business
from consumers outside your Designated Area through any means, including use of other channels of
distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing.

The franchise is only for a Location at the Site and does not give you any rights to operate the
Location or to offer and sell any of the products or services described in the Franchise Agreement at or
from any location other than the Site. We and our affiliates can operate and can grant franchises to
others to operate Locations under the Marks (or under other trade names, service marks and
trademarks) at any location other than your Site. These outlets may compete with your Location.

In addition, we and our affiliates can offer and sell, and can give others the right to offer and
sell any similar or dissimilar products and services (under the Marks or under other marks), through
any other channel or method of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or other
direct marketing, on any terms and conditions we deem appropriate. Among other things, this means
that we and our affiliates may:
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(i) Grant other licenses for use of the System and the Marks,

(i1) Develop and establish other business systems using the Marks, or other names or marks,
and to grant licenses to use those systems without providing any rights to you,

(ii1) Advertise and promote the System without restriction,

(iv) Operate, and license others to operate, retail tanning stores under the Marks, or under
other names or marks, at any location other than the Site, and

(v) Engage, directly or indirectly, at wholesale, retail, or otherwise, in the production,
distribution, operation, license, and sale of tanning products and services under the Marks, or under
other marks through any method of distribution, including, Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or
other direct marketing, and other tanning facilities regardless of the proximity to, or the competitive
impact on, your Location, without compensation to you.

Development Agreement

If we enter into a Development Agreement with you, we will grant you a Territory under the
Development Agreement, which we determine before you sign the Development Agreement based on
various market and economic factors like market demographics, the penetration of Locations and
similar businesses in the market, the availability of appropriate sites, and growth trends in the market.
The Territory may be all or a portion of a city, a single or multi-county area, or some other area, and
will be described in Attachment D to the Development Agreement.

You must develop Locations in the Territory under the Development Schedule in Section III.
of the Development Agreement. You and we agree to the Development Schedule before signing the
Development Agreement. If you stop operating any Location during the term of the Development
Agreement, you must develop a replacement Location within a reasonable time after you stop
operating the original Location. If you transfer your interest in a Location during the term of the
Development Agreement, in compliance with the related Franchise Agreement for the Location, the
transferred Location will continue to be counted in determining whether you have complied with the
Development Schedule, unless the transferred Location is no longer operated as a Location. In that
case, you must develop a replacement Location within a reasonable time after the transferred Location
ceases to be operated as a Location. Your default under the Development Agreement will not be a
default under any Franchise Agreement, unless the default is also a default under that Franchise
Agreement.

If you comply with the Development Agreement and any other agreements that you or your
affiliates have with us or our affiliates, then we and our affiliates will not establish, or authorize
anyone except you to establish, a Location in the Territory during the term of the Development
Agreement. We retain all other rights. Among other things, this means we can conduct activities in the
Territory like those described above in relation to the Designated Area under the Franchise Agreement
(except for establishing or authorizing someone else except you to establish a Location in the
Territory) without compensating you.

Additional Considerations

In addition, and regardless of the protections applicable to the Territory (if applicable), we or
our affiliates may establish and operate, and may license others to establish and operate, tanning stores
as Locations (including Legacy Locations) in the Territory, if we or they acquire the stores as part of
the acquisition of an existing tanning store business operating, at the time of acquisition, under a
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different name or mark. We will notify you in writing of each such acquisition in the Territory within a
reasonable period of time after the acquisition is completed. If the offer would not violate any law or
contract right and if you meet our then-current requirements for a new franchisee, then we will offer
you the option, exercisable in writing within 60 days after you receive our notice, to purchase each
tanning store in the Territory at a price calculated according to the formula in the Development
Agreement. Unless otherwise agreed, the purchase price must be paid in cash at closing, and closing
must take place within 60 days after the date on which we or our affiliate receive notice that you have
exercised your option. At closing, you must pay all applicable fees, and we and you will enter into our
then-current form of franchise agreement for the operation of each of the stores you purchase. Your
failure to exercise this purchase option in writing within the 60-day option period will constitute an
election not to exercise your purchase option.

If you fail to comply with the Development Schedule, or otherwise materially default under
the Development Agreement, then we may (in addition to our other remedies) terminate or modify
your territorial rights, reduce the area of territorial rights, or reduce the number of Locations that you
may establish.

If we enter into a Development Agreement with you and if you comply with the Development
Agreement and each Franchise Agreement signed under it and you are otherwise financially and
operationally qualified to develop and operate additional Locations in the Territory (as determined by
us), then, for 5 years after the Development Agreement expires, we will provide you with a right of
first offer to develop any additional Locations that may be developed in the Territory. We will give
you written notice of the number of Locations to be developed and the development schedule. You
will have 30 days after you receive the notice to exercise your right of first offer by (i) giving us
written notice of your intent to exercise the right, (ii) paying us our then-current development fee, and
(iii) executing our then-current form of development agreement.

Except as described above, continuation of any territorial exclusivity does not depend on the
achievement of a certain sales volume, market penetration, or other contingency, and we may not alter
your Territory.

You may use the Internet to advertise on our Palm Beach Beauty & Tan website only in
compliance with the Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 13

TRADEMARKS

The Franchise Agreement gives you a license to operate the Palm Beach Beauty & Tan
Location under the mark “Palm Beach Beauty & Tan” and to use any other Mark that we authorize.
The Development Agreement does not grant any rights to use, or interest in, the Marks.

Our Parent has registered the following Marks with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office (“USPTO”) and has renewed or intends to renew the registrations and has filed all appropriate
affidavits:
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Mark Register Registration Registration Owner of
Number Date Marks
Palm Beach Principal 1,918,556 09/12/95 Parent
Tan
Palm Tree Principal 2,039,168 02/18/97 Parent
Design
The Tanning Principal 3,810,526 06/29/10 Parent
Experts
Stay & Save Principal 3,579,877 02/24/09 Parent
Palm Beach
Tan Premier Principal 4,772,666 07/14/15 Parent
Rewards
ABetter Shade | i ooy 4,782,096 07/28/15 Parent
of You
Join Us Tan Principal 4,789,120 08/11/15 Parent
Wisely
Diamond & Principal 4,858,964 11/24/15 Parent
Design
Premier
Collection & Principal 4,896,368 02/02/16 Parent
Design
Palm Beach
Tan A Better Principal 5,050,386 09/27/16 Parent
Shade of You &
PBT A Better
Shade of You & Principal 5,078,519 11/08/16 Parent
Design
Tan A Friend Principal 5,345,791 11/28/17 Parent
Thursday
PBT One Principal 5,447,369 4/17/18 Parent
Midnight Principal 5,628,741 12/11/18 Parent
Emerald
Premier Principal 5,925,007 12/3/19 Parent
Collection &
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Mark Register Registration Registration Owner of
Number Date Marks
Diamond Prism P
: Principal 6,033,820 4/14/20 Parent
Premier
Scarlet Premier .
; Principal 6,142,969 9/1/20 Parent
Collection
Premier Principal 6,606,691 01/04/22 Parent
Collection
Premier o
Collection Spray Principal 6,601,128 03/01/22
Parent
Your Way &
Design
Premier Principal 6,733,546 5/24/22 Parent
Rewards
Amethyst
Premier Principal 6,945,471 1/10/23
Collection & Parent
Design
Try Your Tan Principal 7,089,551 06/27/23 Parent
PBT Principal 7,159,926 09/12/23 Parent
My PBT (and o
Design) Principal 7,198,721 10/24/23 Parent
L'ObsidienneX Parent 7,348,994 04/02/24 Parent
Black Label Parent
Sunless & Principal 7,503,340 09/10/24
Design
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Mark Register Registration Registration Owner of
Number Date Marks
Wellness .
o Principal 7,431,402 07/02/22 Parent
Within

Our Parent has filed applications for registration on the Principal Register of the USPTO for
the marks described in the following chart. There are no federal registrations for these marks;
therefore, these marks do not have many legal benefits and rights as Federally registered trademarks.
If our Parent's right to use any of these marks is challenged, you may have to change to an alternative

mark(s), which may increase your expenses.

Mark Applicant Application Application Date
Number
RLT Supreme Parent 98/705630 08/19/24
See Yourself in A Parent 98/837880 11/05/24
New Light
Restorative
Benefits of Red Parent 98/653660 07/17/24
Light
Palm Beach Parent 98/202099 09/28/23
Beauty & Tan
Palm Beach
Beauty & Tan (& Parent 98/202032 9/28/23
Design)
Palm Beach
Beauty & Tan (& Parent 98/202067 9/28/23
Design)
(STACKED)
PBT Personalized Parent 97/603153 09/22/22
Beauty Therapy
Palm Beagh Tan Parent 97/604689 09/23/22
Personalized
Beauty Therapy
Crystal Sunshine Parent 97/678147 11/15/22
L'Obsidienne Parent 98/069340 07/03/23
RLT Supreme Parent 98/705630 08/19/24
See Yourself in A Parent 98/837880 11/05/24
New Light
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Mark Applicant Application Application Date
Number
Restorative
Benefits of Red Parent 98/653660 07/17/24
Light

There is no presently effective determination of the USPTO, the trademark trial and appeal
board, the trademark administrator of any state or any court, nor any pending infringement,
opposition, or cancellation proceeding, nor any pending material litigation involving the Marks that is
relevant to its ownership, use or licensing.

In addition, we or our Parent are aware of tanning salon owners who previously used the
mark “Palm Beach Tan,” or similar marks for tanning services. We do not believe that the operators of
these salons own any federal or state registrations for any marks that are similar to our Marks or any
superior rights to us or our Parent.

Except for the uses described in the preceding paragraphs, we are not aware of superior prior
rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the Marks and of no agreements
currently in effect that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of the Marks in any
manner material to the franchise. We are not obligated to protect your rights to use the Marks or to
protect you against claims of infringement or unfair competition.

Our rights to the Marks and the proprietary System know-how are derived from a non-
exclusive perpetual license between us and our Parent (the “Intercompany License”). In the license,
our Parent grants us the right to use the Marks and the know-how for the purpose of licensing such
Marks to our franchisees and fulfilling our obligations under the Franchise Agreement. The license is
terminable only for material breach of the license agreement and only if we do not cure or begin to
cure the breach within 90 days after notice. We know of no other agreements currently in effect that
significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of the Marks in any manner material to you.

You must immediately notify us of any infringement of the Marks or of any challenge to the
use of any of the Marks or claim by any person of any rights in any of the Marks. You and your
Controlling Principals must agree not to communicate with any person other than us, any designated
affiliate, and our or their counsel about any such infringement, challenge, or claim. We or our affiliate
have sole discretion to take any action that we deem appropriate and the right to exclusively control
any litigation, or USPTO (or other) proceeding, arising out of any infringement, challenge, or claim
concerning any of the Marks. You must sign all instruments and documents and give us any
assistance that, in our counsel's opinion may be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our
interests or those of our affiliate in any such litigation or proceeding or to otherwise protect and
maintain our or their interest in the Marks. We are not obligated to participate in your defense and/or
indemnify you for expenses or damages if you are party to an administrative or judicial proceeding
involving the Marks if the proceeding is resolved unfavorable to you.

You may not use any of the Marks as part of your corporate name, assumed name, trade
name, domain name, or other name. You must also follow our instructions for identifying yourself as
an operator and for filing and maintaining the requisite trade name or fictitious name registrations.
You must sign any documents that we or our counsel determine are necessary to obtain protection for
the Marks or to maintain their continued validity and enforceability. Neither you nor your Controlling
Principals may take any action that would prejudice or interfere with the validity of our or our
affiliate's rights with respect to the Marks and may not contest the validity of our or our affiliate's
interest in the Marks or assist others to do so.
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We have the right to substitute different trade names, service marks, trademarks, and indicia
of origin for the Marks if the Marks can no longer be used or if we determine, in our sole discretion,
that the substitution will be beneficial to the System. If we do, we may require you to discontinue or
modify your use of any Mark or use one or more additional or substitute Marks at your expense.

ITEM 14

PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no patents or pending patent applications material to the franchise.

We claim copyright protection and proprietary rights in the original materials used in the
System, including our Manuals, bulletins, newsletters, training, advertising and promotional
materials, and other written materials relating to the operation of Locations and the products offered
as part of the System.

There is no presently effective determination of the U.S. Copyright Office (Library of
Congress) or any court affecting our copyrights. There is no currently effective agreement that limits
our right to use and/or license our copyrights. We are not obligated by the Franchise Agreement, or
otherwise, to protect any rights that you have to use the copyrights. We have no actual knowledge of
any infringements that could materially affect the ownership, use or licensing of the copyrights.

We treat all of this information as trade secrets and you must treat any of this information we
communicate to you confidentially. You and your Controlling Principals must agree not to
communicate or use our confidential information for the benefit of anyone else during and after the
term of the Development and Franchise Agreements. You and your Controlling Principals must also
agree not to use our confidential information at all after those Agreements terminate or expire. You
and your Controlling Principals can give this confidential information only to your employees who
need it to operate the Location. You must have your General Manager sign similar covenants and, if
we request, any owner who does not sign as a Controlling Principal and any other personnel who
have access to our confidential information.

You and we will jointly own all right, title and interest in and to all customer lists and
customer information regarding all past and present customers of the Location (collectively,
“Customer Information”). However, if the Franchise Agreement is terminated following any default
by you, and we exercise our right to acquire all or some of your furnishings, equipment, signs,
fixtures, supplies, materials or other assets or we exercise our right to assume your lease or sublease
for the premises of the Location as permitted under the Franchise Agreement, your rights in the
Customer Information will automatically terminate and you must immediately deliver all Customer
Information in your possession to us, and we will be the sole owner of all Customer Information. For
Conversion Locations, Customer Information includes information regarding customers of your
business prior to and after its conversion to a Location. We may use the Customer Information in
perpetuity for any purpose whatsoever without compensation to you.

If you, your employees or your Controlling Principals develop any new concept, process or
improvement relating to the Location, you must promptly notify us and give us all necessary
information, without compensation. These concepts, processes or improvements will become our
property, and we may use or disclose it to other operators, as we determine appropriate.
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ITEM 15

OBLIGATION TO
PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

When you sign the Development Agreement (if applicable) and Franchise Agreement, you
must designate an individual whom we approve to serve as your “Operating Principal”. Your
Operating Principal must have an ownership interest in you and be a Controlling Principal. You may
also designate another individual whom we approve and who may, but need not be, one of your
owners, to serve as your “General Manager” provided that you and the Operating Principal remain
fully responsible for the General Manager's performance. You must vest the Operating Principal and
General Manager with enough decision making authority to expedite the determinations and decisions
that are essential to effective and efficient development and operation of your Location(s).

Your Operating Principal or General Manager must devote his or her full time and best efforts
to the fulfillment of your obligations under the Development Agreement (if applicable) and Franchise
Agreement and may not engage in any other business or activity that may conflict with your
obligations under the Franchise Agreement. Unless otherwise approved by us, the Operating Principal
and General Manager must be the same individual for all Franchise Agreements signed in accordance
with the Development Agreement between you (or your affiliate) and us and the same as the Operating
Principal and the General Manager designated under the Development Agreement. Your Operating
Principal must sign the Franchise Agreement and individually make certain covenants in the Franchise
Agreement and must also personally guarantee your performance under the Franchise Agreement.
Your Operating Principal and General Manager must satisfy our training requirements and other
standards.

You must notify us promptly if your Operating Principal or General Manager cannot continue
to serve or is no longer qualified. Failure to maintain these supervisory personnel is an event of
default, and you will have 30 days from the date of the notice to take corrective action.

At least 60 days before the Location opens for business under a Franchise Agreement you
must designate a Location Manager. Your Location Manager must satisfy our qualifications and
devote full time and best efforts to the day-to-day operation of your Location.

Your General Manager and any other personnel we request must sign confidentiality
covenants and, unless we authorize you to omit it, a covenant not to compete. These covenants will be
in substantially the form of Attachment C to the Franchise Agreement and Attachment B to the
Development Agreement. Those of your owners who are not signing the Agreements as Controlling
Principals also must sign these covenants.

If, during the term of the Franchise Agreement, you or any Controlling Principal employs, as a
tanning salon manager or any position above the level of a tanning salon manager, any individual
who is at the time or was within the preceding 30 days, employed as a tanning salon manager or in
any position above the level of tanning salon manager, by us or any of our affiliates, or by any other
Palm Beach Beauty & Tan franchisee or developer, then you and the Controlling Principals will pay
the former employer of such individual an amount equal to the reasonable costs and expenses, of
whatever nature or kind, incurred by the former employer in connection with the training of such
employee.
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ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

All products that you use or offer for sale at your Locations must comply with our standards
and specifications. Our standards and specifications are described in the Manuals.

Without limiting the above, you must adhere to our standards, specifications, and other
requirements for the acceptance and maintenance of customers or members of the Location, including
the use of service agreements providing for EFT memberships. Under our current policies, our
franchisees must offer a money back guarantee on all products and services. You must comply with
our standards and policies regarding pricing. We reserve the right, to the fullest extent allowed by
applicable law, to establish maximum, minimum or other pricing requirements with respect to the
prices you may charge for products or services, whether offered nationwide or within a particular
market.

You must offer and sell all and only the products and services that we have expressly
approved for sale. You must not deviate from our standards and specifications without our prior
written consent. At no time will you allow any part of the premises of the Location to be used for any
immoral or illegal purpose. You must discontinue selling and offering for sale any products or
services that we may disapprove in writing. There are no contractual limitations on our right to
approve or disapprove products and services offered by Locations.

You must require that all advertising and promotional materials, signs, decorations, paper
goods (including all forms and stationery used in the Location), and other items that we designated
must bear the Marks in the form, color, location, and manner we prescribe.

You may not advertise, promote, post, or list information relating to the Location on the
Internet (through the creation of a Website or otherwise), unless we decide to include information
about your Location on our Website. We may, but are not obligated to, include an interior page(s) on
our Website containing information about your Location(s). We may require you to prepare such
page(s) at your expense using our template, and upon your breach of a Franchise Agreement,
Development Agreement or any other agreement with us or our aftiliates we may disable or terminate
your interior page(s) (and remove any references to your Location(s) from the Website) until such
breach is cured.

We do not impose any other restrictions on the goods or services that you may offer or sell or
the customers to whom you may offer or sell.
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ITEM 17

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER
AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement. You should
read these provisions in the agreement attached to this disclosure document.

Provision Section in Summary
Franchise
Agreement
a. Length of the franchise Section III.A. 10-year initial term.
term
b. Renewal or extension of | Section IIL.B. One 10-year renewal term.
the term
¢. Requirements for Section III.B. Your renewal right permits you to remain as a
franchisee to renew or franchisee after the initial term of your franchise
extend agreement expires. However, to remain a franchisee,
you must meet all required conditions to renewal,
including signing our then-current form of franchise
agreement, which may be materially different than the
form attached to this disclosure document.
Other requirements include: Written notice; upgrade the
Location to current standards before the beginning of the
renewal term; no default; pay all money owed to us or
our affiliates; have right to remain in possession of the
premises; reimburse our expenses for renewal; sign a
general release (See Attachment I); and comply with our
then-current qualification and training requirements.
d. Termination by Not Applicable Not Applicable
franchisee
e. Termination by Not Applicable Not Applicable

franchisor without cause

f. Termination by
franchisor with cause

Sections VI.J.
and XVIILA.

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement immediately
if we discover you made misrepresentations under
Section VIJ or if you, your owners, and/or your
employees are in violation of any antiterrorism laws. We
may terminate if you commit a default listed in Section
XVIL
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary

g. “Cause” defined —
curable defaults

Section XVIL.D.

For any default except those specified as noncurable,
you have 30 days to cure (5 days for failure to submit a
required report or pay monies; 24 hours for misuse of the
Marks; 7 days if you fail to obtain the required insurance
coverages; 10 days for a noncompete violation; 90 days
for failure to complete initial training and for a
Controlling  Principal subject to a Criminal
Determination). We may terminate your Franchise
Agreement if you or your affiliates commit a material
default under any agreement with us or our affiliates and
fail to timely cure such default. In addition to our
termination and other rights, upon a breach of the
Franchise Agreement by you, we may suspend your
access to information regarding the Location's customers
and all or any portion of the electronic cash register
systems/point of sale systems and any other computer
systems used to operate the Location until such breach is
cured to our reasonable satisfaction.

h. “Cause” defined — non-
curable defaults

Section XVII.B.
and C.

Insolvency; bankruptcy; receivership; a final judgment
remains unsatisfied; you are dissolved; execution is
levied against your Location; suit to foreclose is
instituted and not dismissed within 30 days; your
Location property is sold after levy; you operate your
Location or sell any products or services from a Location
we have not accepted; you fail to acquire an acceptable
Location that within the time required; you fail to
construct or remodel as required; you fail to open within
the specified period; you abandon your Location or
forfeit the right to do business; you are convicted of, or
enter a plea of nolo contendere to, certain crimes; a
threat to public health or safety results from your
operation of the Location; you transfer any rights or
obligations in violation of the Agreement; you disclose
any confidential information; you knowingly maintain
false records or submit false reports; you breach any
covenants or make false representations; you fail to
comply with our quality assurance program; you are
repeatedly in default, whether or not the defaults have
been cured.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary

i. Franchisee's obligations
on termination/non-
renewal

Section XVIILA.

Stop operating the Location; stop using the Marks and
stop using and return any confidential System
information (including customer information, if
applicable); cancel assumed name registrations; pay all
amounts due; pay our enforcement costs; comply with
confidentiality and noncompetition covenants; at our
option, assign (without compensation) your leases and
your rights in your telephone numbers and business
listings and/or sell us any or all of the assets related to
the operation of the Location at fair market value.

j. Assignment of contract
by franchisor

Section XIV.A

We may transfer the Franchise Agreement or any of our
rights without restriction.

k. “Transfer” by franchisee
— defined

Section XIV.B.

You and your Controlling Principal cannot sell, assign,
transfer, convey, give away, or otherwise dispose of any
interest in the Franchise Agreement, the Location, or you
that effects a change in control without our consent.
Transfers that do not result in a change in control require
notice and may not result in a sale to a competitor.

1. Franchisor's approval of
transfer by franchisee

Sections XIV.B.
and C.

You must obtain our consent and comply with certain
conditions before transferring any interest that effects a
change in control.

m. Conditions for
franchisor's approval of
transfer

Section XIV.B.

Pay all amounts due; no default; sign a general release
(See Attachment I); pay a transfer fee and expenses;
remain liable for pre-transfer obligations and those that
survive transfer, and if the Franchise Agreement has
been signed under a Development Agreement, you must
concurrently transfer to the same transferee such
Development Agreement and all franchise agreements
signed under such Development Agreement. Transferee
must meet our qualifications, complete training, assume
Franchise Agreement obligations, enter into new
franchise agreement, and renovate the Location.

n. Franchisor's right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee's business

Section XIV.D.

We have the option to purchase the interest being
transferred on the same terms as those offered by a third

party.
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Provision Section in Summary
Franchise
Agreement

o. Franchisor's option to Section XVIILLA. | Upon termination or expiration, we have the option to
purchase franchisee's (8) and (9) and B. | purchase your advertising materials bearing the Marks at
business your cost. We have the option to purchase the

furnishings, equipment, signs, fixtures, supplies,
materials, and other assets, at fair market value, and if
you own the land where the Location is located, we have
the option to lease the land (and any building on the land
used for the operation of the Location) for fair market
value. We have the option to have the lease for the
premises of the Location assigned to us.

p. Death or disability of Section XIV.E. The license must be transferred to someone approved by
franchisee us within 12 months after death or 6 months after notice
of permanent disability.

g- Non-competition Section X.C.(1) You may not advise, assist or make loans to, any
covenants during the business that is the same as or similar to a Palm Beach
term of the franchise Beauty & Tan Location, including any retail tanning

store or other business which offers tanning- or wellness-

or spa-services or products, or any other products or
services that Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations offer,
including body and skin therapy services or products.

R. Non-competition Section XC.(2) For 2 years, you may not advise, assist or make loans to,
covenants after the any business that is the same as or similar to a Palm
franchise is terminated Beach Beauty & Tan Location, including any retail
or expires tanning store or other business which offers tanning- or

wellness- or spa-services or products, or any other

products or services that Locations offer, including body
and skin therapy services or products, located at the

Location, within the Designated Area, or within a 5-mile

radius of any Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Location.

s. Modification of the Sections X.A. Except for Manual changes that we can make
agreement and XIX.B. unilaterally, no change is binding unless mutually agreed
upon.

t. Integration/merger Section XIX.B. Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding

clause (subject to state law). Any representations or promises
made outside the disclosure document and Franchise
Agreement may not be enforceable. We may not
disclaim representations made in the disclosure
document.

u. Dispute resolution by Sections XIX.G., | With certain exceptions, all disputes arising out of or
arbitration or mediation XIX.J. and relating to the Franchise Agreement must be submitted
XIX.K. to nonbinding mediation before being litigated.
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Provision

Section in
Franchise
Agreement

Summary

v. Choice of forum

Section XIX.H.

Unless contrary to applicable law, mediation will be held
and venue designated at our principal place of business,
currently in Texas.

In addition to the provisions noted in this chart, the
Franchise Agreement contains a number of provisions
that may affect your legal rights, including a waiver of
punitive or exemplary damages, a waiver of jury trial
and a waiver of claims not commenced within 1 year
from the date on which you knew or should have known
of the facts giving rise to such claim. See Franchise
Agreement Section XIX.K.(1), (2) and (3). We
recommend that you carefully review all of these
provisions, and the entire contract, with a lawyer.

w. Choice of law

Section XIX.I.

Texas law, except for Texas choice of law rules, or as
otherwise required by applicable state law.

This table lists certain important provisions of the Development Agreement. You should read
these provisions in the Development Agreement attached to this disclosure document.

Provision Section in Summary
Development
Agreement

a. Length of the term Section IV. The completion of your development obligations
or midnight on the last day of the Development
Schedule, whichever is first.

b. Renewal or extension of the Section III.D. We do not grant extensions or any renewal

term rights. However, we will provide you a right of

first offer to develop additional Locations that
may be developed in the Territory for a 5-year
period after the expiration of the Development
Agreement.

c. Requirements for developer Section IIL.D. Although we do not grant extensions or renewal

to renew or extend rights, your right to exercise your right of first

offer requires that you are: in compliance with
the Development Agreement and each applicable
Franchise Agreement; financially and
operationally qualified; and provide us with
written notice.

d. Termination by developer Not Applicable Not Applicable
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Provision Section in Summary
Development
Agreement
e. Termination by franchisor Not Applicable Not Applicable

without cause

f. Termination by franchisor
with cause

Sections VIL.E. and
VIII.D.

We may terminate the Development Agreement
immediately if we discover you made
misrepresentations under Section VILE or if you,
your owners, and/or your employees are in
violation of any antiterrorism laws. We may
terminate the Development Agreement, modify
your territorial rights, or alter your development
schedule if you commit a default listed in Section
VII. Your default under the Development
Agreement will not be a default under any
Franchise Agreement, unless the default is also a
default under that Franchise Agreement.

g. “Cause” defined — curable
defaults

Section VIII.C.

Failure to comply with Development Schedule
and cure within 30 days after notice; failure to
designate a replacement Operating Principal or
General Manager within 60 days after a request
or no cure of a management training failure
within 90 days; failure to get signed
confidentiality and noncompetition covenants
within 30 days after a request; misuse of the
Marks and failure to cure within 24 hours after
notice; failure to pay monies owed us or our
affiliates and no cure within 5 days after notice;
90 days to acquire the interest of a Controlling
Principal subject to a Criminal Determination;
failure to cure any default under a Franchise
Agreement within the applicable cure period; or
failure to comply with other terms of the
Development Agreement and no cure within 30
days after notice. We may terminate your
Development Agreement if you or your affiliates
commit a material default under any agreement
with us or our affiliates and fail to timely cure
such default.
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Provision

Section in
Development
Agreement

Summary

h. “Cause” defined — non-
curable defaults

Sections VIII.A. and

B.

Insolvency; bankruptcy; receivership; a final
judgment remains unsatisfied; you are dissolved;
execution is levied against your Location; suit to
foreclose is instituted and not dismissed within
30 days; your Location property is sold after
levy; you are convicted of, or enter a plea of nolo
contendere to, certain crimes; a threat to public
health or safety results from your operation of
the Location; if you breach any material
covenants; you or a Controlling Principal
transfers rights in violation of the Agreement;
you fail to comply with the in-term
confidentiality and non-competition covenants;
you are repeatedly in default whether or not the
defaults have been cured.

i. Developer's obligations on
termination/non-renewal

Sections VIIL.F.

Stop operating the business, or, on a partial
termination of territorial or development rights,
continue to develop only under any modified
development schedule; comply with
confidentiality and noncompetition covenants;
pay amounts owed and enforcement costs.

j. Assignment of contract by
franchisor

Section IX.A.

We may transfer the Development Agreement or
any of our rights without restriction.

k. “Transfer” by developer —
defined

Section IX.B.

You and your Controlling Principal cannot sell,
assign, transfer, convey, give away, or otherwise
dispose of any interest in the Development
Agreement, your other assets, or you which
effects a change in control without our consent.
Transfers that do not result in a change in control
require notice and may not result in a sell to a
competitor.

1. Franchisor's approval of

Sections IX.B. and

You must obtain our consent and comply with

transfer by developer IX.C. certain conditions before transferring any interest
that effects a change in control.
m. Conditions for franchisor's Section IX.B. Pay all amounts due; no default; sign a general

approval of transfer

release (See Attachment I); pay a transfer fee and
expenses; remain liable for pre-transfer
obligations and those that survive transfer; and
you must concurrently transfer to the same
transferee all franchise agreements signed under
the Development Agreement. Transferee must
meet our qualifications, complete training,
assume Development Agreement obligations,
and enter into new development agreement.
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Provision Section in

Summary

We have the option to purchase the interest being
transferred on the same terms as those offered by
a third party.

Not Applicable

Your rights must be transferred to someone
approved by us within 12 months after death or 6
months after notice of permanent disability.

Except for the Palm Beach Beauty & Tan
franchises that you operate under Franchise
Agreements with us, you may not advise, assist
or make loans to, any business that is the same as
or similar to a Location, including any retail
tanning store or other business which offers
tanning or wellness- or spa-services or products,
or any other products or services that Locations
offer, including body and skin therapy services
or products.

Development
Agreement
n. Franchisor's right of first Section IX.E.
refusal to acquire developer's
business
o. Franchisor's option to Not Applicable
purchase developer's business
p. Death or disability of Section IX.F.
developer
g. Non-competition covenants Section X.D.(1)
during the term of the
Development Agreement
r. Non-competition covenants Section X.D.(2)

after the Development
Agreement is terminated or
expires

Except for the franchises that you operate under
Franchise Agreements with us, for 2 years, you
may not advise, assist or make loans to, any
business that is the same as or similar to a
Location, including any retail tanning store or
other business which offers tanning or wellness-
or spa-services or products, or any other products
or services that Locations offer, including body
and skin therapy services or products, within
your Territory or within a 5-mile radius of any
other Location.

s. Modification of the agreement | Section XVI.

Except for those permitted to be made
unilaterally by us, no change is binding unless
mutually agreed upon.

t. Integration/merger clause Section XVI.

Only the terms of the Development Agreement
are binding (subject to state law). Any
representations or promises made outside the
disclosure document and Development
Agreement may not be enforceable. We may not
disclaim representations made in the disclosure
document.
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Provision Section in Summary
Development
Agreement

u. Dispute resolution by Section XVII. Subject to certain exceptions, all disputes arising

arbitration or mediation out of or relating to the Development Agreement
must be submitted to nonbinding mediation
before being litigated.

v. Choice of forum Section XVIIL.B. Unless contrary to applicable law, mediation and
venue for litigation at our principal place of
business, currently in Texas.

In addition to the provisions noted in this chart,
the Development Agreement contains a number
of provisions that may affect your legal rights,
including a waiver of punitive or exemplary
damages, a waiver of jury trial and a waiver of
claims not commenced within 1 year from the
date on which you knew or should have known
of the facts giving rise to such claim. See
Development Agreement Section XVILE.(1), (2)
and (3). We recommend that you carefully
review all of these provisions, and the entire
contract, with a lawyer.

w. Choice of law Section XVIL.C. Texas law, except for Texas choice of law rules,
or as otherwise required by applicable state law.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES
We do not use any public figure to promote the franchise.
ITEM 19

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable
basis for the information, and the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor
provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor
supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about
performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

Following are 2 sets of data analyzing Legacy Locations that operated under the Legacy
Brand.

L Analysis of the actual operating results for Legacy Locations owned by our Parent;
and
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1L Analysis of the actual operating gross revenues of our franchised Legacy Locations.

As noted in Item 1, Legacy Locations are similar to Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Locations
offered in this disclosure document, however most Legacy Locations do not feature infrared saunas.

You are urged to consult with your financial, business and legal advisers and to conduct your
own analysis of the information contained in this Item 19.

We have written substantiation in our possession to support the information appearing in this
Item 19. Written and substantiation will be made available to the prospective franchisee upon

reasonable request.

I. ANALYSIS OF THE ACTUAL OPERATING RESULTS FOR LEGACY LOCATIONS
OWNED BY OUR PARENT.

BASES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Part I of this analysis contains information regarding average and median sales, average
operating costs, average Gross Sales per tanning session, average retail sales per tanning session, and
average number of tanning sessions per month for the 245 prototype Legacy Locations owned by our
Parent which were in operation during the entire 12-month period ending December 31, 2024, with an
overall average of 12.2 years of operation ("Company-Owned Prototype Locations" or "Prototype
Locations"). The information in this financial performance representation does not include the 13
Company-Owned Locations that permanently stopped operating during the reporting period. Table 1
presents the arithmetic mean average of and median Square Footage, EFT Revenues, Other Revenues,
Total Revenues, Operating Expenses, EBITDA and EBITDA as a Percentage of Revenues for the
Company-Owned Locations, and Table 2 presents the arithmetic mean average of and median average
Gross Sales per tanning session, average retail sales per tanning session, and average number of
tanning sessions per month for the Company-Owned Locations.

Prototype Locations incorporate many of the elements of a "tanning location"; from the choice
of the location, to the square footage, to the location design, to the equipment mix. The Prototype
Locations are located in high profile shopping centers in highly visible and accessible space. They
average approximately 2,686 square feet, are characterized by a bright, clean, impressive design, and
feature the highest quality equipment.

All Company-Owned Prototype Locations are similar in operation to the franchised locations
offered by us under this disclosure document; however, there are differences. As noted in Item 1, most
Legacy Locations do not feature infrared saunas. A new franchisee's results are likely to differ from
the results as stated in Part I of this analysis primarily because "start-up" Locations traditionally
experience lower revenues and higher costs than those which have been operating for some time. In
addition, there are certain fees which you must pay to us under the Franchise Agreement and other
differences between the expenses of a franchised Location and a Company-Owned Prototype Location,
reflected in the tables. Those fees and expenses include initial franchise fees, ongoing royalties and
any interest expense you would incur if you finance any of the initial investment for the Location or its
operation. In addition, while the Company-Owned Prototype Locations included in this analysis
average 2,686 square feet, we have recently moved to a smaller prototype.
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TABLE 1

Average and Median Operating Data for the
245 Company-Owned Prototype Locations as of December 31, 2024

Average Unit Information
12 Months Ended December 31, 2024

AVERAGE MEDIAN | HIGHEST LOWEST
SQUARE FOOTAGE 2,686 2,700 6,700 1,140
EFT REVENUES $324,668 $310,334 $725,009 $80,480
OTHER REVENUE $172,208 $156,477 $405,879 $49,237
TOTAL REVENUES® $496,876 $468,485 $1,082,089 $129,718
OPERATING COSTS® ($354,721) ($344,170) | ($699,026) ($203,050)
EBITDA® $121,048 $105,909 $502,977 ($137,039)
EBITDA AS A % OF 24.5% 22.9% 51.7% -52.0%
REVENUES®

Annual Costs Legacy Brand Franchisees Will Incur Not Included in Costs Above (assuming median

annual Gross Sales)©

Royalties (4% 1 year; 5% 2™ year; 6% thereafter)

Year 1: $18,739
Year 2: $23,424
Subsequent Years: $28,109

Customer Experience Management Program

$480

Sunlync and Software Support Fee

$3,600

Footnotes to Table 1

1. Comparison of results: Of the 245 Prototype Locations included in Table 1:

COMPARISON # ABOVE # BELOW
AVERAGE AVERAGE

Square Footage 124 (51%) 121 (49%)

EFT Revenues 109 (44%) 136 (56%)

Other Revenue

103 (42%)

142 (58%)

Total Revenues

103 (42%)

142 (58%)

Operating Costs

107 (44%)

138 (56%)

EBITDA

107 (44%)

138 (56%)

EBITDA as a % of Revenue

117 (48%)

128 (52%)

2. Average revenues are a mean average calculated by aggregating the total revenues of all Prototype
Locations and dividing by 245. Revenues include EFT monthly proceeds, other tanning services and

lotions and other product sales.
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e EFT monthly proceeds: Approximately 65% of the total sales revenues for the Company-
Owned Prototype Locations are represented by monthly electronic funds transfers ("EFT
membership") from members' bank or credit card accounts. EFT memberships enable a
Location to experience better collections than it would without EFT memberships.
Franchisees are required to offer EFT memberships. It may take approximately 3 to 4
years for a Location to achieve the percentage of revenues noted above from EFT
memberships. Locations without a comparable percentage of EFT memberships may
experience different collection rates.

e Other tanning services: These services include all tanning sales and services (including
sunless tan sales) other than from EFT proceeds.

Revenues vary from location to location based on factors such as demand for tanning related products,
services and accessories in the immediate market, the type and number of competitive businesses in
the immediate market, service levels, visibility and accessibility, marketing efforts and effectiveness,
prevailing rates in the market, facility reputation and convenience to users of tanning related products,
services and accessories. Revenues are also affected by seasonality and geographic location. We
believe that tanning related products, services and accessories are in greater demand in certain parts of
the United States than others. The seasonality of sales in other geographic locations will also be
affected differently depending upon the weather, among other things, in such locations.

3. Operating expenses include:

e The direct costs of Legacy Location operations (including, the cost of product sales;
salaries, commissions and related benefits; supplies; replacement lamps and acrylics; other
repairs and maintenance costs; and other location operating costs).

e Rent and other facilities costs (such as electricity and other utilities). Rental costs may
vary with local rental markets. Utility costs may vary with local utility companies as well
as with climate.

e Legacy Location administration costs (including, advertising and promotion; insurance;
credit card/processing fees; computers, telephones and data lines). Advertising and
promotions for Company-Owned Prototype Locations have been conducted in markets
where the Company-Owned Locations have been established for at least 4 years.
Appropriate levels of advertising and promotions in new markets could lead to costs
significantly in excess of the average advertising and promotion expenses noted on Table
1. You are required to contribute 2% of your Gross Sales to an advertising fund and to
spend 3.5% of your Gross Sales on local advertising. Your total franchisor advertising
assessment will not exceed 5.5% of Gross Sales, but you may choose to spend more for
advertising.

4, EBITDA is calculated as Legacy Location level earnings before deductions for interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization.

5. EBITDA as a percentage of revenues are a mean average calculated by aggregating the total
EBITDA of all Legacy Locations and dividing by 245.

6. These are costs that a Legacy Brand franchisee incurred as a direct result of operating a franchised
Legacy Location. These costs are not all of the costs you will incur in operating your Palm Beach Beauty
& Tan Location.
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TABLE 2

Average and Median Gross Sales Per Tanning Session,
Average and Median Retail Sales Per Tanning Session,
and Number Of Tanning Sessions Per Month
for the
245 Company-Owned Prototype Locations
For The Period
January 1, 2024 To December 31, 2024®

AVERAGE MEDIAN HIGHEST LOWEST

GROSS SALES PER
TANNING SESSION® $7.25 $6.99 $17.03 $4.26
RETAIL SALES PER
TANNING SESSION® $3.28 $3.15 $11.51 $1.71
NUMBER OF TANNING
SESSIONS PER MONTH 1,981 1,950 3,840 680
Footnotes to Table 2
1. Comparison of results: Of the 245 Prototype Locations included in Table 2:

COMPARISON # ABOVE # BELOW

AVERAGE AVERAGE

Gross Sales Per Tanning Session 104 (42%) 141 (58%)

Retail Sales Per Tanning Session 108 (44%) 137 (56%)

Number of Tanning Sessions per o o

Month 117 (48%) 128 (52%)
2. Gross Sales represents all in- Legacy Location revenue from the sale of tanning services, lotions,
and other products.
3. Retail sales represents all in- Legacy Location revenue from the sale of lotions and retail products.

II. ANALYSIS OF THE ACTUAL OPERATING GROSS REVENUES OF OUR
FRANCHISED LEGACY LOCATIONS.

A. BASES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Part II.A. of this analysis contains information regarding average sales, average Gross Sales per
tanning session, average retail sales per tanning session, and average number of tanning sessions per
month for the 391 franchised Legacy Locations which were in operation during the entire 12-month period
ended December 31, 2024, with an overall average of 9.02 years of operation ("Franchised Legacy
Locations"). The information in this financial performance representation does not include the 8
Franchised Legacy Locations that stopped operating during the reporting period. Table 1 presents the
arithmetic mean average of and the median EFT Revenues, Other Revenues, and Total Revenues and
Table 2 presents the arithmetic mean average of and the median average Gross Sales per tanning session,
average retail sales per tanning session, and average number of tanning sessions per month for the
Franchised Legacy Locations.
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TABLE 1

Average and Median Operating Data for the
391 Franchised Legacy Locations as of December 31, 2024

Average and Median Unit Information
12 Months Ended December 31, 2024

AVERAGE MEDIAN HIGHEST LOWEST
EFT REVENUES $356,594 $326,179 $908,447 $100,550
OTHER REVENUE $170,094 $158,706 $491,655 $48,774
TOTAL REVENUES® $526,688 $483,575 $1,400,102 $185,502
Footnotes to Table 1
1. Comparison of results: Of the 391 Franchised Legacy Locations included in Table 1:
COMPARISON # ABOVE # BELOW
AVERAGE AVERAGE
EFT Revenues 170 (43%) 221 (57%)
Other Revenue 166 (42%) 225 (58%)
Total Revenues 169 (43%) 222 (57%)
2. Average revenues are a mean average calculated by aggregating the total revenues of all

Franchised Legacy Locations and dividing by 391. Revenues include EFT monthly proceeds, other tanning

services and lotions and other product sales.

e EFT monthly proceeds: Approximately 68% of the total sales revenues for the Franchised
Legacy Locations are represented by monthly EFT membership transfers from members' bank
or credit card accounts. EFT memberships enable a Location to experience better collections
than it would without EFT memberships. Franchisees are required to offer EFT memberships.
It may take approximately 3 to 4 years for a Location to achieve the percentage of revenues
noted above from EFT memberships. Locations without a comparable percentage of EFT
memberships may experience different collection rates.

e Other tanning services:

sunless tan sales) other than from EFT proceeds.
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TABLE 2

Average and Median Gross Sales Per Tanning Session,
Average and Median Retail Sales Per Tanning Session,
and Number Of Tanning Sessions Per Month
for the
391 Franchised Legacy Locations
For The Period
January 1, 2024 To December 31, 2024®

AVERAGE MEDIAN HIGHEST | LOWEST
GROSS SALES PER TANNING $6.28 $6.25 $11.12 $3.29
SESSION®
RETAIL SALES PER TANNING $3.36 $3.32 $7.61 $1.34
SESSION®
NUMBER OF TANNING 2,258 2,088 5,937 718
SESSIONS PER MONTH

Footnotes to Table 2

1. Comparison of results: Of the 391 Franchised Legacy Locations included in Table 2:
COMPARISON # ABOVE # BELOW
AVERAGE AVERAGE
Gross Sales Per Tanning Session
187 (48%) 204 (52%)
Retail Sales Per Tanning Session 185 (47%) 206 (53%)
Number of Tanning Sessions per o o
Month 162 (41%) 229 (59%)
2. Gross Sales represents all in-Legacy Location revenue from the sale of tanning services, lotions,
and other products.
3. Retail sales represents all in-Legacy Location revenue from the sale of lotions and retail products.

The Franchised Legacy Locations on which Part II. Of this analysis is based are substantially
similar to the Company-Owned Prototype Locations in Part I of this analysis.

We compiled these figures from the individual Legacy Locations' actual reported Gross Revenues
for the periods listed below. This information has not been audited or otherwise verified by us.

Gross Revenues include all of the revenue components of Franchised Legacy Locations, like EFT
monthly proceeds, other tanning services, lotions and other product sales. (See Part IL.A. of this analysis
for a further explanation of EFT monthly proceeds and other tanning services.)

Revenues vary from location to location based on factors such as demand for tanning related
products, services and accessories in the immediate market, the type and number of competitive businesses
in the immediate market, service levels, visibility and accessibility, marketing efforts and effectiveness,
prevailing rates in the market, facility reputation and convenience to users of tanning related products,
services and accessories. Revenues are also affected by seasonality and geographic location. We believe
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that tanning related products, services and accessories are in greater demand in certain parts of the United
States than others. The seasonality of sales in other geographic locations will also be affected differently
depending upon the weather, among other things, in such locations.

Some outlets have sold this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no
assurance that you will sell as much.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
does not make any financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an
existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any
other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the
franchisor's management by contacting Roy Sneed at 6321 Campus Circle Drive E., Irving, Texas 75063,
(972) 966-5300, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
Table No. 1

Systemwide Outlet Summary
For years 2022 to 2024M®

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column S
Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Start Outlets at the Start | Net Change
of the year of the year
Franchised 2022 325 348 +23
2023 348 398 +50
2024 398 397 -1
Company-Owned 2022 217 252 +35
2023 252 257 +5
2024 257 253 -4
Total Outlets 2022 542 600 +58
2023 600 655 +55
2024 655 650 -5
Notes: 1. All numbers are as of our fiscal year end. Our 2024 fiscal year end is December 31.
2. All numbers relate to Legacy Locations that operated under the “Palm Beach Tan” mark.

As of the date of this disclosure document there are 21 company-owned Palm Beach Beauty & Tan
Locations and 1 franchised Legacy Location that converted to a Palm Beach Beauty & Tan Location (in
North Carolina).
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Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor)

For years 2022 to 2024
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
State Year Number of Transfers
2022 5
California 2023 1
2024 0
2022 0
Nebraska 2023 0
2024 1
2022 0
North Dakota 2023 0
2024 2
2022 0
Ohio 2023 0
2024 3
2022 0
Total 2023 1
2024 6
Notes:
L. All numbers are as of our fiscal year end. Our 2024 fiscal year end is December 31.
2. All numbers relate to Legacy Locations that operated under the “Palm Beach Tan” mark.
Table No. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For years 2022 to 2024
Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8 Col. 9
State Year Outlets Outlets | Terminations Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened Renewals by Operations at End
of Year Franchisor Other of the
Reasons Year
Alabama 2022 34 0 1 0 0 0 33
2023 33 0 0 0 0 0 33
2024 33 1 0 0 0 0 34
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Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8 Col. 9
State Year Outlets Outlets | Terminations Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets
at Start Opened Renewals by Operations at End
of Year Franchisor Other of the
Reasons Year
Arkansas 2022 15 0 0 0 0 0 15
2023 15 1 1 0 0 0 15
2024 15 0 0 0 0 0 15
California 2022 28 1 0 0 0 0 29
2023 29 5 0 0 0 1 33
2024 33 1 1 0 0 0 33
Colorado 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 27 2 0 0 0 25
2024 25 1 0 0 0 0 26
. 2022 7 2 0 0 0 0 9
Georgia
2023 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
2024 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
Idaho 2022 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
2023 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
. . 2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Illinois
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
. 2022 19 0 0 0 0 0 19
Indiana
2023 19 0 1 0 0 0 18
2024 18 0 0 0 0 0 18
2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Towa
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Kansas
2023 1 4 0 0 0 0 5
2024 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
. . 2022 5 2 0 0 0 0 7
Louisiana
2023 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 1 0 0 0 0 8
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Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8 Col. 9
State Year Outlets Outlets | Terminations Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened Renewals by Operations at End
of Year Franchisor Other of the
Reasons Year
Minnesota 2022 12 0 0 0 0 0 12
2023 12 0 0 0 0 0 12
2024 12 0 0 0 0 0 12
e e e . 2022 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
Mississippi
2023 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2024 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
. . 2022 23 2 0 0 0 0 25
Missouri
2023 25 2 3 0 0 0 24
2024 24 0 0 0 0 0 24
Nebraska 2022 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2023 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2024 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
North 2022 22 0 1 0 0 0 21
Carolina 2023 21 0 0 0 0 0 21
2024 21 0 0 0 0 0 21
North Dakota 2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
Ohio 2022 38 1 0 0 0 0 39
2023 39 0 0 0 0 0 39
2024 39 0 1 0 0 0 38
Oklahoma 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 20 0 0 0 0 20
2024 20 1 5 0 0 0 16
2022 15 0 1 0 0 0 14
Oregon
2023 14 1 0 0 0 0 15
2024 15 0 1 0 0 0 14
. 2022 5 0 0 0 0 0 5
Pennsylvania
2023 5 1 0 0 0 0 6
2024 6 0 0 0 0 0 6
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Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8 Col. 9
State Year Outlets Outlets | Terminations Non- Reacquired Ceased Outlets
at Start | Opened Renewals by Operations at End
of Year Franchisor Other of the
Reasons Year
South 2022 14 15 0 0 0 0 29
Carolina 2023 29 0 2 0 0 0 27
2024 27 0 0 0 0 0 27
2022 33 2 0 0 0 0 35
Texas
2023 35 1 1 0 0 0 35
2024 35 0 0 0 0 0 35
Utah 2022 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
2023 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
2024 10 2 0 0 0 0 12
Washington 2022 8 0 0 0 0 0 8
2023 8 0 0 1 0 0 7
2024 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
Totals 2022 325 26 3 0 0 0 348
2023 348 62 10 1 0 1 398
2024 398 7 8 0 0 0 397
Notes:
1. All numbers are as of our fiscal year end. Our 2024 fiscal year end is December 31.
2. All numbers relate to Legacy Locations that operated under the “Palm Beach Tan mark.
Table No. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets
For years 2022 to 2024)®
Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8
State Year Outlets | Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets
at Start | Opened | Reacquired | Closed Sold to at End
of the From Franchisee of the
Year Franchisee Year
2022 9 0 0 0 0 9
Arizona 2023 9 0 0 0 0 9
2024 9 0 0 0 0 9
2022 5 0 0 0 0 5
Connecticut 2023 5 0 0 0 0 5
2024 5 0 0 0 0 5
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Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8
State Year QOutlets | Outlets Outlets Outlets QOutlets QOutlets
at Start | Opened | Reacquired | Closed Sold to at End
of the From Franchisee of the
Year Franchisee Year

District of 2022 ! 0 0 0 0 !
Columbia 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 7 0 0 0 0 7

Florida 2023 7 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 0 0 0 0 7
2022 25 0 0 1 0 24
Georgia 2023 24 0 0 2 0 22
2024 22 5 0 0 0 27
2022 12 0 0 0 0 12

Illinois 2023 12 0 0 1 0 11
2024 11 0 0 0 0 11

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1

Indiana 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 6 0 0 0 0 6

Kentucky 2023 6 0 0 0 0 6
2024 6 0 0 0 0 6

2022 20 1 0 0 0 21

Maryland 2023 21 0 0 0 0 21
2024 21 0 0 1 0 20

2022 2 0 0 1 0 1

Massachusetts 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 2 0 0 0 0 2

Mississippi 2023 2 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 2

2022 7 0 0 0 0 7

Nevada 2023 7 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 0 0 2 0 5
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Col. 1 Col. 2 Col. 3 Col. 4 Col. 5 Col. 6 Col. 7 Col. 8
State Year Outlets | Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets
at Start | Opened | Reacquired | Closed Sold to at End
of the From Franchisee of the
Year Franchisee Year
2022 0 13 0 0 0 13
North Carolina 2023 13 0 0 0 0 13
2024 13 0 0 0 0 13
2022 18 0 0 0 0 18
Ohio 2023 18 0 0 0 0 18
2024 18 0 0 0 0 18
South Carolina 2022 0 22 0 0 0 0
2023 22 0 0 0 0 22
2024 22 0 0 0 0 22
2022 7 0 0 0 0 7
Tennessee 2023 7 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 0 0 0 0 7
2022 71 0 0 0 0 71
Texas 2023 71 9 0 1 0 79
2024 79 4 0 9 0 74
2022 24 1 0 0 0 25
Virginia 2023 25 0 0 0 0 25
2024 25 0 0 1 0 24
2022 217 37 0 2 0 252
Totals 2023 252 9 0 4 0 257
2024 257 9 0 13 0 253
Notes:
L. All numbers are as of our fiscal year end. Our 2024 fiscal year end is December 31.
2. All numbers relate to Legacy Locations that operated under the “Palm Beach Tan” mark.
Table No. 5
Projected Openings As Of December 31, 2024
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
State Franchise Agreements Projected New Projected New
Signed But Outlet Not | Franchised Outlet In Company-Owned
Opened The Next Fiscal Year Outlet In the Next
Fiscal Year
California 0 1 0
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Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
State Franchise Agreements Projected New Projected New
Signed But Outlet Not | Franchised Outlet In Company-Owned
Opened The Next Fiscal Year Outlet In the Next
Fiscal Year
Oklahoma 0 1 0
Texas 0 2 2
Virginia 0 0 1
Total 0 4 3

The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of our franchisees and their Legacy Locations as of
December 31, 2024 are attached as Attachment F.

Attached as Attachment G is a list of the name, city and state, and current business telephone
number (or, if unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every franchisee who has had an
outlet terminated, canceled, or not renewed by us or who otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to
do business under their agreements as of our 2024 fiscal year end, or who has not communicated with us
within 10 weeks of the date of this disclosure document.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you
leave the franchise system.

As of the date of this disclosure document, we are not offering any outlets we control that were
previously owned by a franchisee. If we begin to offer any such outlet, specific information about the
outlet will be provided to you in a supplement to this disclosure document.

During the last three fiscal years, in some instances, current and former franchisees signed
provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with the Palm Beach Tan
franchise system. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all
such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

We have created the Advisory Council to provide advice to us on various matters. The Advisory
Council may be contacted through at Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc., 6321 Campus Circle Drive E.,
Irving, Texas 75063, Attention: Advisory Council. As of the date of this disclosure document, no
independent trademark-specific franchisee organizations have asked to be included in this disclosure
document.
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ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Attached as Attachment C are our audited balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, and December
31, 2023 and related statements of income, stockholder's equity, and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2024, December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, and our unaudited financial statements
for the period ended January 1, 2025 through June 30, 2025.
ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Attached to this disclosure document are the following contracts and their attachments:

—

Franchise Agreement, including attachments and state amendments;

2. Development Agreement, including attachments and state amendments; and
3. Form of General Release
ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Attached as the last 2 pages of this disclosure document are 2 Receipts. When you receive this
disclosure document, you must sign both Receipts and return 1 to us, retaining the other for your records.
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AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

ATTACHMENT A
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ATTACHMENT A

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

We intend to register this Disclosure Document as a “franchise” in some or all of the following
states, in accordance with the applicable state law. If and when we pursue franchise registration (or
otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws) in these states, we will designate the following
state offices or officials as our agents for service of process in these states:

CALIFORNIA

Commissioner of Department of Financial
Protection and Innovation

State of California Department of Financial
Protection and Innovation

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344
1-866-275-2677

HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities
Department of Commerce

and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

ILLINOIS

Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706

INDIANA

Secretary of State

State of Indiana

201 State House

200 West Washington
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

MARYLAND

Maryland Securities Commissioner
Maryland Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
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MICHIGAN

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporations and Securities Bureau

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 West Ottawa Street

Lansing, Michigan 48933

MINNESOTA

Commissioner of Commerce
Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7™ Place East

Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

NEW YORK
Secretary of State of

the State of New York
99 Washington Avenue
Albany, New York 12231

NORTH DAKOTA

Securities Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard

State Capitol, Fifth Floor

Bismarck, North Dakota 58505

OREGON

Director

Department of Consumer and
Business Services

Division of Finance and
Corporate Securities

Labor and Industries Building

Salem, Oregon 97301



RHODE ISLAND

Director

Department of Business Regulation

1511 Pontiac Avenue

John O. Pastore Complex - Building 69-1
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

SOUTH DAKOTA

Director

South Dakota Department of Labor and
Regulation

Division of Insurance

Securities Regulation

124 E Euclid, Suite 104

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

VIRGINIA
Clerk of the State
Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

WASHINGTON

Director

Washington State Department of Financial
Institutions

Securities Division

150 Israel Rd. S.W.

Tumwater, Washington 98501

WISCONSIN

Commissioner of Securities

Wisconsin Securities Commission

201 West Washington Avenue, Suite 300
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
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O Grant Thornton

GRANT THORNTON LLP REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
500 N. Akard St. Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75201

D +1214 5612300
F +1214 5612370

Board of Directors
Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc. (a
Delaware corporation) (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheets as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of income, changes in
stockholder’s equity, and cash flows for the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits of the financial statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after
the date the financial statements are issued.

GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP is a U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member firms are
separate legal entities and are not a worldwide partnership.



O Grant Thornton

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

LA Thowdo LLF

Dallas, Texas
April 15, 2025



Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2024 2023
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,441,072 $ 3,004,886
Accounts receivable, net 1,334,091 1,216,436
Prepaid expenses 11,180 11,401
Total current assets 2,786,343 4,232,723
Other non-current assets, net 82,049 111,700
Receivable from Palm Beach Tan, Inc. 2,052,103 1,989,585
Deferred tax assets 299,367 305,975
Total assets $ 5,219,862 $ 6,639,983
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 357,178 $ 1,097,667
Accrued liabilities 451,972 303,190
Deferred franchise fees, current 278,200 264,450
Total current liabilities 1,087,350 1,665,307
Other non-current liabilities 1,727,825 1,459,977
Non-current deferred franchise fees 963,400 989,399
Total liabilities 3,778,575 4,114,683
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholder's equity
Common stock, $.001 par value; 1,000 shares authorized,

1,000 shares issued and outstanding in 2024 and 2023 1 1
Additional paid-in capital 1,820,117 1,820,117
Retained earnings (378,831) 705,182

Total stockholder’s equity 1,441,287 2,525,300
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity $ 5,219,862 $ 6,639,983

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ended December 31,

Revenues
Franchise royalties
Other franchise products and services
Franchise and area developer fees

Total revenues
Expenses
Direct general and administrative expenses
Allocated general and administrative expenses

Total expenses

Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense

NET INCOME

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2024 2023 2022
$ 10,029,801 9,487,312 8,771,554
6,673,437 6,665,800 5,550,071
247,250 302,200 286,130
16,950,488 16,455,312 14,607,755
5,921,463 5,862,433 4,776,335
2,868,995 3,332,754 2,673,996
8,790,458 9,195,187 7,450,331
8,160,030 7,260,125 7,157,424
2,007,161 1,692,189 1,722,496
$ 6,152,869 5,667,936 5,434,928
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Retained
Earnings/
Additional (Accumulated
Common Stock  Paid-In Capital Deficit) Total

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 1 $ 1,820,117 $ 3,213,979 $ 5,034,097
Net income - - 5,434,928 5,434,928
Distributions to parent - - (7,208,434) (7,208,434)
Balance at December 31, 2022 1 1,820,117 1,440,473 3,260,591
Net income - - 5,567,936 5,567,936
Distributions to parent - - (6,303,227) (6,303,227)
Balance at December 31, 2023 1 1,820,117 705,182 2,525,300
Net income - - 6,152,869 6,152,869
Distributions to parent - - (7,236,882) (7,236,882)
Balance at December 31, 2024 $ 1 $ 1,820,117  $ (378,831) % 1,441,287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 6,152,869 $ 5,567,936 $ 5,434,928
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Amortization of non-current assets 29,651 63,799 73,265
Bad debt expense - - (592,797)
Deferred income taxes 6,608 31,452 77,466
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (117,655) 53,911 339,086
Prepaid expenses 221 12,547 5,363
Accounts payable (740,489) 519,593 116,054
Accrued liabilities 148,783 (369,853) 286,637
Other non-current liabilities 267,847 126,114 189,071
Deferred franchise fees (12,250) (164,700) 199,370
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,735,585 5,840,799 6,128,443
Cash flows from investing activities:
(Expenditures) income for non-current assets - - -
Net cash used in investing activities - - -
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net payments to Palm Beach Tan, Inc. (7,299,399) (6,241,703) (7,433,338)
Net cash used in financing activities (7,299,399) (6,241,703) (7,433,338)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,563,814) (400,904) (1,304,895)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,004,886 3,405,790 4,710,685
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 1,441,072 $ 3,004,886 $ 3,405,790
Non-cash financing activities:
Distribution to parent $ 7,236,882 $ 6,303,227  $ 7,208,434

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Basis of Operations

Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in the State of Delaware on June 21,
2001 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Palm Beach Tan, Inc. (“PBTI” or “Parent”).

The Company was formed to sell franchises of Palm Beach Tan® locations and area development rights
for such franchise locations. Palm Beach Tan locations offer indoor tanning services and related lotions,
skin care products and other merchandise.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had five area development agreements requiring the development
of 14 Palm Beach Tan locations and there were 397 franchise stores operating in 25 states in the United
States. During 2024, the Company had 8 franchise stores close and 7 new franchise stores open.

The Company licenses to franchisees the use of the Palm Beach Tan system. Franchisees are also granted
a license to use the Palm Beach Tan name, various service marks and logos. Palm Beach Tan does not
have any international franchisees.

The Company derives revenues from the sale of area development rights, individual site franchise fees,
royalties based on franchised stores reported revenues, information technology service fees and certain
other fees.

Basis of Presentation and Related Party Receivable

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the
Company and may not necessarily be indicative of the conditions that would have existed or the results of
operations if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated company to PBTI. Portions of certain
expenses represent allocations made from PBTI applicable to the Company. The Company is allocated
costs from PBTI based on services provided to the Company and the Company advances funds to PBTI
on an as needed basis. Such advances are expected to be repaid by PBTI.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had no cash equivalents. The Company
places its temporary cash investments with high credit quality financial institutions. At times, such
investments may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit. The Company
has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not expect any significant risks with its current
accounts.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable include amounts due from franchisees. All fees are due based on the agreed upon
contract terms within 15 days of the end of the month. Receivables are stated at amounts due from
franchisees, net of an allowance for credit losses. The Company determines the allowance by considering



Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

a number of factors, including the length of time receivables are outstanding, previous loss history and
forecasts, the franchisee’s current ability to pay its obligations, and the industry as a whole. Receivables
are written off when they become uncollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables
are credited to bad debt expense.

The allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $0. Bad debt expense for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 was $0, $0 and $(592,797),
respectively. Write offs for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
was $0.

Other Non-Current Assets, Net

The Company acquires non-current assets, such as computer systems and Palm Beach Tan signage, on
behalf of franchisees to convert stores to Palm Beach Tan. These assets are stated at cost and amortized
using the straight-line method over the life of the franchise agreement. The estimated useful lives of the
assets are two to six years. The amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022 were $29,651, $63,799 and $73,265, respectively. The gross asset balance as of both December 31,
2024 and 2023 was $983,203 and accumulated amortization at December 31, 2024 and 2023 was
$901,154 and $871,503, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment when changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. When indicated, impairment is measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset, less
disposal costs. No impairment was recorded during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 or 2022.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of control of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the five-step model outlined
in Topic 606 as follows: when (i) a contract with a customer exists, (ii) performance obligations have been
identified, (iii) the price to the customer has been determined, (iv) the transaction price has been allocated
to performance obligations and (v) the performance obligations are satisfied. The Company derives its
revenues as follows:

Royailties - Franchise royalties are calculated based on a percentage of the sales generated by our
franchised stores. The performance obligation related to franchise sales is considered complete at a
point in time upon the franchisee sale of their service.

Advertising Fees - Franchisees are contractually obligated to contribute into certain advertising and
marketing funds. Advertising fees are presented on a gross basis within other franchise products and
services on the statements of income.

Franchise and Area Developer Fees - We receive development fees from franchisees for development
arrangements and initial franchise fees for new store openings. The initial franchise fee performance
obligation is deferred as a contract liability and recognized over time on a straight-line basis into
franchise and area developer fees in the statements of income over the term of the underlying
agreements. Revenue related to development fees will be recognized at a point in time upon the store
opening. Deferred franchise and development fees are classified within separate contract liability
balances for the current portion expected to be recognized within the next 12 months, and for the
long-term portion in the balance sheets.
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Other Franchise Products Revenues - Product revenues relate to the sale of inventory to customers
and is recognized when the title transfers. Other service revenues are recognized when the service is
performed.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and accrued liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate fair value as a result of their short maturities.

Advertising Funds

Advertising production costs relate to expenses that benefit the franchisees: through creation of marketing
materials, development of new branded products, promotion and protection of the company brand, image
and assets. These costs are expensed in the period when the service is performed, or advertising first
takes place. Other advertising costs are expensed as incurred. In the fiscal years ended December 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022, advertising costs of $4,379,712, $4,267,324 and $3,774,991, respectively, are
included in direct general and administrative expenses, and advertising contributions from franchisees of
$4,370,934, $4,251,849 and $3,739,144, respectively, are recorded in other franchise products and
services in the statements of income.

PBTI pays certain advertising production costs on behalf of the Company directly that are in excess of the
advertising contributions received from franchisees. For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, expenses incurred in excess of the contributions collected were $4,038,233, $2,483,488 and
$2,681,049, respectively. The amount of expenses paid by PBTI during the years ended December 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022 were $3,308,258, $3,096,974 and $2,769,472, respectively. See Note 3.

Income Taxes

The Company is included in the consolidated federal income tax return of PBTI. PBTI also files separate
state income tax returns with each state in which the Company conducts business. The Company’s tax
benefit or expense is determined as if the Company were filing a separate return and is credited or accrued
to the PBTI intercompany account in accordance with an informal tax sharing agreement with PBTI. The
Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are attributed to deferred
franchise fees and amortization of non-current assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the year in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in operations in the period that includes the enactment date. An allowance
against deferred tax assets is recorded in whole or in part when it is more likely than not that such tax
benefits will not be realized.

The financial statement benefit of a tax position is recognized only after determining the relevant tax
authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more likely than not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that
has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority.
The Company records interest and penalties to income tax expense in the statements of operations.
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments. The ASU requires, among other things, the use of a new current expected credit
loss model in order to determine an allowance for credit losses with respect to financial assets and
instruments held. The Current Expected Credit Loss (“CECL”) model requires that the Company estimate
the lifetime of an expected credit loss for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical
experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. On January 1, 2023 we adopted
the ASU on a prospective basis to determine our allowance for credit losses in accordance with the
requirements of Topic 326, and we modified our accounting policy and processes to facilitate this approach.
Our primary exposure to financial assets that are within the scope of CECL are trade receivables. Our
adoption of ASU No. 2016-13 effective January 1, 2023 did not have a material impact on our financial
condition and results of operations.

NOTE 2 - DEFERRED FRANCHISE FEE

We receive franchise fees for new store openings from our franchisees that are deferred as a contract
liability and recognized on a straight-line basis into franchise and area developer fees in the statements of
income over the term of the underlying agreements. The unrecognized fees received from franchisees are
classified within separate liability balances for the current portion expected to be recognized within the
next 12 months, and for the long-term portion in the balance sheets. Total franchise fees revenue were
$245,250, $288,200 and $278,130 for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The franchise fees that will be recognized in future years are based on contracts with franchisees. These
amounts represent the amount that will be recognized pursuant to the satisfaction of the contractual
performance obligations of the current agreements. These amounts are based on active contracts and any
modifications or terminations of these contracts may affect the timing of the recognition. We also expect to
have future year royalties and advertising fees related to our franchise contracts, however under Accounting
Standards Codification ("ASC") 606, these future year revenues are not yet determinable due to unsatisfied
performance obligations based upon a sales-based royalty.
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 3 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, PBTI allocated certain expenses for salaries
and other operating expenses. Certain executives and other employees of PBTI devoted all or some of
their time to Company franchise-related activities. Salaries and related costs for non-full time franchise
personnel have been allocated to the Company based on monthly estimates of the percentage of their time
devoted to the Company’s franchising activities. Such allocated costs may not be representative of the
costs of these services, facilities and other items had the Company operated as an unaffiliated company of
PBTI. The allocated expenses from PBTI for the years ended December 31, were:

2024 2023 2022

Salaries, commissions, bonuses, taxes and
benefits $ 2231707 $ 2245617 $ 2,116,636
Rent and utilities 202,234 197,613 227,465
Professional fees 258,696 160,356 130,658
Computer systems consulting and services 21,186 45,644 38,057
Depreciation and amortization 94,637 59,364 115,274
Office supplies and other 60,535 624,160 45,906
Total allocated expense $ 2,868,995 $ 3,332,754 $ 2,673,996

As discussed in Note 1, certain other Company related expenses were funded by PBTI and charged to the
Company through the receivable from Palm Beach Tan, Inc., which is non-interest bearing. This includes
advertising expenses that are incurred and recharged by the Company on behalf of PBTI.

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Company had amounts due to PBTI of $2,052,103
and $1,989,585, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company
recorded non-cash distributions to PBTI of $7,236,882, $6,303,227 and $7,208,434, respectively.

NOTE 4 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a co-guarantor with PBTI and other affiliates of a bank loan and line of credit entered into
by PBTI. All of the assets of the Company are pledged as collateral for this loan. As of December 31, 2024,
the outstanding balance of this loan was $26,250,000.

The Company is not currently involved in any legal proceedings that management believes are likely to
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial statements.

NOTE 5 - SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

During the year ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Company had significant customers with

amounts in excess of 10% of revenue. These customers have similar concentrations of accounts receivable
for each of the years. A summary of these customers for the years ended December 31, is as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Customer A 13.1% 12.4% 12.2%
Customer B 15.4% 15.4% 11.3%
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 6 - INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense consists of the following:

2024 2023 2022
Current tax expense:
Federal $ 1,705705 $ 1,505586 $ 1,435,431
State 294,848 155,151 209,599
Total current tax expense 2,000,553 1,660,737 1,645,030
Deferred tax (benefit) expense:
Federal 6,608 31,452 77,466

The provision for income taxes differs from the amounts computed by applying the income tax rates to
income before income taxes as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Income tax expense at statutory rates $ 1713606 $ 1524627 $ 1,503,059
FIN48 liability change 267,848 126,115 189,072
State taxes, net of federal benefit 21,330 22,938 20,526
Other 4,377 18,509 9,839

$ 2,007,161 $ 1,692,189 § 1,722,496

Significant components of the net deferred tax assets at December 31, are as follows:

2024 2023
Noncurrent deferred tax assets:
Deferred revenues $ 260,735 $ 263,308
Intangible assets 38,632 42,667
Net deferred tax assets $ 299,367 $ 305,975

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The
Company states those balances at the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when the taxes are paid
or recovered.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations
and require significant judgment to apply. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S.
federal, state, and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2020.

The Company assesses uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740. Under this method, the
Company must recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that
the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of
the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from these uncertain tax positions are
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Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate resolution. The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax
matters in income tax expense. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had $1,727,825 and
$1,459,977, respectively, recorded as uncertain tax liabilities related to the Company’s income tax positions
in certain jurisdictions where its franchisees are operating. The increase in the liability during 2024 relates
to the ongoing activities of these franchisees. The Company anticipates the liability to continue to increase
until these positions have been fully resolved with the jurisdictional taxing authorities. There are no other
expected significant changes in the Company’s uncertain tax positions in the next 12 months. As of
December 31, 2024, all uncertain tax positions would impact the effective tax rate if recognized.

NOTE 7 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated its financial statements for subsequent events through April 15, 2025, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued. As of April 15, 2025, the Company had three area
development agreements requiring the development of 10 Palm Beach Tan locations and there were
398 franchise stores operating in 25 states in the United States.
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PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements for the period ending June 30, 2025, have been prepared without an
audit. Prospective franchisees or sellers of franchises should be advised that no independent Certified
Public Accountant has audited these figures or expressed an opinion with regard to their content or form.

PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
JULY 2025



PALM BEACH TAN FRANCHISING, INC.
BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2025

PBT
Franchise
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $2,972,661
Accounts and notes receivable - net 6,421,435
Other current assets 176,178
Total current assets 9,570,274
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 299,367
OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS 71,451
TOTAL ASSETS 9,941,092
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 460,838
Deferred revenues 245,200
Income tax Payable 1,428,712
Total current liabilities 2,134,750
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 1,727,825
NONCURRENT DEFERRED REVENUE 963,400
Total liabilities 4,825,975

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Common stock, $0.001 par value - authorized, 50,000,00C 1
Preferred stock Series I, $0.001 par value - authorized, 5,000,000 shares
Treasury stock, at cost

Additional paid-in capital 1,820,117
Retained earnings (378,831)
Net income (Loss) 3,673,830

Total stockholders' equity 5,115,117

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $9,941,092




Palm Beach Tan Franchising, Inc.
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Six Months Ending June 30, 2025

REVENUES:
Franchise revenues
Total revenues

EXPENSES:
Franchise general and administrative exper
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)

PBT
Franchise

9,591,290.56

9,591,290.56

4,478,150.30
10,598.52

4,488,748.82

5,102,541.74
5,102,541.74

1,428,712.00

NET INCOME (LOSS)

3,673,829.74
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PALM BEACH BEAUTY & TAN FRANCHISE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made by and between Palm Beach Tan
Franchising, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Franchisor”) and , a
(“Franchisee”) and is to be effective as of the date of full execution (“Effective
Date”). Certain initially capitalized terms used frequently in this Agreement are defined in Section XXI.

RECITALS:

Franchisor has the right to use and license the use of a system (“System”) for the development
and operation of retail stores which offer tanning-related and spa-related products, services and
accessories (“Palm Beach Tan Locations™).

The Palm Beach Tan Locations incorporate one or more sunless self-tanning booths (including
self-tanning solutions), as well as one or more infrared saunas. For avoidance of doubt, Palm Beach Tan
Locations that feature, among other things, infrared saunas, and operate under the "Palm Beach Beauty &
Tan" marks, are not the same as Legacy Locations.

The distinguishing characteristics of the System include, without limitation, distinctive exterior
and interior design, decor, color scheme, and furnishings; proprietary and uniform standards,
specifications, and procedures for operations; quality and uniformity of the services and products offered;
procedures for inventory, management and financial control; training and assistance; and advertising and
promotional programs, all of which may be changed, deleted, improved, and further developed by
Franchisor from time to time.

The System is identified by certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, emblems and indicia
of origin, including, but not limited to, the mark “Palm Beauty & Beach Tan,” and such other trade
names, service marks and trademarks as are now designated and may hereafter be designated by
Franchisor in writing for use in connection with the System (the “Marks”).

Franchisee wishes to obtain the right to use the System for the operation of a Palm Beach Tan
Location at the site specified in Attachment A to this Agreement (the “Site”), as well as to receive the
training and other assistance provided by Franchisor, and acknowledges the importance of operating the
Palm Beach Tan Location in conformity with Franchisor’s high standards of quality and service.

Franchisor wishes to grant Franchisee a franchise for the operation of a Palm Beach Tan Location
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments
set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, agree as follows:

AGREEMENT:
I GRANT

A. Grant of Rights. Franchisor hereby grants Franchisee the right and license, and
Franchisee accepts the right and obligation, to establish and operate a Palm Beach Tan Location under the
Marks and the System in accordance with this Agreement at the Location. This Agreement does not grant
Franchisee the right or license to operate the Palm Beach Tan Location, or to offer or sell any products or
services described under this Agreement, at or from any other location. This Agreement does not grant
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Franchisee the right or license to operate a Legacy Location. Without Franchisor’s express prior written
consent, Franchisee shall not sublicense, sublease, subcontract or enter into any management agreement
providing for the right to operate the Palm Beach Tan Location or use the System or the Marks granted
pursuant to this Agreement.

B. Approved Location; Reserved Rights.

(1) The specific street address of the Site of the Palm Beach Tan Location approved
by Franchisor shall be within the geographic area described in Attachment A (“Designated Area”) and
shall be set forth in Attachment A. The Designated Area shall not be exclusive or protected for any

purpose.

2) This Agreement does not grant Franchisee the right or license to operate the
Location or to offer or sell any products or services described under this Agreement at or from any
location other than the Site or through any other channel or method of distribution other than a Palm
Beach Tan Location. Franchisee expressly acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor and its affiliates
retain all other rights, including, without limitation, the right to establish and operate, and to grant others
the right to establish and operate, tanning salons under the Marks, or under other trade names, service
marks and trademarks, at any location other than the Site, including locations that are adjacent or
proximate to the Site, and the right to offer and sell, and grant others the right to offer and sell, any similar
or dissimilar products and services, whether identified by the Marks or by other trademarks, trade names
or service marks, through any other channel or by any other method of distribution, including, without
limitation, by or through the Internet or similar electronic media, on any terms and conditions Franchisor
deems appropriate. Without limiting the foregoing, Franchisor and its affiliates may, among other things:
(a) grant other licenses for use of the System and the Marks; (b) develop and establish other business
systems using the Marks, or other names or marks, and to grant licenses to use those systems without
providing any rights to Franchisee; (c) advertise and promote the System without restriction; and (d)
engage, directly or indirectly, at wholesale, retail, or otherwise, in the production, distribution, operation,
license, and sale of tanning products and services under the Marks, or under other marks through any
method of distribution, including, but not limited to, mail order catalogs, the Internet, and other tanning
facilities regardless of the proximity to, or the competitive impact on, Franchisee’s Palm Beach Tan
Location.

3) Franchisee hereby waives any right it has, may have, or might in the future have,
to oppose Franchisor’s exercise of its reserved rights in Section 1.B.(2) and any claim for compensation
from Franchisor as a result of Franchisor’s exercise of such rights.

C. Relocation. Franchisee shall not relocate the Palm Beach Tan Location without
Franchisor’s express prior written consent. If Franchisee is unable to continue the operation of the Palm
Beach Tan Location at the Site because of the occurrence of an event of force majeure (or for other
reasons not constituting an event of default under this Agreement), Franchisee may request Franchisor’s
consent to relocate the Palm Beach Tan Location to another site in the Designated Area. If Franchisor
grants Franchisee the right to relocate the Palm Beach Tan Location, then Franchisee shall comply with
such reasonable site selection and construction procedures as Franchisor may require.

II. LICENSES, CONSTRUCTION AND STORE OPENING

A. Licenses and Permits. Franchisee shall be responsible for obtaining all zoning
classifications and clearances which may be required by any laws, ordinances, regulations, or restrictive
covenants relating to the premises of the Palm Beach Tan Location. Before beginning construction of the
Palm Beach Tan Location, Franchisee shall (i) obtain all approvals, clearances, permits, licenses and
certifications required for the lawful construction or remodeling and operation of the Palm Beach Tan
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Location, and (ii) certify in writing to Franchisor that they have been obtained and that the insurance
coverage specified in Section XII. of this Agreement is in full force and effect. At Franchisor’s request,
Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor copies of all such approvals, clearances, permits, licenses and
certifications.

B. Construction and Finish Out. Franchisee shall obtain, at its expense, any architectural,
engineering, design, construction and other services it deems necessary for the construction of the Palm
Beach Tan Location.

(D Franchisee shall adapt Franchisor’s prototypical architectural and design plans
and specifications for a Palm Beach Tan Location as necessary for the construction of the Palm Beach
Tan Location licensed under this Agreement and shall submit such adapted plans to Franchisor for
review. Franchisor will notify Franchisee of any objections to the plans within fifteen (15) days of
receiving such plans. If Franchisor fails to notify Franchisee of an objection to the plans within such
fifteen (15) day period, Franchisee may use the plans. If Franchisor objects to the plans, it shall provide
Franchisee with a reasonably detailed list of the changes needed to make the plans consistent with System
standards. Franchisor shall notify Franchisee within fifteen (15) days of receiving revised plans
incorporating such changes, whether the revised plans are acceptable. If Franchisor fails to notify
Franchisee of any objection within such fifteen (15) day period, Franchisee may use the revised plans.
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor’s review of such plans is only for purposes of determining
compliance with System standards and that acceptance of such plans by Franchisor does not constitute a
representation, warranty, or guarantee, express or implied, by Franchisor that such plans are accurate or
free of error concerning their structural application. Franchisor shall not be responsible for architecture or
engineering, or for code, zoning, or other requirements of the laws, ordinances or regulations of any
federal, state, local, or municipal governmental body, including, without limitation, any requirement
relating to accessibility by disabled persons or others, nor shall Franchisor be responsible for any errors,
omissions, or discrepancies of any nature in the plans. Franchisee agrees to indemnify, save and hold
Franchisor and its officers, directors, and employees harmless from and against any and all claims by
Franchisee’s employees, customers or any other persons for personal injury and property damage
(including, without limitation, court costs, attorneys’ fees, and special or consequential damages) incurred
by or arising out of the use of Franchisor’s prototypical architectural and design plans and specifications,
or any portion thereof, approved by Franchisor.

2) Franchisee shall commence and diligently pursue construction of the Palm Beach
Tan Location. Commencement of construction is defined as the time at which any site work is initiated.
Site work includes, without limitation, paving of parking areas, installing outdoor lighting and sidewalks,
extending utilities, demising of interior walls and demolishing of any existing premises, depending on
whether the Location for the Palm Beach Tan Location is freestanding or to be contained within a
shopping mall, strip center or other interior location. During construction, Franchisee shall provide
Franchisor with such periodic progress reports as Franchisor may reasonably request. In addition,
Franchisor may make such on-site inspections as it may deem reasonably necessary to evaluate such
progress. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor of the scheduled date for completion of construction no later
than sixty (60) days prior to such date. Within a reasonable time after the date construction is completed,
Franchisor may, at its option, conduct an inspection of the completed Palm Beach Tan Location.
Franchisee shall not open the Palm Beach Tan Location for business without the written authorization of
Franchisor, which authorization shall be conditioned upon Franchisee's strict compliance with this
Agreement.

C. Opening of Palm Beach Tan Location. Franchisee shall open the Palm Beach Tan
Location and commence business within two hundred ten (210) days after the execution of this
Agreement, unless Franchisee obtains a written extension of such time period from Franchisor.
Franchisee acknowledges that time is of the essence. The date the Palm Beach Tan Location opens for
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business to the public (“Opening Date”) shall be entered in Attachment A. Before the Opening Date,
Franchisee shall complete all exterior and interior preparations for the Palm Beach Tan Location,
including installation of equipment, fixtures, furnishings and signs, pursuant to the plans and
specifications approved by Franchisor, and shall comply with all other pre-opening obligations of
Franchisee, including, but not limited to, those obligations described in Section VI. of this Agreement. If
Franchisee fails to comply with any of such obligations, Franchisor shall have the right to prohibit
Franchisee from opening. Franchisee’s failure to open the Palm Beach Tan Location in compliance with
these provisions shall be deemed a material event of default under this Agreement. At no time shall
Franchisee allow any part of the premises of the Palm Beach Tan Location to be used for any immoral or
illegal purpose.

I1I. TERM AND RENEWAL

A. Term. Unless sooner terminated as provided in this Agreement, the term of this
Agreement will begin on the date stated in the preamble and will continue until ten (10) years from the
Opening Date.

B. Renewal. Franchisee may, at its option, renew its rights under this Agreement for one (1)
additional consecutive term of ten (10) years, subject to any or all of the following conditions which must,
at Franchisor’s option, be met prior to and at the time of renewal:

(D Franchisee shall give Franchisor written notice of Franchisee’s election to renew
not less than six (6) months nor more than nine (9) months before the end of the initial term;

2) Franchisee shall refurbish, repair or replace, at Franchisee’s cost and expense, all
equipment, tanning beds, electronic cash register systems, computer systems, signs, interior and exterior
decor items, fixtures, furnishings, supplies and other products and materials required for the operation of
the Palm Beach Tan Location as Franchisor may reasonably require and shall otherwise upgrade the Palm
Beach Tan Location to reflect the then-current standards and image of the System. Franchisee
acknowledges that such requirements may include extensive changes, and Franchisee shall commence
such refurbishing, repair, replacement and upgrades promptly upon notice from Franchisor (unless
Franchisee elects not to renew its rights) and shall complete such requirements as expeditiously as
possible, but in any event prior to the commencement of the renewal term;

3) Franchisee shall not be in default of any provision of this Agreement, any
amendment hereof or successor hereto, and neither Franchisee nor its affiliates shall be in default of any
other agreement with Franchisor or any of its affiliates; and Franchisee and its affiliates shall have
substantially and timely complied with the terms and conditions of such agreements during the respective
terms thereof;

4) Franchisee shall have timely satisfied all monetary obligations owed to
Franchisor and its affiliates under this Agreement and any other agreement between Franchisee or any of
its affiliates and Franchisor or any of its affiliates;

%) Franchisee shall present to Franchisor satisfactory evidence that Franchisee has
the right to remain in possession of the premises of the Palm Beach Tan Location during the renewal term
or obtain Franchisor’s consent to new site for the Palm Beach Tan Location, either of which shall be
subject to a valid lease in Franchisee’s own name as lessee;

(6) Franchisee shall execute Franchisor’s then-current form of renewal franchise
agreement, which agreement shall supersede this Agreement in all respects, and the terms of which may
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differ from the terms of this Agreement, except that the royalty and advertising percentages shall remain
at the level in effect on the date of the expiration of the initial term;

@) Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor all amounts necessary to reimburse Franchisor
for its reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses associated with renewing the franchise, including,
without limitation, legal and accounting fees.

(8) Franchisee and its Controlling Principals shall execute a general release of any
and all claims against Franchisor, its affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, shareholders,
partners, agents, representatives, independent contractors, servants and employees, past and present, in
their corporate and individual capacities, including, without limitation, claims arising under this
Agreement or under federal, state or local laws, rules, regulations or orders; and

9) Franchisee shall comply with Franchisor’s then-current qualification and training
requirements.

If applicable law requires that Franchisor give notice to Franchisee prior to the expiration of the
initial term, this Agreement shall remain in effect on a week-to-week basis until Franchisor has given the
required notice. If Franchisor is not offering new franchises, is in the process of revising, amending or
renewing its form of franchise agreement or disclosure document, or is not lawfully able to offer
Franchisee its then-current form of franchise agreement at the time Franchisee delivers its renewal notice,
Franchisor may, in its discretion, (i) offer to renew this Agreement upon the same terms set forth herein
for a renewal term determined in accordance with this Section III.B., or (ii) offer to extend the term
hereof on a week-to-week basis following the expiration of the initial term for as long as it deems
necessary or appropriate so that it may lawfully offer its then-current form of franchise agreement.

Iv. FEES

A. Franchise Fee. Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor an initial franchise fee of Thirty
Thousand Dollars ($30,000), less any development fee credit (if applicable), upon the execution of this
Agreement. The initial franchise fee shall be deemed fully earned and nonrefundable upon receipt by
Franchisor.

B. Royalty Fee.

(D During the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a
continuing monthly royalty fee in an amount equal to four percent (4%) of Gross Sales for the first twelve
(12) months following the Opening Date, five percent (5%) of Gross Sales for the second twelve (12)
months following the Opening Date, and six percent (6%) of Gross Sales for the remainder of the initial
term of this Agreement.

2) All royalty fees shall be due and payable monthly based on Gross Sales of the
Palm Beach Tan Location for the preceding month and shall be received by Franchisor on or before the
tenth (10th) day of the month, provided, that such day is a Business Day. If the due date is not a Business
Day, then payment shall be due on the next Business Day. Franchisor shall determine the amount of the
monthly royalty fees owed by accessing and retrieving Gross Sales data for the preceding month from
Franchisee’s computer system, as permitted under Section VILF. Franchisor shall provide notice (each a
“Royalty Fee Notice”) to Franchisee stating the applicable royalty fee amount no later than the fifth (5%)
day of each month for the preceding month (if such day is not a Business Day, then Franchisor will
provide the Royalty Fee Notice on the next Business Day). Unless Franchisee objects in writing to such
amount in accordance with this Section IV.B.(2) and Franchisor receives such objection on or before the
seventh (7th) day of the month (if such day is not a Business Day, then on the next Business Day),
Franchisee will be deemed to have accepted and agreed to the royalty fee amount set forth in the Royalty
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Fee Notice and Franchisor may withdraw the royalty fee amount from Franchisee’s designated bank
account by EFT in accordance with Section IV.E. Any objection to the royalty fee set forth in a Royalty
Fee Notice must be accompanied by written evidence supporting Franchisee’s claim that the royalty fee
amount set forth in the Royalty Fee Notice is not correct. If, through no fault of Franchisor, Franchisor is
not able to access and retrieve Gross Sales data for any particular month, then Franchisor may process an
EFT (defined below) for the subject month based on the most recent Royalty Fee Notice provided by
Franchisor to Franchisee; provided, that if and when Franchisor is able to access the Gross Sales data for
the subject month, the data reflects (i) that the actual amount of the fee due was more than the amount of
the EFT, then Franchisor shall be entitled to withdraw additional funds through EFT from Franchisee’s
designated bank account for the difference; or (ii) that the actual amount of the fee due was less than the
amount of the EFT, then Franchisor shall credit the excess amount to the payment of Franchisee’s future
obligations.

C. Past Due Amounts; Acceptance and Application of Payments.

(D Any payment not actually received by Franchisor on or before the due date shall
be deemed overdue. Time is of the essence for all payments to be made by Franchisee to Franchisor. All
unpaid obligations under this Agreement shall bear interest from the date due until paid at the lesser of
eighteen (18%) percent per annum, or the maximum rate allowed by applicable law. No provision of this
Agreement shall require the payment or permit the collection of interest in excess of the maximum rate
allowed by applicable law. If for any reason interest in excess of the maximum rate allowed by applicable
law shall be deemed charged, required or permitted, any such excess shall be applied as a payment to
reduce any other amounts which may be due and owing hereunder, and if no such amounts are due and
owing hereunder, then such excess shall be repaid to the party making the payment.

2) Acceptance by Franchisor of any payments due subsequent to the due date shall
not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any preceding breach by Franchisee or the Controlling
Principals of any terms, provisions, covenants or conditions of this Agreement.

3) Franchisor shall have the right to apply any payment it receives from Franchisee to
any amounts Franchisee owes Franchisor or its affiliates under this Agreement or any other agreement
between them, even if Franchisee has designated the payment for another purpose or account. Franchisor
may accept any check or payment in any amount from Franchisee without prejudice to Franchisor’s right to
recover the balance of the amount due or to pursue any other right or remedy. No endorsement or statement
on any check or payment or in any letter accompanying any check or payment or elsewhere shall constitute
or be considered as an accord or satisfaction.

4 Franchisee shall have no right to withhold any payments due Franchisor on
account of Franchisor’s breach or alleged breach of this Agreement, and no right to offset any amount due
Franchisor against any obligation that Franchisor may owe to Franchisee.

®)] If any check or draft (electronic or otherwise) is not honored by Franchisee’s
bank for any reason, Franchisee agrees that it shall be responsible for that payment and any service charge
or other expense incurred by Franchisor arising from such non-payment. If any payments are not received
when due, Franchisor may exercise any and all remedies available to it at law or under this Agreement,
including, without limitation, the right to charge interest in accordance with Section IV.C.(1) and the right
of set off in accordance with Section V.L.

D. Other Fees and Payments. In addition to the initial franchise fee and monthly royalty,
Franchisee shall pay when due all other fees or amounts described in this Agreement.
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E. Electronic Funds Transfer. Franchisee shall execute Attachment D to this Agreement and
all other documents necessary to permit Franchisor to withdraw funds from Franchisee’s designated bank
account by electronic funds transfer (“EFT”) in the amount of the royalty fee described in Section IV.B.
above, the advertising contribution described in Section VIII.A., and the computer Software Support Fee
under the Software License Agreement at the time such amounts become due and payable. Franchisor
may, from time to time, require payment of other fees or expenses due Franchisor or its affiliates by EFT,
and Franchisee agrees to execute any and all necessary documentation providing for such method of
payment. Any fee calculated by reference to Gross Sales shall be based on the information obtained by
Franchisor pursuant to Section VILF. of this Agreement or the Royalty Fee Notice. Upon written notice to
Franchisee, Franchisor may designate another method of payment.

V. FRANCHISOR’S OBLIGATIONS

Franchisor agrees to provide, or cause the following services to be provided:

A. Prototype Plans. On loan, a set of prototypical architectural and design plans and
specifications for a Palm Beach Tan Location.

B. Manuals. Access to Franchisor’s Manuals, which are currently maintained and provided
to Franchisee only in electronic or online format.

C. Software Programs. For a reasonable fee, any proprietary or other software programs
(including, at Franchisor’s discretion, support and maintenance) developed or acquired by or on behalf of
Franchisor for use by Palm Beach Tan Locations; provided, that Franchisor is under no obligation to
develop or acquire such software programs.

D. Inspections. Inspections of the Palm Beach Tan Location and evaluations of the products
sold and services rendered therein from time to time as reasonably determined by Franchisor.

E. Advertising. Administration of an advertising fund and/or advertising cooperatives in
accordance with Section VIII., as well as the provision of certain advertising and promotional materials
developed by Franchisor from time to time for use in marketing and conducting local advertising for Palm
Beach Tan Locations.

F. Operational Advice. Advice and written materials concerning techniques for managing
and operating Palm Beach Tan Locations, including new developments and improvements in System
equipment and System products.

G. Collateral Merchandise; Décor Items. From time to time in Franchisor’s discretion and at
a reasonable cost, certain merchandise identifying the System, such as caps, t-shirts and other System
memorabilia, in sufficient amounts to meet customer demand, and certain décor items.

H. Approved Suppliers. From time to time as Franchisor deems appropriate a list of
approved suppliers.

L. Training. An initial training program for Franchisee’s Operating Principal, General
Manager and Store Manager, as applicable, and additional training programs in accordance with Section
VILG.

J. Opening Assistance. If the Palm Beach Tan Location is the first Palm Beach Tan
Location established by Franchisee or its affiliates, on-site pre-opening and opening assistance for such
period of time as Franchisor is then providing to Palm Beach Tan Locations in the System, at no
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additional charge. For all subsequent Palm Beach Tan Locations established by Franchisee or its affiliates
Franchisor may require Franchisee to reimburse Franchisor for any expenses incurred by Franchisor’s
representatives in providing opening assistance, such as costs of travel, lodging, meals and wages.

K. Remedial Training. Upon Franchisee’s reasonable request or if Franchisor shall
determine it to be necessary during the term of this Agreement, on-site remedial training; provided, that
remedial training shall be conducted subject to the availability of Franchisor’s personnel, and provided
further, that Franchisor may require Franchisee to pay the per diem fee then being charged for such on-
site remedial training, and pay or reimburse Franchisor for the expenses incurred by its representatives,
including the costs of travel, lodging, meals, and wages.

L. Electronic Fund Transfer Services. For a fee, electronic fund processing services (“EFT
Services”) designed to debit the accounts of those customers who are parties to service agreements with
Franchisee and credit Franchisee’s designated account for the amount of the required payment, less any
applicable bank or Franchisor handling fees or charges. In addition, if any payments for fees or other
amounts owed by Franchisee to Franchisor are delinquent, Franchisor shall be allowed to set off such
amounts against any monies owed to Franchisee under such service agreements, which right of set off is
hereby expressly acknowledged and agreed to by Franchisee.

VL. FRANCHISEE’S REPRESENTATIONS. WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

A. Continuing Obligations. Franchisee and its Controlling Principals make the following
representations, warranties and covenants and accept the following obligations. Such representations,
warranties and covenants are continuing obligations, and Franchisee and its Controlling Principals
acknowledge and agree that any failure to comply with them shall constitute a material event of default
under this Agreement. Franchisee will cooperate with Franchisor to verify compliance with the following
representations, warranties and covenants.

B. Organization. If Franchisee is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or
other legal entity:

(1) Franchisee is duly organized and validly existing under the law of the state of its
formation,;

2) Franchisee is duly qualified and is authorized to do business in each jurisdiction
in which its business activities or the nature of the properties owned by it require such qualification;

3) Franchisee’s corporate charter or written partnership or limited liability company
agreement shall at all times provide that the activities of Franchisee are confined exclusively to the
operation of Palm Beach Tan Locations;

@) The execution of this Agreement and the performance of the transactions
contemplated hereby are within Franchisee’s corporate power, if Franchisee is a corporation, or if
Franchisee is a partnership or a limited liability company, permitted under Franchisee’s written
partnership or limited liability company agreement and have been duly authorized by Franchisee; and

(5) If Franchisee is a corporation, copies of Franchisee’s articles of incorporation,
bylaws, other governing documents, any amendments thereto, resolutions of the Board of Directors
authorizing entry into and performance of this Agreement, and any certificates, buy-sell agreements or
other documents restricting the sale or transfer of stock of the corporation, and any other documents as
may be reasonably required by Franchisor shall have been furnished to Franchisor prior to the execution
of this Agreement; or, if Franchisee is a partnership or limited liability company, copies of Franchisee’s
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written partnership or limited liability company agreement, other governing documents and any
amendments thereto shall have been furnished to Franchisor prior to the execution of this Agreement,
including evidence of consent or approval of the entry into and performance of this Agreement by the
requisite number or percentage of partners or members, as applicable, if such approval or consent is
required by Franchisee's written partnership or limited liability company agreement.

C. Ownership.

(D If Franchisee is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other
legal entity, the ownership interests in Franchisee are accurately and completely described in Attachment
B. If Franchisee is a corporation, Franchisee shall maintain at all times a current list of all owners of
record and all beneficial owners of any class of voting securities in Franchisee or, if Franchisee is a
partnership, or limited liability company or other form of legal entity, Franchisee shall maintain at all
times a current list of all owners of an interest in the partnership, limited liability company or other entity.
Franchisee shall make its list of owners available to Franchisor upon request.

2) If Franchisee is a corporation, Franchisee shall maintain stop-transfer instructions
against the transfer on its records of any of its equity securities and each stock certificate representing
stock of the corporation shall have conspicuously endorsed upon it a statement in a form satisfactory to
Franchisor that it is held subject to all restrictions imposed upon assignments by this Agreement. If
Franchisee is a partnership or limited liability company, its written partnership or limited liability
company agreement shall provide that ownership of an interest in the partnership or limited liability
company is held subject to all restrictions imposed upon assignments by this Agreement.

3) If required by Franchisor, Franchisee's Principals shall each execute the
Confidentiality Agreement and Ancillary Covenants in the form of Attachment C to this Agreement.

4) If, after the execution of this Agreement, any person ceases to qualify as one of
Franchisee's Principals or if any individual succeeds to or otherwise comes to occupy a position which,
upon designation by Franchisor, would qualify him as one of Franchisee's Principals, Franchisee shall
notify Franchisor within ten (10) days after any such change and, upon designation of such person by
Franchisor as one of Franchisee's Principals or as a Controlling Principal, such person shall execute all
documents and instruments (including, as applicable, this Agreement) as Franchisor may require others in
such positions to execute.

D. Financial Matters.

(D Franchisee and, at Franchisor's request, each of the Controlling Principals have
provided Franchisor with the most recent financial statements of Franchisee and such Controlling
Principals. Such financial statements present fairly the financial position of Franchisee and each of the
Controlling Principals, as applicable, at the dates indicated therein and, with respect to Franchisee, the
results of its operations and its cash flow for the years then ended. Each of the financial statements are
certified as true and correct and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and, except as expressly described in the applicable notes, applied on a consistent basis. There
are no material liabilities, adverse claims, commitments or obligations of any nature, whether accrued,
unliquidated, absolute, contingent or otherwise, which are not reflected as liabilities on the financial
statements.

2) The Controlling Principals shall jointly and severally guarantee the performance
of Franchisee's obligations under this Agreement pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Controlling
Principal Guarantee and Assumption Agreement, and shall otherwise bind themselves to the terms of this
Agreement as stated therein.
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3) Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with any and all loan or other documents
regarding the financing of its Palm Beach Tan Location that Franchisor may request.

4) Franchisee shall maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement
sufficient working capital to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement.

E. Management (Operating Principal; General Manager and Store Manager).

(D If Franchisee has not previously done so pursuant to a Development Agreement,
if applicable, concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, then Franchisee shall designate and at all
times maintain one of its Controlling Principals, with an ownership interest in Franchisee and whom
Franchisor approves, as its Operating Principal. Franchisee may also designate another person whom
Franchisor approves and who may, but need not, be an owner of Franchisee, to serve as its General
Manager; provided, that Franchisee and the Operating Principal remain fully responsible for the General
Manager’s performance. Franchisee agrees to vest the Operating Principal and the General Manager with
sufficient decision making authority to expedite the determinations and decisions that are essential to
effective and efficient development of Palm Beach Tan Locations. The Operating Principal or General
Manager must devote full time best efforts to the fulfillment of Franchisee’s obligations under the
Franchise Agreement. Neither the Operating Principal nor the General Manager shall engage in any other
business or activity that may conflict with Franchisee’s obligations under the Franchise Agreement. If
Franchisee’s relationship with the Operating Principal or General Manager terminates or materially
changes, Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor and designate a qualified replacement. Unless
otherwise approved by Franchisor, the Operating Principal and General Manager shall be the same for all
Franchise Agreements executed pursuant to a Development Agreement between Franchisee (or its
affiliate) and the same as the Operating Principal and the General Manager designated under any such
Development Agreement.

) Not later than sixty (60) days before the Opening Date, Franchisee shall
designate, and shall retain at all times during the term of this Agreement at least one (1) Store Manager
(““Store Manager”) to assist in the day-to-day operation and management of the Palm Beach Tan Location.
The Store Manager shall:

(a) Meet Franchisor's qualifications, as set forth in this Agreement, the
Manuals, or otherwise in writing; and

(b) Devote full time and best efforts to the day-to-day operation and
management of the Palm Beach Tan Location and shall not engage in any other business activity without
Franchisor's prior written consent.

F. Good Standing. Franchisee shall maintain its status as a Palm Beach Beauty & Tan
Franchisee in Good Standing. “Good Standing” means timely compliance by Franchisee with all
provisions of this Agreement and the Manuals, specifically including timely payment of all monies due
Franchisor, and passing scores as measured by Franchisor’s operational evaluations.

G. Training. Franchisee’s Operating Principal and Store Manager (if the Operating Principal
will manage the day to day operations of the Palm Beach Tan Location) or Franchisee’s General Manager
and Store Manager (if the General Manager will manage the day to day operations of the Palm Beach Tan
Location) shall successfully complete Franchisor’s management training program prior to the Opening
Date. Any successor or replacement Operating Principal, General Manager or Store Manager, as
applicable, shall successfully complete Franchisor’s management training program within a reasonable
time after such persons are designated. Such persons, and any other personnel of Franchisee whom
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Franchisor may designate, shall attend and complete any additional training that Franchisor may from
time to time require. Training shall be conducted at locations designated by Franchisor.

Initial management training for Franchisee’s Operating Principal, General Manager and Store
Manager, as applicable, is provided at no additional charge; however, Franchisor reserves the
right to charge a reasonable fee for training successor or replacement personnel and for any
additional training programs. Franchisee shall be responsible for any and all expenses incurred in
connection with training, including, without limitation, the costs of travel, lodging, meals and
wages incurred by Franchisee, its Operating Principal, General Manager, or Store Manager.

2) If Franchisee’s Operating Principal, General Manager or Store Manager fails, in
Franchisor’s sole judgment, to satisfactorily complete Franchisor’s management training program, and
Franchisee fails to cure such default within ninety (90) days following written notice from Franchisor,
Franchisor may terminate this Agreement.

H. Legal Compliance. In addition to complying with its obligations under this Agreement,
Franchisee shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances,
and orders, including, without limitation, all laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and orders governing the
tanning industry. Such laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and orders vary from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction and may be amended or implemented or interpreted in a different manner from time to time. It
is Franchisee’s sole responsibility to apprise itself of the existence and requirements of all such laws,
rules, regulations, ordinances and orders, and to adhere to them at all times during the term of this
Agreement.

Powers of Attorney. Franchisee hereby appoints Franchisor its true and lawful attorney-in-fact,
with full power and authority to assign to Franchisor upon the termination or expiration of this
Agreement (i) all rights to the telephone numbers of the Palm Beach Tan Location, any related
Yellow Pages trademark listings, and all rights to any Website listings or services, search engines
or systems, and any other business listings related to the Palm Beach Tan Location, and (ii) at
Franchisor’s option, Franchisee’s interest in any lease for the premises of the Palm Beach Tan
Location and any equipment used in the operation of the Palm Beach Tan Location. Such powers
of attorney shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement and Franchisee shall
execute such forms and documents as Franchisor deems necessary to appoint Franchisor its true
and lawful attorney-in-fact with full power and authority for the foregoing purposes.

J. Anti-Terrorist Activities. Franchisee and its Controlling Principals certify that neither
Franchisee nor its owners, employees or anyone associated with Franchisee is listed in the Annex to
Executive Order 13224. (The Annex is available at http://www.ustreas.gov/offices/enforcement/ofac/)
Franchisee agrees not to hire or have any dealings with a person listed in the Annex. Franchisee certifies
that it has no knowledge or information that, if generally known, would result in Franchisee, its owners,
employees, or anyone associated with Franchisee being listed in the Annex to Executive Order 13224,
Franchisee and its Controlling Principals agree to comply with and/or assist Franchisor to the fullest
extent possible in Franchisor’s efforts to comply with the Anti-Terrorism Laws (as defined below). In
connection with such compliance, Franchisee and its Controlling Principals certify, represent, and warrant
that none of its property or interests are subject to being “blocked” under any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws
and that Franchisee and its owners are not otherwise in violation of any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws.
Franchisee is solely responsible for ascertaining what actions must be taken by Franchisee to comply with
all such Anti-Terrorism Laws, and Franchisee specifically acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee’s
indemnification responsibilities as provided in Section XV. Of this Agreement pertain to Franchisee’s
obligations under this Section VI.J. Any misrepresentation by Franchisee under this Section or any
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violation of the Anti-Terrorism Laws by Franchisee, its owners, or employees shall constitute grounds for
immediate termination of this Agreement and any other agreement Franchisee has entered into with
Franchisor or one of Franchisor’s affiliates. As used herein, “Anti-Terrorism Laws” means Executive
Order 13224 issued by the President of the United States, the Terrorism Sanctions Regulations (Title 31,
Part 595 of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations), the Foreign Terrorist Organizations Sanctions
Regulations (Title 31, Part 597 of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations), the Cuban Assets Control
Regulations (Title 31, Part 515 of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations), the USA Freedom Act (H.R.
2048, Public Law 114-23), currently accessible at congress.gov/114/plaws/publ23/PLAW-
114publ23.htm), Executive Order 13224 (66 FR 49079, September 25, 2001) or similar law, and all other
present and future federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, policies, lists and any other
requirements of any Governmental Authority (including, without limitation, the United States Department
of Treasure Office of Foreign Assets Control) addressing or in any way relating to terrorist acts and acts
of war.

VII. FRANCHISE OPERATIONS

A. Standards Compliance. Franchisee acknowledges the importance of maintaining
uniformity among all of the Palm Beach Tan Locations and the importance of complying with all
of Franchisor’s standards and specifications relating to the operation of Palm Beach Tan
Locations. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that local conditions or other special
circumstances may warrant a deviation from Franchisor’s standards, specifications, policies, or
procedures and Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, allow such deviation. To protect the
reputation and goodwill of Franchisor and to maintain the high standards of operation under the
Marks, Franchisee shall conduct its business in accordance with the Manuals, other written
directives which Franchisor may issue to Franchisee from time to time, and any other manuals
and materials created or approved for use in the operation of Palm Beach Tan Locations.

B. Maintenance of Palm Beach Tan Location; Casualty Loss. Franchisee shall maintain the
Palm Beach Tan Location and tanning equipment (including all self-tanning booths) and sauna equipment
in a high degree of sanitation and repair, and shall make such additions, alterations, repairs and
replacements as may be required for that purpose, including, without limitation, such periodic repainting
or replacement of signs, furnishings, décor and equipment (including, but not limited to, tanning beds,
tanning bed lamps, tanning bed acrylics, electronic cash register or computer systems), as Franchisor may
reasonably direct. Except as may be expressly provided in the Manuals, no alterations, improvements or
changes of any kind in design, equipment, signs, interior or exterior decor items, fixtures or furnishings
shall be made in or about the Palm Beach Tan Location without Franchisor’s prior written approval. If the
Palm Beach Tan Location is damaged or destroyed by fire or any other casualty, Franchisee shall, within
thirty (30) days thereof initiate, and thereafter with due diligence continue to completion, such repairs and
reconstruction as may be needed to restore the premises of the Palm Beach Tan Location to its original
condition prior to such casualty; provided, that if, in Franchisor’s reasonable judgment, it is feasible for
Franchisee to repair or reconstruct the premises of the Palm Beach Tan Location in conformance with the
then-standard Palm Beach Tan décor specifications, Franchisor may require that Franchisee do so.

C. Upgrade of Palm Beach Tan Location. Franchisee shall, at Franchisee’s cost and
expense, (i) obtain any new or additional equipment, fixtures, supplies and other products and materials
which Franchisor may reasonably require for Franchisee to offer and sell tanning- or wellness- or spa-
services or products from the Palm Beach Tan Location or to provide tanning- or wellness- or spa-
services or products by alternative means and (ii) make, upon written notice from Franchisor, such
improvements to the Palm Beach Tan Location as are required to conform it to Franchisor’s then-current
standards and specifications; provided, that any notice given pursuant to Section VII.C.(ii) shall not occur
more frequently than at five (5) year intervals, commencing with the Opening Date and continuing
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throughout the initial term of this Agreement; and further provided, that Franchisee shall not be required
to spend more than fifteen percent (15%) of the Palm Beach Tan Location’s revenues for the twelve (12)
month period immediately preceding the date of the notice and, for purposes of determining the amount
of Franchisee’s expenditures, any expenditures for additional equipment made during the preceding five
(5) year period pursuant to Section VII.C.(i) will count toward the fifteen percent (15%) cap.

D. Sourcing. Franchisee shall comply with all of Franchisor’s standards and specifications
for the purchase of all supplies, materials, fixtures, furnishings, equipment and other products and
services (including, without limitation, EFT Services) used in or offered for sale at the Palm Beach Tan
Location. If Franchisor requires, Franchisee shall obtain such items from suppliers who demonstrate the
ability to meet Franchisor’s then-current standards and specifications: who possess adequate quality
controls and the capacity to supply Franchisee’s needs promptly and reliably; who have been approved in
writing by Franchisor and who have not thereafter been disapproved by Franchisor. Franchisee
acknowledges and agrees that (a) Franchisor may change the number of approved suppliers at any time
and may designate itself, an Affiliate, or a third party as the exclusive source for any particular item; and
(b) Franchisor may profit from Franchisee’s purchases from approved suppliers, and Franchisor and/or its
Affiliates may receive payments, fees, commissions or reimbursements from such suppliers in respect of
Franchisee’s purchases. If Franchisor requires an item to be acquired from an approved supplier and
Franchisee desires to acquire such item from an unapproved supplier, or if Franchisor requires a particular
item or brand of equipment and Franchisee wishes to substitute a different item or brand, Franchisee or
the supplier shall submit to Franchisor a written request for approval. Franchisee shall not acquire the
item until and unless such item and/or supplier has been approved in writing by Franchisor. Franchisor
shall have the right to require that its representatives be permitted to inspect the supplier’s facilities, and
that samples from the supplier be delivered to Franchisor or to an independent laboratory designated by
Franchisor for testing. Franchisee or the supplier may be required to pay a charge, not to exceed the
reasonable cost of the inspection and the actual cost of the test. Franchisor shall not be required to
approve any particular supplier, and in addition to the foregoing, as a condition of any such approval, may
require that the supplier (i) agree to sell any product bearing the Marks only to Palm Beach Tan
franchisees and (ii) otherwise comply with Franchisor’s reasonable requests. Franchisor reserves the right,
at its option, to re-inspect the facilities and products of any approved supplier and to revoke its approval
upon the supplier’s failure to continue to meet any of Franchisor’s then-current criteria.

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that products, equipment, and technology are constantly
changing, whether updated, improved, replaced, or discontinued. Consequently, such changes sometimes
create transition and incompatibility challenges. By entering into this Agreement, Franchisee
acknowledges the potential of such occurrences and assumes all risk associated therewith, which
Franchisee acknowledges may affect its ability to order, receive, or sell products and/or offer services for
a period of time and further acknowledges that Franchisor is not responsible for any damages caused by
such occurrences, including lost sales or profits.

E. Operational Standards. Franchisee shall operate the Palm Beach Tan Location in strict
conformity with Franchisor’s methods, standards and specifications as set forth in the Manuals and as
from time to time otherwise prescribed in writing. Without limitation of the foregoing, Franchisee agrees:

(1) To sell or offer for sale all products and services required by Franchisor,
in the manner and style prescribed by Franchisor and to adhere to Franchisor’s standards,
specifications, sourcing and other requirements for the acceptance and maintenance of customers
(sometimes referred to as “members”) of the Palm Beach Tan Location, including the use of
service agreements providing for EFT memberships.
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2) To maintain in sufficient supply such products, materials, and supplies that
conform to Franchisor’s standards and specifications, to sell and offer for sale only, and all of, the
products and services that have been expressly approved in writing by Franchisor; to refrain from
deviating from Franchisor’s standards and specifications without Franchisor’s prior written consent; and
to discontinue selling and offering for sale any products or services which Franchisor may, in its sole
discretion, disapprove in writing at any time.

3) To permit Franchisor or its agents, at any reasonable time, to remove a
reasonable number of product samples from Franchisee’s inventory, without payment, in
amounts reasonably necessary for testing to determine whether such samples meet Franchisor’s
then-current standards and specifications. In addition to any other remedies it may have under
this Agreement, Franchisor may require Franchisee to bear the cost of such testing if the supplier
of the item has not previously been approved by Franchisor or if the sample fails to conform to
Franchisor’s specifications.

(4) To purchase or lease and install, at Franchisee’s expense, all fixtures,
furnishings, equipment, decor, signs, and related items, including, without limitation, any self-
tanning booths and sunless tanning solutions, and saunas, as Franchisor may reasonably direct
from time to time; and to refrain from installing or permitting to be installed on or about the
Palm Beach Tan Location, any items not previously approved as meeting Franchisor’s standards
and specifications.

%) To grant Franchisor and its agents the right to enter the Palm Beach Tan
Location at any time to conduct inspections; to cooperate with Franchisor’s representatives in
such inspections; and, upon notice from Franchisor, to take such steps as may be necessary to
correct promptly any deficiencies detected during such an inspection. Should Franchisee fail to
correct such deficiencies within a reasonable time, as determined by Franchisor, Franchisor shall
have the right (without, however, any obligation to do so) to correct such deficiencies and charge
Franchisee a reasonable fee therefor. If Franchisor exercises the right granted to it in this Section
VILE.(5), its sole purpose in doing so is to maintain Franchisor’s brand standards, not to exercise
day-to-day control of Franchisee’s Palm Beach Tan Location.

(6) To adequately staff the Palm Beach Tan Location, as provided in the Manuals,
and to take such steps as are necessary to ensure that its employees preserve good customer relations and
comply with any dress code Franchisor may prescribe.

@) To participate in any Quality Assurance Program developed or required by
Franchisor, as such programs may from time to time be modified and to pay to Franchisor or its
designated supplier any fees associated with such programs.

(®) To cooperate with Franchisor in connection with the conduct of any test
marketing programs authorized by Franchisor.

F. Computer Systems. Franchisee shall at its expense install and maintain the computer
hardware and software Franchisor requires for the operation of the Palm Beach Tan Location and shall
follow the procedures Franchisor specifies in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. Among other things,
Franchisor may require that Franchisee install and maintain systems that permit Franchisor to access and
retrieve electronically, any information stored in Franchisee’s computer systems, including, without
limitation, information concerning Gross Sales, at the times and in the manner that Franchisor may
specify from time to time. Franchisor will also require Franchisee to enter into a software license
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agreement in substantially the form of Attachment E for software Franchisor develops or acquires for use
in the System. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor has the right to access and use the information contained
in and collected by Franchisee’s computer in any manner Franchisor deems appropriate. Franchisee shall
treat such information as Franchisor’s Confidential Information and, without limitation of Section X.B.,
shall not sell or otherwise dispose of such information. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor may,
during the term of this Agreement, require Franchisee to modify, enhance and/or replace all or any part of
the computer hardware and software comprising the computer system at Franchisee's expense. Any such
modifications, enhancements, and replacements may require Franchisee to incur costs to purchase, lease
and/or license new or modified equipment and to obtain different and/or additional service and support
services during the term of this Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor cannot estimate the
costs of future enhancements, modifications, and replacements to the computer system.

G. Internet Website. Franchisee shall have and maintain adequate hardware and software in
order to access the Internet at the bit speed required by Franchisor from time to time. Franchisee shall not
establish or participate in any website or other listing on the Internet except as provided herein.

(1) Franchisor has established, or may establish, an Internet Website that
provides information about the System and the products and services offered by Palm Beach Tan
Locations. Franchisor has sole discretion and control over the Website (including timing, design,
contents and continuation). Franchisor may use part of the Advertising Fund monies it collects
under this Agreement to pay or reimburse the costs associated with the development,
maintenance and update of the Website.

2) Franchisor may (but is not required to) include at the Website an interior page
containing information about Franchisee’s Palm Beach Tan Location (“Franchisee’s Page”). If Franchisor
includes such information on the Website, Franchisor may require Franchisee to prepare all or a portion
of Franchisee’s Page, at Franchisee’s expense, using a template that Franchisor provides. All such
information will be subject to Franchisor's approval prior to posting. Any modifications (including
customizations, alterations, submissions or updates) to the template made by Franchisee for any purpose
will be deemed to be a “work made for hire” under the copyright laws, and therefore, Franchisor shall
own the intellectual property rights in and to such modifications. To the extent any modification does not
qualify as a work made for hire as stated above, Franchisee hereby assigns those modifications to
Franchisor for no additional consideration and with no further action required and shall execute such
further assignments(s) as Franchisor may request. Without limiting Franchisor’s general unrestricted right
to permit, deny and regulate Franchisee’s participation on the Website in Franchisor’s discretion, if
Franchisee breaches this Agreement, or any other agreement with Franchisor or its affiliates, Franchisor
may disable or terminate the Franchisee’s Page and remove all references to the Palm Beach Tan
Location operated hereunder on the Website until the breach is cured.

3) Franchisor also shall have the sole right (but no obligation) to develop an
Intranet through which Franchisor and its franchisees can communicate by e-mail or similar
electronic means. If Franchisor develops such an Intranet, Franchisee agrees to use the facilities
of the Intranet in strict compliance with the standards, protocols and restrictions that Franchisor
includes in the Manual (including, without limitation, standards, protocols and restrictions
relating to the encryption of confidential information and prohibitions against the transmission of
libelous, derogatory or defamatory statements). Franchisee will be solely responsible for
compliance with any laws pertaining to sending e-mails, including but not limited to the
Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 (“CAN-
SPAM Act of 2003”).
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H. Customer Complaints. Franchisee shall process and handle all consumer complaints
connected with or relating to the Palm Beach Tan Location, and shall promptly notify Franchisor of all:
(1) safety or health violations or any other violations related to the operation of an indoor tanning facility,
(ii) claims exceeding One Thousand Dollars ($1,000), and (iii) any other material claims against or losses
suffered by Franchisee. Franchisee shall maintain any communications with governmental authorities
affecting the Palm Beach Tan Location during the term of this Agreement and for one (1) year after the
expiration or earlier termination hereof. Additionally, Franchisee agrees to immediately inform
Franchisor upon the occurrence of a Crisis Management Event and to cooperate fully with Franchisor and
with the appropriate authorities with respect to the investigation of the Crisis Management Event. In an
effort to mitigate possible damages to the Marks and System, Franchisee must cooperate fully with
Franchisor with respect to managing statements and other responses to the Crisis Management Event.
“Crisis Management Event” means any event that occurs at or about Franchisee’s Palm Beach Tan
Location or in connection with the operation of Franchisee’s Palm Beach Tan Location that has or may
cause harm or injury to customers or employees, such as contagious diseases, natural disasters, terrorist
acts, shootings or other acts of violence, data breaches, real or threatened, or any other circumstance
which may materially and adversely affect the System or the goodwill symbolized by the Marks.

L. Pricing. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Franchisor reserves the
right to establish maximum, minimum or other pricing requirements with respect to the prices
Franchisee may charge for products or services.

J. Data Security. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that protection of customer privacy
and credit card information is necessary to protect the goodwill of businesses operating under the Marks
and System. Accordingly, Franchisee agrees that it will cause its Palm Beach Tan Location to meet or
exceed, at all times, all applicable security standards developed by the Payment Card Industry Data
Security Standards (“PCI DSS”) council, or its successor, and other regulations and industry standards
applicable to the protection of customer privacy and credit card information, including but not limited to
the Fair and Accurate Credit Transaction Act (“FACTA”) and all other successor or additional laws, and
all other data security requirements we prescribe. Franchisee is solely responsible for educating itself as to
these regulations and standards and for achieving and maintaining applicable compliance certifications.

VIII. ADVERTISING

A. Advertising Expenditures. During each calendar year throughout the term of this
Agreement, Franchisee shall spend at least five and one-half percent (5.5%) of the Gross Sales of
the Palm Beach Tan Location on advertising (“Advertising Assessment”). Initially, Franchisee
shall spend three and one-half percent (3.5%) of Gross Sales on local advertising, as described in
Section VIIL.B., and shall contribute two percent (2%) of Gross Sales to the Advertising Fund
described in Section VIII.D., at the time and in the manner that royalty payments are made. Upon
written notice to Franchisee, Franchisor may vary the amount of the Advertising Assessment that
Franchisee is to spend for local advertising, Cooperative advertising, or as an Advertising Fund
contribution, provided, that in no event (i) will Franchisee’s total required expenditures for
advertising exceed the maximum Advertising Assessment specified herein and (i1) will
Franchisee’s required contribution to the Advertising Fund exceed two percent (2%) of Gross
Sales of the Palm Beach Tan Location.

B. Local Advertising. Absent Franchisor’s prior written consent, the portion of the
Advertising Assessment that Franchisee spends on local advertising must be spent on advertising for
Franchisee’s Palm Beach Tan Location in the Designated Area. At the conclusion of each calendar
quarter during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall prepare a quarterly advertising expenditure
report, accurately reflecting Franchisee’s local advertising expenditures for the preceding quarter, and
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shall submit all year-to-date advertising expenditure reports to Franchisor not later than fifteen (15) days
following the end of the second and fourth calendar quarters. Expenditures incurred for any of the
following may not be included in local advertising expenditures for purposes of this Section VIILB.,
unless Franchisor first approves them in writing:

(1) Incentive programs for Franchisee's employees or agents, including the
cost of honoring any discounts or coupons, and salaries and expenses of any of Franchisee's
employees,

2) Non-media costs incurred in any promotion;

3) Charitable, political or other contributions or donations;

4) In-store materials consisting of fixtures or equipment; and

(5) Grand Opening expenditures incurred pursuant to Section VIILE.

Franchisee shall participate in such local advertising programs as Franchisor may develop or require, as
such programs may from time to time be modified by Franchisor.

C. Cooperatives. Franchisor has the right to designate any geographic area in which two (2)
or more company-owned or franchised Palm Beach Tan Locations are located as a region for purposes of
establishing an advertising cooperative (“Cooperative”), provided that at least two different Location
owners are represented within such geographic area. Each Cooperative will be organized and governed as,
and will begin operation on a date, Franchisor determines. Cooperatives will be organized for the
exclusive purpose of administering advertising programs and developing promotional materials for local
advertising and will be operated solely as a conduit for the collection and expenditure of advertising
contributions. If a Cooperative is established for a geographic area that includes the market area in which
the Location is located, Franchisee shall automatically become a member of the Cooperative and shall
execute the Cooperative documents immediately upon Franchisor’s request and participate as a member
of the Cooperative. Among other things, this means that (i) Franchisee must submit to the Cooperative
and to Franchisor all statements and reports that Franchisor or the Cooperative may require, and (ii)
Franchisee must contribute to the Cooperative the amounts required by the Cooperative's governing
documents; provided, that Franchisee’s Cooperative contribution will be applied toward satisfaction of its
local advertising requirement under Section VIILB.

D. Advertising Fund. Franchisor has established a fund to produce advertising for the
System (the “Advertising Fund” or “Fund”). Franchisee must contribute to the Fund the amounts required
under Section VIIL.A. of this Agreement, at the time and in the manner stated in Sections IV.B. and IV.E.
Franchisor or its designee will administer the Fund as follows:

(1) Franchisor will direct all advertising production programs and will have
sole discretion to approve or disapprove the creative concepts, materials and media used in such
programs. Franchisor has the right to cause the Fund to be incorporated or operated through a
separate entity at such time as Franchisor deems appropriate, and such successor entity will have
all of the rights and duties specified herein.

2) Franchisor or its affiliates will contribute to the Fund generally on the same basis
as franchisees for any Palm Beach Tan Locations they operate.
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3) Franchisor may use the Fund to satisfy any and all costs of maintaining,
administering, directing, preparing, and producing advertising, including the cost of preparing
and producing television, radio, magazine and newspaper advertising campaigns; the cost of
placing television, radio, magazine and newspaper advertising campaigns (whether by
purchasing air time or page space); the cost of direct mail and outdoor billboard advertising; the
cost of public relations activities and advertising agencies; the cost of developing and
maintaining an Internet website and digital media and social media; the cost of conducting
market research; and personnel and other departmental costs for advertising that Franchisor
internally administers or prepares.

(4) The Fund will be operated solely as a conduit for collecting and spending
advertising contributions for the System. Franchisee’s contributions will not be used to defray
any of Franchisor’s general operating expenses, except for such reasonable salaries,
administrative costs, travel expenses and overhead that Franchisor may incur in activities
reasonably related to the administration or direction of the Fund. The Fund and its earnings will
not otherwise inure to Franchisor’s benefit.

(%) Franchisor may spend, on behalf of the Fund, in any fiscal year an amount
greater or less than the aggregate contribution of all Palm Beach Tan Locations to the Fund in
that year, and the Fund may borrow from Franchisor or others to cover deficits or invest any
surplus for future use. All interest earned on monies contributed to the Fund will be used to pay
advertising costs before other assets of the Fund are expended. Franchisor will prepare an annual
statement of the Fund's operations and will make it available to Franchisee upon request.

(6) In administering the Fund, Franchisor undertakes no obligation to make
expenditures for Franchisee which are equivalent or proportionate to Franchisee’s contribution or to
ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from the production of advertising.

@) Franchisor reserves the right to defer or reduce contributions and, upon thirty
(30) days' prior written notice, to reduce or suspend contributions to and operations of the Fund for one or
more periods of any length and to terminate (and, if terminated, to reinstate) the Fund (and, if suspended,
deferred or reduced, to reinstate such contributions). Franchisor will not terminate the Fund, however,
until all monies in the Fund have been spent for advertising or promotional purposes or returned to
contributors, without interest, on the basis of their respective contributions.

E. Grand Opening. Franchisee shall carry out a grand opening promotion for the Palm
Beach Tan Location. Franchisor must approve all advertising items, methods and media Franchisee uses
in connection with such grand opening promotion in accordance with Section VIII.G. Franchisee shall
submit one or more expenditure reports to Franchisor, accurately reflecting Franchisee’s grand opening
expenditures. Amounts paid for the initial grand opening promotion will not be credited toward any other
obligation of Franchisee under this Section VIII.

F. Yellow Pages. Franchisee shall place and pay the cost of a Yellow Pages listing and
other business listings in such directories and categories as may be specified by the Franchisor from time
to time in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. Any amount paid by Franchisee for such Yellow Pages
trademark may be included in Franchisee's local advertising requirement under Sections VIIL.A. and B. of
this Agreement.

G. Advertising Approvals. All advertising and promotion by Franchisee in any medium
shall be conducted in a dignified manner and shall conform to Franchisor’s standards and specifications.
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Franchisee shall obtain Franchisor's approval of all advertising and promotional plans and materials,
including, without limitation, those placed on the Internet pursuant to Section VIL.G., prior to use if such
plans and materials have not been prepared or previously approved by Franchisor during the twelve (12)
month period immediately preceding their proposed use. Franchisee shall submit any unapproved plans
and materials to Franchisor, and Franchisor shall approve or disapprove such plans and materials within
twenty (20) days after receiving them. Franchisee shall not use any unapproved plans or materials until
they have been approved by Franchisor, and shall promptly discontinue use of any advertising or
promotional plans or materials, whether or not previously approved, upon notice from Franchisor.

H. Promotions. From time to time during the term of this Agreement, Franchisor may
establish and conduct promotional campaigns on a national or regional basis, which may (by way of
illustration and not limitation) promote particular products or services. Franchisee agrees to participate in
such promotional campaigns upon such terms and conditions as Franchisor may establish. Franchisee
acknowledges and agrees that such participation may require Franchisee to purchase reasonable point of
sale advertising and other promotional material.

IX. MARKS

A. Right to Use Marks. Franchisor grants Franchisee the right to use the Marks
during the term of this Agreement in accordance with this Agreement and Franchisor’s standards
and specifications.

B. Agreements Regarding the Marks. Franchisee expressly acknowledges that:

(1) As between Franchisor and Franchisee, Franchisor is the owner of all
right, title and interest in and to the Marks and the goodwill associated with and symbolized by
them.

2) Neither Franchisee nor any Controlling Principal shall take any action that
would prejudice or interfere with the rights of Franchisor or its affiliates in and to the Marks. Nothing in
this Agreement shall give Franchisee any right, title, or interest in or to any of the Marks, except the right
to use the Marks in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

3) Any and all goodwill arising from Franchisee’s use of the Marks shall
inure solely and exclusively to the benefit of Franchisor or its affiliates, and upon expiration or
termination of this Agreement and the license granted herein, no monetary amount shall be
attributable to any goodwill associated with Franchisee’s use of the Marks.

4) Franchisee shall not contest, or assist others to contest, the validity, or
the interest, of Franchisor or its affiliates in the Marks.

(®)) Any unauthorized use of the Marks shall constitute an infringement of
Franchisor’s or its affiliates’ rights in the Marks and a material event of default under this
Agreement. Franchisee shall provide Franchisor with all assignments, affidavits, documents,
information and assistance related to the Marks that Franchisor or its affiliates reasonably
request, including all such instruments necessary to register, maintain, enforce and fully vest the
rights of Franchisor or its affiliates in the Marks.

(6) Franchisor shall have the right to substitute different trade names, trademarks,
service marks, logos and commercial symbols for the current Marks to use in identifying the System and
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any part of the operations of the Palm Beach Tan Locations operating under the System if the current
Marks no longer can be used, or if Franchisor, in its sole discretion, determines that substitution of
different marks will be beneficial to the System. In such event, Franchisor may require Franchisee, at
Franchisee’s expense, to discontinue or modify Franchisee’s use of any of the Marks or to use one or
more additional or substitute marks.

C. Use of the Marks. Franchisee further agrees that Franchisee shall:

(1) Operate and advertise the Palm Beach Tan Location only under the name
“Palm Beach Tan,” without prefix or suffix, unless otherwise authorized or required by
Franchisor. Franchisee shall not use the Marks as part of its corporate or other legal name.

2) Identify itself as the owner of the Palm Beach Tan Location in conjunction with
any use of the Marks, including, but not limited to, uses on invoices, order forms, receipts and contracts,
and shall display a notice in such content and form and at such conspicuous locations on the premises of
the Palm Beach Tan Location or any vehicle used in the operation of the Palm Beach Tan Location as
Franchisor may designate in writing.

3) Not use the Marks to incur any obligation or indebtedness on behalf of
Franchisor.

4) Comply with Franchisor’s instructions in filing and maintaining the
requisite trade name or fictitious name registrations, and execute any documents deemed
necessary by Franchisor or its counsel to obtain protection of the Marks or to maintain their
continued validity and enforceability.

D. Infringement.  Franchisee shall notify Franchisor immediately of any apparent
infringement of or challenge to Franchisee’s use of any Mark and of any claim by any person of any
rights in any Mark. Franchisee and the Controlling Principals shall not communicate with any person
other than Franchisor, its affiliates, their counsel, and Franchisee’s counsel in connection with any such
apparent infringement, challenge or claim. Franchisor shall have complete discretion to take any action it
deems appropriate in connection with any infringement of, or challenge or claim to, any Mark and the
right to control exclusively, or to delegate control of, any settlement, litigation, Patent and Trademark
Office or other proceeding arising out of any such alleged infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise
relating to any Mark. Fra